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2. Part A

1. FOREWORD BY THE MINISTER

On behalf of the South African Government and
the management of the Department of Energy (the
Department), | am pleased to present the Annual
Report for the financial year 2015/16. The purpose
of this report is to give Parliament and the public an
overview of the resources allocated to the Department
and to account for the use of those resources in
fulfilling our mandate and the delivery of services.

The Department has continued to focus on its mandate
of ensuring the security of supply and pursuing an
appropriate energy mix in order to meet the needs of
the country’s economy which also allows for the growth
of the economy. This is done through an integrated
energy planning approach while strengthening the
regulatory framework within the Energy Sector.

The year under review was characterised by severe
shortages in electricity supply resulting in load
shedding in various parts of the country. In order to
address these challenges, Cabinet adopted the Five
Point Plan as a blueprint to mitigate our challenges.
The Five Point Plan consisted of supply-side options
to encourage Eskom to improve the availability and
reliability of the power stations, while increasing power
capacity through Independent Power Producers
(IPPs). Programmes that were largely earmarked
under the IPP Programme related to the renewables,
coal technology as well as cogeneration. In this regard,
plans have been put in place to ensure that we bring
as many megawatts into the system as possible in
order to alleviate load shedding. Part of the Five Point
Plan included demand-side options whereby South
Africans were encouraged to reduce their electricity
usage and to become more energy efficient.

Government also recognised that, while this was a
short-term challenge, there was a need to accelerate
the conclusion of a long-term plan or the Integrated
Energy Plan in order to outline our future energy mix
and to prioritise key policy interventions within the
Energy Sector.

| am happy to indicate that through the IPP Programme,
renewable energy, coal, gas and cogeneration
has progressed significantly against the target of
17 000 MW by the end of 2022. The Renewable
Energy IPP Programme has been very competitive in
respect of pricing and time to produce power in the
grid and at the same time have made a real socio-
economic impact in the communities where these
projects are located.
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So far, the programme has injected more than
R170 billion in capital investment into the South
African economy, with South Africans owning an
average of over 48% in all IPPs, and with Black
South Africans owning an average of at least 28% of
these projects. In order to ensure that new generation
capacity is increased, | have also promulgated new
determinations under the Electricity Regulation Act,
2006 (Act No. 4 of 2006) for an additional 6 000 MW
under the Renewable Energy IPP Programme as well
as 1 800 MW for cogeneration. This is in line with
the existing Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) and the
various Request for Proposals (RFP) that were issued
during the year under review in order to procure
these projects. Side by side with the Renewable IPP
Programme, we introduced a small Renewable Energy
RFP which targeted smaller projects equal to 5 MW
which we provide for a less costly and less complex
bidding process. The Small Renewable Energy
Programme targets Black Economic Empowerment
(BEE) and economic development criteria that have



been introduced in order to ensure that small and
medium enterprises owned by Black people are able
to participate in the green economy.

As promised in my Annual Plan, the Request for
Information for gas power generation was released
during the year under review. This is a precursor of
the Gas to Power Procurement Programme in respect
of which we will be procuring 3 126 MW, with bids
expectedtobeinvitedin 2016. Furthermore, a proposal
in relation to coal technology was also released.
Preferred bidders under the Coal Programme
were announced during the year under review and
approximately 900 MW of project proposals were
received and adjudicated.

Negotiations are ongoing with the Democratic
Republic of Congo (DRC) to develop the Grand Inga
Project, which is the largest hydroelectric power
project in the world. This project will be premised
on South Africa procuring clean energy from the
Southern African Development Community (SADC)
region, and the treaty that has been entered into with
the DRC provides for preferential procurement status
for companies that have a domicile within South Africa
and the SADC region. Apart from the Grand Inga
Project, we have also encouraged the procurement
of small hydro projects under the IPP Programme.
This also includes the development of micro-hydro
projects.

We have made significant progress in creating
regulatory certainty in the Power Generation Sector.
In this regard, we have identified the challenges
experienced by developers who would like to
generate their own power and include transmitting
the power to third parties across networks owned
by licences. The National Energy Regulator of
South Africa (NERSA) has concluded the process of
developing the necessary rules for third party access
concurrently to the Department putting the necessary
policy framework in place.

We have continued to provide access to grid and
off grid electricity and in the year under review,
R5.6 billion was appropriated to deliver 280 000 grid
and off grid connections.

In the liquid field space, we have taken the Biofuels
Regulatory Model forward and have concluded
addressing concerns about the risk posed by this
Programme to the fiscus and to free food security.
Through collaboration with National Treasury, the
Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries,
the Department of Economic Development and
other Government departments, we have provided
a framework which we believe will take the Biofuels
Industry forward.

During the year, we successfully hosted the South
Africa International Renewable Energy Conference
(SAIREC) which took place from 3-7 October 2015 in
Cape Town. This conference was hosted on African
soil for the first time and it was attended by more than
6 000 delegates. A platform was created for various
countries to engage with each other on matters related
to the Renewable Energy Sector.

The Department

has continued to
focus on its mandate
of ensuring the
security of supply
and pursuing an
appropriate energy
miX in order to meet
the needs of the
country.

The South African solar water heating market has
considerable potential to leverage electricity savings,
increase employment opportunities, improve electricity
demand management and reduce greenhouse gas
emissions. The project seeks to install high pressure,
high local content Solar Water Heaters (SWH) in the
Domestic Sector. In parallel, the project seeks to
facilitate standardising the SWH quality and testing
regime, consolidating a widened distribution and
maintenance infrastructure, offering attractive financing
options and ensuring awareness and involvement on
both the supply and the demand side.

To take the opportunities in the green economy
further, the SWH Implementation Model was
revised and approved by Cabinet for management
under the Department. This programme has seen
the collaboration of national, provincial and local
Government together with private and Public
Sector stakeholders. The Department concluded an
agreement with the Sector Education and Training
Authorities (SETA) responsible for energy and water
in terms of which comprehensive and accredited
training is a central element of the SWH rollout model.
Energy efficiency is recognised as one of the most
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cost effective ways of improving energy security and
shifting toward low-carbon development. In order
to create a “pro-energy efficient” environment, the
South African National Energy Efficiency Strategy
(NEES) enhances energy efficiency through enabling
instruments and interventions.

In accordance with the 2005 National Energy Efficiency
Strategy, a national energy efficiency improvement
target of 12% reduction in energy intensity was set
to be achieved by 2015. This overall national target
is divided into sub-targets for each sector, including
the Public and Commercial Building Sector of 15%.
The Department collaborated with the Department of
Public Works to collect energy data in public buildings
as part of the pilot phase of the Energy Efficiency
Target Monitoring System. Meters were installed to
measure and collect electricity consumption data,
and to conduct detailed audits of building occupancy,
size, electrical appliances used, and potential energy
efficiency and renewable energy measures that can
be introduced to reduce the energy consumption.

To support the effectiveness of the NEES, regulations
have been published for compulsory Energy
Management Plans to be developed and put in place
by intensive energy end users whose consumption
at a contiguous site is above a certain threshold.
Such users are required by law to submit energy
management plans, so as to assist Government in the
planning and monitoring of energy consumption.

With electricity being a premium energy source,
we have applied our minds to ways of conserving
electricity and to use it for the applications that it
is best suited for. Petroleum products are still the
lifeblood of the economies throughout Sub-Saharan
African countries. They are key fuels used in road
transport, power generation and for lighting and
cooking in ordinary households.

The traditional use of solid biomass for cooking
accounts for the largest part of household energy
consumption. Major natural gas potential as well as
discoveries in both offshore waters as well as onshore
locations (Mozambique, Tanzania and South Africa)
are creating high expectations.

Currently, the Department is aware of the pricing
structure challenge in terms of the maximum retail
Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) price remaining the
highest cost fuel alternative to the consumer. We are
working on rectifying this aspect of the LPG market
in consultation with relevant stakeholders through the
development of the Liquid Fuels Master Plan process.
Evidence of the drive toward lifting constraints on
supply infrastructure in South Africa is that NERSA
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granted licences for the construction of four major
terminal facilities at the ports of Saldanha Bay,
Richards Bay and Ngqula, with a combined storage
capacity of approximately 65 000 m?. Although the
approvals of additional storage capacity will improve
the security of supply of LPG, some risks remain
in the Western Cape, specifically the Cape Town
metropolitan area where consumption rates are high.
Upon completion (most will be operational by 2018),
these projects will significantly improve the security of
the supply of LPG.

Government remains
committed to ensure
energy security for
the country through
the rollout of the
Nuclear New Build
Programme.

In May 2015, the Gas to Power Programme
commenced with a formal Request for Information,
which was intended to solicit information from
participants in the gas to power industry. We have
indeed received information on a number of interesting
LPG-based project options. This information is being
used to design the procurement documentation for
the Gas to Power Programme.

South Africa’s vision for nuclear power is based on
the Nuclear Energy Policy of 2008 that provides
a framework within which the following is to take
place: prospecting, milling, mining, the use of nuclear
materials, and the development and utilisation of
nuclear energy for peaceful purposes. Government
remains firmly committed to an open, fair and
transparent procurement process with due regard to
implementing the programme at a scale and pace that
our country can afford. The RFP for the Nuclear New
Build Programme (NNBP) of 9 600 MW will be released
to the market during the 2016/17 financial year in line
with the Cabinet decision taken on 9 December 2015.
A Section 34 Ministerial Determination in terms of the
National Energy Regulator Act (Act No. 40 of 2004)
on the NNBP was also gazetted in December 2015.



During the February 2016 State of the Nation Address,
President Jacob Zuma directed that:

“We will test the market to ascertain the true cost of
building modern nuclear plants. Let me emphasise
that we will only procure nuclear on a scale and pace
that our country can afford.”

As part of procurement preparation for the NNBP, the
Department has appointed Transaction Advisors to
conduct an independent assessment of the RFP and
other pre-procurement activities in order to ensure the
state of readiness before testing the market.

In March 2016, Eskom, the owner and operator of the
nuclear plants, as part of the regulatory process has
submitted a final Environmental Impact Assessment to
the Department of Environmental Affairs for approval.
In addition, a Nuclear Installation Site Licence
Application has been submitted to the National
Nuclear Regulator (NNR) for assessment.

Extensive nuclear skills development and training
is taking place both in South Africa and in countries
abroad to ensure that the country has a sufficient
supply of skills and expertise to meet the human
resource needs required by the NNBP.

Government remains committed to ensure energy
security for the country through the rollout of the
NNBP as an integral part of the energy mix to provide
reliable and sustainable electricity supply as part of
mitigating the risk of carbon emissions. The NNBP
will enable the country to create jobs, develop skills,
create industries and catapult the country into a
knowledge economy.

Allow me the opportunity to express my gratitude
to the Deputy Minister, Ambassador Thembisile
Maijola, the Director-General, Mr Thabane Zulu, Team
Energy, State-Owned Entities (SOE) reporting to the
Department and all other stakeholders for working
together in ensuring that we all contribute to the work
mandated to the Department.

Rupenr

Hon. Tina Joemat-Pettersson (MP)
Minister of Energy
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2. REPORT OF THE
ACCOUNTING OFFICER

2.1 Introduction

It gives me a great pleasure to present to the Minister,
the Department of Energy’s (Department’s) Annual
Report for the financial year ending 31 March 2016.

The Department's mandate is to develop and
implement policy imperatives that ensure the security
of supply and improving access to sustainable energy
by all South Africans. This we have done through,
amongst other manners, ensuring that we develop
and implement appropriate policies that address the
gaps in our regulatory framework, keeping the lights
on, ensuring that refineries produce adequate supplies
and the acceleration of the development of renewable
energy resources to achieve a more sustainable
energy mix. We are geared towards continuing this
in the future.

2.2 Overview of the Department of
Energy’s Operations

During the 2015/16 financial year, the Department
continued to implement its key strategic priorities,
which are aligned to the Government's outcomes
based-approach and key policy objectives as set
out in the National Development Plan (NDP), the
New Growth Path (NGP), the Industrial Policy Action
Plan 2 (IPAP2) and the Presidential Infrastructure
Coordinating Commission (PICC). With the adoption
of the Nine Point Plan during the financial year
under review, this has set the Energy Sector on an
accelerated course to resolving energy challenges for
many years to come.

2.3 Energy Planning, Policy and
Clean Energy

Although the country has not experienced load
shedding or power disruptions since September 2015,
we are not out of the proverbial “woods” yet. To this end,
the Department has made significant progress and is
continuing with the implementation of the Nine Point
Plan to resolve energy challenges. The Nine Point
Plan prioritises the following: the Gas Infrastructure
Plan, National Solar Heating Programme, Municipal
Energy Efficiency and Demand Side Management
(EEDSM) (0.5 TWh savings), Public Buildings
EEDSM, Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) Update,
Integrated Energy Plan (IEP), Biofuels Programme
and Independent Power Producer (IPP) Programme.
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In a rapid changing economy and complex energy
challenges, the Department is required to constantly
review its legislation to align statutes with the
changing demands of economy. Several legislative
and policy initiatives were undertaken during the
period under review, but because a number of these
required wide consultation, none were concluded
during the 2015/16 financial year. We are mindful of
the importance of these and are working hard with the
relevant structures and stakeholders to have these
legislations finalised in the next financial year.

2.4 Nuclear Energy

The Nuclear Energy Expansion Programme is a
central feature of our future energy mix, given the
need to provide base load electricity and also meet
the significant greenhouse gas emissions reduction
target we have set for our country. We are confident
that our Nuclear New Build Programme (NNBP) will



respond to job creation needs by creating employment
and fighting poverty. It will also provide assurance
to the investors for the security of energy supply for
industrial purposes.

The Department has done significant work around the
NNBP since the preparatory work has commenced for
the deployment of at least 9 600 MW of nuclear power
fleet by 2030. This is in line with IRP for 2010 which
will ensure that the South African socio-economic
vision defined in the NDP up to 2030 is in part realised.

The NDP implored Government to undertake detailed
investigations prior to making a final decision on
whether to deploy the NNBP. These detailed technical
investigations culminated in the various studies and
strategies, were considered by Cabinet. Cabinet
decided to allow the Department to issue a Request
for Proposal (RFP) to test the market appetite for the
Nuclear Programme.

The RFP phase establishes precise information to fully
appraise Cabinet to be able to take a final decision on
the best arrangement to implement the NNBP.

This would inform the price, affordability, pace and
scale at which the programme should be implemented.
It is therefore important to mention that we will only
implement what our country can afford. We will ensure
that the process is above board and in line with all
applicable laws of the country.

2.5 Petroleum Regulation

In the year under review, we have seen a noticeable
improvement in the turnaround time of petroleum
licence applications. Significant improvement has
also been made in the inspections and enforcement
of the Petroleum Licensing Conditions.

The petroleum landscape in Southern Africa is
changing and with that change, a number of new
challenges and opportunities are emerging. The oil
majors no longer find the downstream petroleum
sector as an attractive proposition. In line with the
NDP, the Department will make definitive decisions on
the petroleum refining capacity in South Africa in the
next 12 months. The IEP will also inform the decision
regarding new refining capacity requirements.

2.6 Electrification Programme

South Africa has a successful electrification
programme, with over 250 000 households electrified

during the 2015/16 financial year. Through an
integrated programme incorporating inter alia grid
and non-grid technologies, electrification of formal
housings has more than doubled from 34% in 1994
to 88% in 2015.

Notwithstanding the successes of our electrification
campaign, the Renewable Energy Independent Power
Producer Programme (REIPPP) is the Department’s
flagship electrification programme through which a
total of 4 322 MW has been procured in less than four
years. The IPP Programme will continue to evolve
in order to effectively respond to the planning and
development needs within the current energy context.

The petroleum
landscape in Southern
Africa is changing

and with that change,
a number of new
challenges and
opportunities are
emerging.

2.7 State-Owned Enterprises

The State-Owned Enterprises (SOEs) reporting
to the Department are instrumental in carrying
out the Department's programmes and promoting
developmental and transformational objectives.
Notwithstanding the governance challenges, the
Department continues to provide leadership and
strengthen its oversight function over the SOEs
in order for them to perform optimally. We are
confident that the emphasis on effective oversight
and accountability over these institutions will over
the medium to long term period make the SOEs
respond to the current governance challenges being
experienced. Significantly and under the leadership
of the Deputy President, we participate in the Inter-
Ministerial Committee (IMC) on SOEs championing
the turnaround strategies for Government-wide SOEs.
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2.8 International Relations Programmes

The Department continued to focus on securing the
country’s energy security through maintaining and
sourcing international agreements with countries of
interests. These engagements were in line with the
Department’s strategic objectives.

During the year under review, there has been a
significant increase in the number of international
programmes undertaken which focused primarily
on exchange programmes around capacity building,
creating access to funding and technology between
South Africa and other regions (Africa included).

InOctober2015, SouthAfricahosted the firstever South
African International Renewable Energy Conference
(SAIREC) on the African continent. Attended by over
6 000 delegates from 82 countries, the conference is
aimed at advancing renewable energy programmes
needed for regulatory frameworks for renewables,
and improving energy access, to mention a few.

2.9 Overview of the Financial Performance

During the year under review, the Department received
the budget allocation of R7.3 billion. Although the
Department has had an upward trend on its workload
and encountered challenges, especially with regard
to leadership vacancies, we have managed to spend
98% of our budget by the year end.

Owing to the low economic growth of the economy,
including the low revenue estimates of the country
over the 2016 Medium-Term Expenditure Framework
(MTEF) period relative to the estimates contained in
the Medium-Term Budget Policy Statement (MTBPS),
substantive budget reductions were implemented by
National Treasury and this is expected to continue
over the outer years of the MTEF period.

2.10 Human Resource Matters

Government is operating within a very tight fiscal
position and this has made it difficult to deal and or
reduce the vacancy rate within the Department due
to the need to manage and keep within the ceiling for
compensation of employees. Related to this is the fact
that the public sector wage negotiations concluded in
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2015 came in higher than planned, adding more strain
to the budget for compensation of employees.

At the beginning of the financial year, the Department
had planned to achieve a vacancy rate below 10%,
however, this target has not been met and instead sits
at 11.21% which is 1.21% above the planned target at
the beginning of financial year.

Despite the gloomy picture above, we can report
that in terms of staffing, the Department has 2% of
people with disabilities and 50% of women in Senior
Management Service (SMS) positions.

We also contribute immensely to the Government
Internship Programme with a total of 54 interns being
beneficiaries of this programme during the period
under review.

211 Conclusion

In conclusion, it is my pleasure to report to Executive
Authority of the Department, Minister Tina Joemat-
Pettersson and Deputy Minister Thembisile Majola,
that the Department has received an unqualified audit
report from the Auditor-General.

| would like to thank the Minister, the Deputy Minister
and the Chairperson of the Portfolio Committee on
Energy for their support and guidance during the year
under review. Their leadership has made it possible for
the Department to achieve most of the set objectives
amid difficult circumstances at times.

| would also like to extend my gratitude to the
oversight bodies, in particular the Department Audit
Committee, Team Energy, the leadership of our SOEs,
my colleagues in other Government departments, and
importantly our energy stakeholders for their tireless
efforts in making sure that the Department delivers on
its mandate of ensuring security of energy supply and
improving the quality of life of all South Africans.

@Y

Mr Thabane Zulu
Director-General
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Table 1: Overall performance

7 482 094

Responsible Minister

7 267 619
Minister of Energy

Administering Department Department of Energy

Accounting Officer Director-General of Energy

The Department’s budget allocation increased from
R7.44 billion in 2014/15 to R7.48 billion in 2015/16.
The original indicative allocation of R7.98 billion in
2015/16 was adjusted downward to R7.48 billion by
incorporating the following adjustments during the
2015 MTEF budget process:
- Compensation of employees: reduced by
R22.1 million
- Goods and services: reduced by R15.59 million
- Payments for capital assets — reduced by
R235 000
- Transfer  payments: net
R488.43 million made up of:
. Conditional grants to municipalities: reduced
by R86.16 million
. Departmental agencies (transfers to
entities): net-reduction of R47.16 million
. Public corporations and private
enterprises: net reduction of R338.48 million
. Membershipfeestoforeignentities—increase
of R4.13 million

reduction of

During the 2015 Adjusted Estimates of National

Expenditure process (AENE), the Department’s

2015 final budget allocation of R7.48 billion was

adjusted downwards to R7.27 billion. The factored

adjustments were:

- An additional amount of R35.53 million rolled over
from the 2014/15 financial year to the 2015/16
financial year to finalise payments carried over
from the previous financial year in respect of the
Integrated National Electrification Programme
(INEP) Non-Grid Project’s implementation.

- A budget reduction of R250 million from the
National Solar Water Heater Programme
(NSWHP) as savings identified by the National
Treasury.
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7142 117 125 502

Following the receipt of virement approvals from both
the Accounting Officer and the National Treasury to
utilise identified savings from certain main divisions of
the vote to defray excess expenditure in other main
divisions of the vote, the 2015/16 final appropriation is
shared by programmes as follows:

- Programme 1: Administration 3.82% including
international membership fees (R368 000),
Sector Education and Training Authority’s
(SETA) annual fees (R792 000) and households
(R3.63 million)

- Programme 2: Energy Policy and Planning 0.56%

- Programme 3: Petroleum and Petroleum
Products Regulation 0.95%

- Programme 4: Electrification and Energy
Programme and Project Management 80.14%,
including grant payments to Eskom and
municipalities in respect of the National
Electrification Programme totalling to
R5.76 billion

- Programme 5: Nuclear energy 9.01% including
transfer payments to Nuclear Energy Corporation
of South Africa (Necsa) (R580.35 million), National
Nuclear Regulator (NNR) (R21.49 million), and
international membership fees (R27.93 million)

- Programme 6: Clean Energy 5.52% including
transfer payments for South African National
Energy Development Institute (SANEDI)
(R64.86 million), the Energy Efficiency
and Demand Side Management (EEDSM)
Programme (R290.42 million) and international
membership fees (R1.33 million)



Table 2: Budget share per programme

Programme 1: Administration
Programme 2: Energy Planning & Policy
Programme 3: Petroleum & Petroleum Products Registration

Programme 4: Electrification & Energy Programme & Projects
Management

Programme 5: Nuclear Energy

Programme 6: Clean Energy

South African National Energy Development Institute
Generation International Forum

Foreign International Atomic Energy Agency & Renewable Energy
Agency

Demand Side & Efficiency Programme
Nuclear Energy Corporation of South Africa
National Nuclear Regulator

Integrated National Electrification Programme
Sector Education & Training Authorities
Households

International Energy Forum

International Renewable Energy Agency

Earmarked transfer payments to public entities, municipalities and other implementing
institutions amounted to R6.75 billion or 92.90% of the Department’s revised budget of
R7.27 billion while current expenditure, composed of compensation of employees and the

procurement of goods and services, accounted for 7.04%.

The Department withdrew its entire revised allocation of R7.27 billion during the 2015/16
financial year from the National Revenue Fund in order to fund various departmental
operations. From this withdrawn amount, R7.14 billion was utilised resulting in a budget
underspending of R125.50 million or 1.73%. The major contributors to this underspending
are the transfer payments and the current payments economic classifications with
Year-to-Date budget balances of R123 million or 1.82% and R2.29 million or 1.06%

respectively.

276 738
40 586
69 008
63 875

25 346
44 351
64 861

600
27 325

290 421
580 358
21487
5760175
792

368
1328
276 738

3.81
0.56
0.95
0.88

0.35
0.61
0.89
0.01
0.38

4.00
7.99
0.30
79.26
0.01
0.01
0.02
3.81
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Table 3: Departmental receipts

Sale of goods & 2 851 3885
services other than
capital assets

Transfers received 513 1059
Interest, dividends 28 489
& rent on land

Sales, capital, 111 111
assets

Transactions in 447 800 443

financial assets

Departmental revenue is mainly derived from the
receipt of administration fees for license applications
processed in terms of the Petroleum Products
Amendment Act, 2003 (Act No. 58 of 2003). The
2015/16 original collection target for administrative
fees or petroleum license fees was a total of
R2.51 million, representing 86.62% of the total
2015/16 revenue target of R2.89 million.

Collection targets for departmental receipts were
adjusted upwards following a mid-year review of
actual receipts during the 2015 AENE process.
Total projected departmental receipts were adjusted
upwards from R2.89 million to R3.95 million to cater for
increases in receipts for administrative fees, interest,
transactions in financial assets, sale of capital assets
and grants received from affiliated energy SETAs.

During the 2015/16 financial year, an amount of
R1.06 million was received by the Department
from affiliated energy SETAs. As per the National
Treasury’s requirements, this amount was surrendered
to the National Revenue Fund. The Department is
participating in several learner programmes that are
funded by SETAs and is used to implement learner
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-1 034 2 591 3133 -542
-546 - 1 587 -1 587
-461 90 47 43

-799 996 572 510 62

and training programmes. Although the funding was
surrendered to the National Revenue Fund during
the 2015/16 financial year, funding for SETA’s learner
programmes is appropriated annually as earmarked
allocations for learner and training programmes.

During the 2015/16 financial year, departmental
revenue increased significantly due to the receipts of
the following once-off amounts:

- The auction of redundant departmental vehicles
yielded R111 000. This amount was surrendered
to the National Revenue Fund in terms of Public
Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of
1999) requirements.

- Atotal of R800 million from Eskom representing
unspent funds from its tenure as the
implementing agent of the NSWHP. This is
following the termination of the DoE-Eskom
Memorandum of Agreement (MoA) in respect of
the NSWHP’s implementation in November 2014
and the approval of a revised contracting model
by Cabinet. This receipt was also surrendered
to the National Revenue Fund in terms of Public
Finance Management Act, 1999 requirements.



Table 4: Departmental expenditure

Compensation of employees 296 219 296 009 99.93 210
Goods & services 215588 213 299 98.94 2289
Transfers & subsidies 6751374 6 628 379 98.18 122 995
Payments for capital assets 4 432 4424 99.83 8
Payments for financial assets 6 5 90.99 1

The Department’s original appropriation for the
2015/16 financial year was R7.48 billion. Following
the conclusion of the mid-year adjustment process for
the AENE, this allocation was adjusted downwards
from R7.48 billion to R7.27 billion. Although the
National Treasury granted approval to roll funds of
R35.53 million over from the 2014/15 financial year to
the 2015/16 financial year to finalise payments carried
over from the previous financial year in respect of the
INEP Non-Grid Project, the National Treasury identified
savings totalling R250 million from the NSWHP during
the 2015 adjusted budget process thereby decreasing
this programme’s budget allocation.

In 2015/16, the NSWHP was originally appropriated
a total budget of R398.32 million, appropriated
exclusively for transfer to Eskom, as the implementing
agent of the programme. The NSWHP was announced
in 2009 with objectives to reduce electricity demand,
mitigate the adverse climate change, cushion the
poor against high electricity tariffs, facilitate the
creation of a local manufacturing industry and create
employment opportunities. Since the advent of the
NSWHP in 2009, the Department appointed Eskom
as the implementing agent through entering into a
MoA that specified a framework of funding conditions.

With the emergence and acceleration of South Africa’s
NNBP, Eskom procurement cycles became lengthy
(28.5 weeks at best). As a consequence, Eskom’s
pace of delivering the programme was negatively
affected as impacted by competing priorities within
Eskom. In October 2014, Eskom informed the
Department that only R500 million of the R1.6 billion

appropriated in 2014/15 can be utilised. Eskom’s slow

delivery of the programme was also attributed to a

number of implementation challenges, including, but

not limited to:

- Poor quality NSWHP installation workmanship
due to lack of training, thus resulting in the
programme’s reputational damage

- Unreliable verification of the number, functionality
status and location of installed systems due to
a lack of systematic reporting and independent
verification processes

- Lack of full life cycle management of installed
systems, etc.

The need to comply with the Solar Water Heater (SWH)
designation requirements prompted the Department
to launch a Request for Registration and Information
(RFRI) process. The RFRI process was concluded
in June 2014. This meant that Eskom, despite
the operational challenges, could only initiate the
procurement process three months into the 2014/15
financial year. On account of the aforementioned
challenges, a re-engineering of the programme by
the Department was undertaken culminating in the
termination of the DoE-Eskom MoA in November
2014. This was followed by the preparation and
submission to Cabinet of a request for approval of the
Revised Contracting Model. The Revised Contracting
Model addresses all the implementation challenges
previously faced by the programme. The approval
by Cabinet was obtained on 24 June 2015. The
Department subsequently implemented corrective
measures to implement and manage the programme
in-house.
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Cabinet further approved that the matter of the transfer
of funds be finalised in consultation with the Minister
of Finance. Due to the timing of the aforementioned
Cabinet approval, the Department could only initiate
the process of amending the appropriation of funding
for the implementation of the new SWH project and
related procurement models following the conclusion
of the 2015/16 AENE process. Due to delays in
implementing the revised contracting model, a total
amount of R250 million was surrendered to the
National Revenue Fund through the appropriate
channels. This consequently reduced the number
of targeted installation of SWH units from 45 141 to
15 000 units in the 2015/16 financial year.

The Department’s total expenditure for the year under
review was R7.14 billion or 98.27% of the total 2015/16
final appropriation of R7.27 billion. This resulted in an
unspent budget of R125.50 million or 1.73%.

The Department submitted a motivation to the
National Treasury for approval of roll-over funds for
the following:

- INEP Non-Grid Project, transfer payment of
R10.41 million that could not be disbursed due to
late receipt of invoices from service providers as
well as a late uptake of systems from one of the
concession areas, i.e. KwaZulu-Natal.

- EEDSM - Transfer payments of R112.52 million
relating to the implementation of the NSWHP that
could not be finalised before 31 March 2016 due
to the technical and complexity of the bid process
and subsequent delays in the appointment of
services providers.

- Non-personnel current expenditure — A total
of R3.83 million that was not paid to service
providers before 31 March 2016 in relation to the
measurement and verification of energy savings
achieved from the implementation of energy
saving projects by municipalities participating in
the EEDSM Programme.

3.1 Budget Variance per Economic
Classification

3.1.1 Compensation of employees

The expenditure in this economic classification is on
par with the revised or final appropriation.
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3.1.2 Goods and services

The underspending of R2.29 million or 1.06% of the

total adjusted budget is mainly attributable to the

delayed appointment of service providers, hence the

late commencement of projects resulting in incomplete

projects at year-end as reflected by the underspending

in the consultants and business advisory cost item.

The affected projects are:

- A study and data collection on the energy footprint
and energy savings potential in heavy industry

- An independent technical audit, Measurement
and \Verification (M&V) of energy savings
achieved from the implementation of municipal
EEDSM programmes.

A request has been
submitted to the
National Treasury

to roll-over a total of
R122.94 million to the
2016/17 financial year
to finalise non-grid
electrification projects
and implement the
NSWHP.

3.1.3 Transfers and subsidies

The Department disbursed payments totalling
R6.63 billion to public entities, municipalities and
implementing agents during the year under review,
which resulted in a budget underspending of

R123 million or 1.82% at year-end. The underspending

is mainly due to:

- A total of R10.41 million budget balance from
earmarked funds for transfer to INEP Non-Grid
service providers that could not be transferred
due to the late uptake of systems in a certain
concession area and the late receipt of claims
from some service providers.



- A total of R112.52 million earmarked for the
implementation of the NSWHP. After the
re-engineering of the programme by the
Department, the DoE-Eskom MoA for the
programme’s implementation was terminated.
The Department proceeded with the necessary
engagements with Cabinet in order to obtain
Cabinet’s approval for the Revised Contracting
Model. The Appropriation Act, 2014 (Act No. 33
of 2014) which listed Eskom as the implementing
agent, was amended through the adjustments
budgeting process listing the Department as
the implementing agent, thereby replacing
Eskom. The procurement process was delayed
and the evaluation of bids also took longer
than anticipated due to the complex technical
requirements.

Arequest has been submitted to the National Treasury
to roll-over a total of R122.94 million to the 2016/17
financial year to finalise non-grid electrification
projects and implement the NSWHP.

3.1.4 Payment for capital assets

The expenditure in this economic classification is on
par with the revised or final appropriation.

Table 5: Programme expenditure

Administration 277 898 277 767

Energy Policy & 40 586 38 095
Planning

Petroleum and 69 008 68 958
Petroleum

Products

Regulation

Electrification 5824 050 5820 485
and Energy

Programme

& Project

Management
655 116
400 961

655 029
281783

Nuclear Energy

Clean Energy

3.1.5 Expenditure trend

Spending in the 2015/16 financial year started
slowly with expenditure of only 4.25% during
April 2016. Expenditure increased during May 2016
resulting in 26.08% of the budget being utilised at the
end of the first quarter. Spending increased further
during the second quarter to 36.53%, and with a total
of 62.60% of the budget being expended by mid-year.
Spending decreased in the third and fourth quarters to
22.94% and 12.73% respectively resulting in a total of
35.67% of the budget being disbursed in the second
half of the financial year. The spending trend during
the last quarter was significantly affected by the non-
disbursement of transfer payments to SWHP and non-
grid service providers as a result of the challenges
experienced in these programmes.

Expenditure was significantly high during the months
of May 2016 (16.70% of total budget spent) attributable
to transfer payments to Eskom under the INEP Eskom
grant which could not be transferred in April 2015 as
planned due to the delayed gazetting of the 2015/16
Division of Revenue Act, 2015 (Act No. 1 of 2015).
The transfer figures for July 2015 and September
2015 (13.92% and 14.32% respectively of total budget
spent) are attributable to transfer payments made to
Eskom and municipalities under the INEP.

131 260 601 257 168 3433

2 491 53 053 41749 11 304

50 78 210 64 548 13 662

3 565 4217 327 4180973 36 354

87 846 529 845 418 1111

119178 1982074 830 257 1151817
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3.2 Budget Variance per Programme
3.2.1 Programme 1: Administration

The expenditure in this programme is on par with the
revised or final appropriation.

3.2.2 Programme 2: Energy Policy and Planning

The R2.49 million or 6.14% budget underspending
in this area is mainly due to planned projects
which were not finalised by year end as anticipated
affecting and leading to budget underspending in the
item “Consultants and business advisory services”
(R2.11 million) attributable to challenges experienced
in the project to study and collect data on the energy
footprint and energy savings potential in heavy
industry. Subsequent to the awarding of the contract,
the appointed service provider was liquidated and
the Department’'s process of replacing this provider
with another provider, was not successful. A budget
saving of (R265 000) is located in various items
such as consumables, advertising, catering and
communication attributable to cost saving measures
while vacancies resulted in an underspending
(R115 000) in the compensation of employees’
classification.

3.2.3 Programme 3: Petroleum and Petroleum
Products Regulation

The expenditure in this programme is on par with the
revised or final appropriation.

3.2.4 Programme 4: Electricity and Energy
Programme and Project Management

The budget underspending of R3.56 million or 0.06%
in this area is mainly due to the underspending in
the INEP Non-Grid Project (R10.41 million) for the
installation of solar home systems as a result of a
late uptake of systems in one of the concession
areas as well as late submission of claims by service
providers. A request has been submitted to the
National Treasury to roll this balance of R10.41 million
over to the 2016/17 financial year to enable service
providers to complete work in their designated areas
and also to allow proper evaluation of work performed
prior to final payments. This programme also had a
budget shortfall in the current payments area due
to budget overspending in travel and subsistence
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(R2.84 million) related to verification activities linked
to completed and unfinished electrification projects
and travel for Public Participation Programme (PPP)
events, venues and facilities (R2.67 million) and
advertising/promotional items (R222 000) related to
PPP events; a total of twelve events were conducted
during the year under review. The administrative fees
(R551 000) and fleet services (R203 000) items also
contributed to the overspending due to travel agency
costs and consumables linked to the travel undertaken.
The balance of the overspending (R360 000) is found
in various operational items mainly insurance for
subsidised vehicles, leases for photocopy machines,
communication etc., due to limited resources within
this programme.

3.2.5 Programme 5: Nuclear Energy

The expenditure in this programme is on par with the
revised or final appropriation.

3.2.6 Programme 6: Clean Energy

The R119.18 million or 29.72% budget underspending
is in the consultants and business advisory services
item (R6.01 million) mainly attributable to a project
which could not be finalised before year-end as
anticipated for an independent technical audit, M&V
of energy savings achieved from the implementation
of the municipal EEDSM Programme as well as the
late completion of the procurement process for the
implementation of the NSWHP (R112.52 million).

After the termination of the DoE-Eskom MoA for
the implementation of the NSWHP, Cabinet was
consulted in the current financial year for approval of
a Revised Contracting Model. This was followed by
the amendment of the Appropriation Act, 2014, during
the Adjustments period in September 2016, listing the
Department as the implementer of the programme
replacing Eskom. The start of the procurement process
and the evaluation of tenders which took longer than
anticipated, negatively affected the project in the year
under review. The procurement process was however,
completed with the preferred bidders being appointed.

A request has been submitted to National Treasury to
roll-over funding for both the M&V of energy savings
achieved from the implementation of the municipal
EEDSM Programme and the implementation of the
NSWHP.



Table 6: Major spending areas

Departmental Expenditure Share 2015/16

Actual Expenditure Expenditure Share
R’000 %

Compensation of employees 296 009 414
Goods & services 213 299 2.99
Transfers & subsidies 6 628 379 92.81
Payments for capital assets 4424 0.06

5
7142117

Payments for financial assets 0.00

As can be seen in Table 6, current expenditure, consisting of compensation of employees
and the procurement of goods and services, accounted for 7.13% of the Department’s
2015/16 total expenditure of R7.14 billion.

Earmarked transfer payments to public entities, municipalities and other implementing
institutions amounted to R6.63 billion or 92.81% of the Department’s total expenditure
during the 2015/16 financial year.

Major spending items under the category of goods and services are included in Table 7.

Table 7: Major cost drivers

Actual Spending :
Expenditure Share
Expenditure Item: Goods & Services 31 March 2016

R’000 %

Travel & subsistence 65 249 30.59
Operating leases 34 063 15.97
Consultants: Business & advisory services 25828 12.11
Venues & facilities 15373 7.21
Advertising 13785 6.46
Computer services 9 839 4.61
Communication 7613 3.57
Consumables 5695 2.67
Administrative fees 5663 2.65
Operating payments 4 898 2.30
Training & development 4 664 219
Audit cost — external 4233 1.98
Property payments 4082 1.91
Agency & support/outsourced services 3305 1.55
Contractors 2 560 1.20
Catering 1961 0.92
Fleet services 1586 0.74
Minor assets 1036 0.49
Legal services 924 0.43
Bursaries (employees) 610 0.29
Transport provided as part of the Departmental activities 238 0.1
Rental & hiring 93 0.04
Entertainment 1 0.00
Total 213 299 100.00
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The top five cost items collectively accounted for
72.34% of the total goods and services expenditure
of R213.30 million during the 2015/16 financial year.
Comparatively with the previous financial years,
the top three costs in the Department are still travel
and subsistence, operating leases and consultants/
business, and advisory services. The Department’s
spending on goods and services is dominated by
travel and subsistence costs, accounting for 30.59%
of the total goods and services expenditure. This
is in relation to certain core functions performed by
individual branches such as petroleum license and
site inspections by the Petroleum and Petroleum
Products Regulation branch, the verification of
electricity connections by the Electrification and
Energy Programme and Projects Management
Branch and international obligations by all branches.
Of the total spent on this cost, 76.74% was spent on
domestic travel while 23.26% went to foreign travel.

3.3 Virement Approvals

3.3.1 Monetary contribution to the International
Atomic Energy Agency for the
Renovation of the Nuclear Applications
Labaratories Project

The International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA) serves
as the world’s foremost international governmental
forum for scientific and technical cooperation in the
peaceful use of nuclear energy. It was established as
an autonomous organisation of the United Nations
in 1957. Currently the services, programmes and
activities of the IAEA are based on the needs of
some 162 member states. The IAEA, in conjunction
with member states and multiple partners worldwide
promotes safe, secure and peaceful nuclear
technologies. South Africa has been a member state
since 1957.

The agency assists member states in the development
of their nuclear infrastructure through the transfer of
relevant data, expertise and technology. The agency’s
work rests on three pillars namely; nuclear technology,
nuclear safety and nuclear non-proliferation. Nuclear
non-proliferation is the verification that nuclear
technology is being used only for peaceful purposes.
A major part of the work focuses on programmes
that can be safely applied to everyday life in food,
agriculture, health, industry radiation protection and
public information.
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At the 55th Session of the General Conference, the
Secretariat was called upon to modernise the IAEA's
Nuclear Applications Laboratories at Seibersdorf,
Austria, in order to ensure the maximum benefits to
member states, especially developing states. Further
resolutions were passed at subsequent conferences
requiring the Nuclear Applications Laboratories to be
fully fit-for-purpose, complying with health and safety
standards.

The 56th Session of the General Conference urged
the Secretariat to expedite the planning process for
the refurbishment of the laboratories. The General
Conference invited member states to make financial
commitments and contributions, in-kind contributions
and active support for the attainment of the goal
of completion of the Renovation of the Nuclear
Applications Labaratories (ReNuAL) project. The
General Conference also encouraged the Secretariat
to fully explore and establish resource mobilisation
mechanisms, including the Friends of ReNuAL. The
Friends of ReNuAL is a group of member states in
support of the project and continues to grow under
the co-chairmanship of South Africa and Germany.
Current members are South Africa, Germany, Brazil,
China, India, the Russian Federation, Kenya, France,
Japan, Indonesia, Malaysia, Egypt, Saudi Arabia,
Kuwait, South Korea and Austria.

The Minister of Energy granted approval in
November 2014 that an amount of R3 million is
made available as a monetary contribution for this
purpose. In terms of the Treasury Regulation 21.1,
the Accounting Officer may approve gifts, donations
and sponsorships of state money and other movable
property in the interest of the state. However, when
such cash amounts exceed R100 000 per case, the
approval of the relevant legislature must be sought
by including the item separately in the Appropriation
Bill. Taking into consideration the timing of the
approval granted by the Minister, the Department
could only request approval for the once-off monetary
contribution of R3 million to the extra-budgetary funds
for ReNuAL (IAEA) as a separate item in the 2015/16
Adjustments Appropriation Bill, 2015 (Bill No. 28 of
2015).

National Treasury subsequently granted approval
in September 2015 for the creation of a new once-
off transfer payment to international organisations,
R3 million, for the payment of a monetary contribution
to the IAEA during the 2015/16 financial year as per
Table 8.



Table 8: Reprioritisation of funding

Programme 5: Nuclear Energy, Sub- 3000
programme: Nuclear Safety & Technology,
Iltem: Goods & Services

3.3.2 Finance Committee Recommendations

During a scheduled Finance Committee meeting

in August 2015, the financial performance of the

Department for the period ended 31 July 2015 was

presented to members. The goods and services item

reflected the Year-to-Date budget underspending of

R16.27 million or 23.50%. The underspending was

mainly in the following Branches:

- Programme 2: Energy Policy and Planning —
R3.96 million below budget attributable to the
outstanding finalisation of processes to activate
projects carried over from the 2014/15 financial

year
- Programme 3: Petroleum and Petroleum Products
Regulation — R4.06 million underspending

attributable to an outstanding claim from the
service provider for the Fuel Sampling and
Testing Project

- Programme 5: Nuclear Energy — R2.81 million
underspending attributable to the delayed
commencement of planned projects

Programme 5: Nuclear Energy, Sub- 3000
programme: Nuclear Safety & Technology,
Item: Transfers & Subsidies (IAEA)

- Programme 6: Clean Energy — R7.25 million
underspending attributable to delayed projects

The Finance Committee recommended the re-
allocation of R4 million to the Communications
division to fund the existing overspending in that area
and provide interim funding for critical operational
and project expenditure. This amount was redirected
from savings under Programme 2: Energy Policy
and Planning (R1 million), Programme 5: Nuclear
Energy (R500 thousand), Programme 3: Petroleum
and Petroleum Products Regulation (R1 million) and
Programme 6: Clean Energy (R1.5 million).

The Accounting Officer subsequently granted
preliminary virement approval on the
15 September 2015 in terms of Section 43(1) of the
Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.1 of
1999), to shift funds between main divisions of the
vote (programmes) towards the defrayment of excess
expenditure within the vote as per Table 9.

Table 9: Reprioritisation of funding for goods and services as per the August 2015 meeting

Programme 2: Energy Policy & Planning, 1000
Sub-programme: Energy Planning, ltem:
Goods & Services

Programme 3: Petroleum & Petroleum 1000
Products Regulation, Sub-programme:

Regional Petroleum & Petroleum Products

Regulation, Item: Goods & Services

Programme 5: Nuclear Energy, Sub- 250
programme: Nuclear Safety & Technology,
Iltem: Goods & Services

Programme 5: Nuclear Energy, Sub- 250
programme: Nuclear Policy, Iltem: Goods &

Services

Programme 6: Clean Energy, Sub- 1500

programme: Energy Efficiency, Item Goods &
Services

Programme 1: Administration, Sub- 4 000
programme: Corporate Services,

Responsibility: Communication, ltem: Goods

& Services
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November 2015 Meeting

During a scheduled Finance Committee meeting in
November 2015, the financial performance of the
Department for the period ended 31 October 2015
was presented to members. The goods and services
item reflected the Year-to-Date budget underspending
of R15.06 million or 11.98% mainly in the line function.
The underspending in Branches, Energy Policy and
Planning (R6.07 million), Petroleum and Petroleum
Products Regulation (R4.89 million), Nuclear Energy
(R8.20 million) and Clean Energy (R4.94 million) is
attributable to delayed planned projects.

The committee recommended the re-allocation of
R6 million from identified savings to the Ministry to
fund the existing overspending and provide interim

funding for operational requirements of the Ministry
relating to domestic travel, international obligations
and parliamentary and related sessional expenditure.
This additional allocation to the Ministry was redirected
from savings under Programme 2: Energy Policy
and Planning (R3 million), Programme 5: Nuclear
Energy (R1 million) and Programme 6: Clean Energy
(R2 million).

The Accounting Officer subsequently granted
preliminary virement approval in terms of Section
43(1) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999,
to shift funds between main divisions of the vote
(programmes) towards the defrayment of excess
expenditure within the vote as per Table 10.

Table 10: Reprioritisation of funding for goods and services as per the November 2015 meeting

Programme 2: Energy Policy & Planning, 3000
Sub-programme: Energy Planning,
Iltem: Goods & Services

Programme 5: Nuclear Energy, Sub- 500
programme: Nuclear Safety & Technology,
Iltem: Goods & Services

Programme 5: Nuclear Energy, Sub- 500
programme: Nuclear Policy,
Iltem: Goods & Services

Programme 6: Clean Energy, Sub- 2000
programme: Energy Efficiency,
Iltem: Goods & Services

3.3.3 Transfer payments to the Public Service
Sector Education and Training Authority

In June 2014, the National Treasury granted approval
to the Department to implement new transfer
payments to SETAs as determined in Circular Human
Resource Development 1 of 2013 issued by the
Department of Public Service and Administration in
2013. The Department subsequently incorporated
transfer payments to the Energy and Water Sector
Education and Training Authority (EWSETA), the
Chemical Industries Sector Education and Training
Authority (CHIETA) and the Public Service Sector
Education and Training Authority (PSETA) in the
2015 Estimates of National Expenditure (ENE)
totalling R0.92 million, R0.99 million and R1.05 million
in the 2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18 financial
years, respectively.
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Programme 1: Administration, Sub- 6 000
programme: Ministry, Responsibility: Minister,
Iltem: Goods & Services

The National Treasury subsequently issued a circular
to all national departments and provincial treasuries
in January 2015 indicating that departments
affiliated to the PSETA, are no longer required to
implement transfer payments to the PSETA from
2015/16 onwards, as a sustainable mechanism for
funding the PSETA over the 2015 MTEF period was
established with a single transfer for PSETA through
the Public Service and Administration Vote. This
necessitated a reclassification of funds, R130 000,
appropriated as transfer payments to the PSETA
within Programme 1: Administration to the Goods and
Services Classification for Departmental Training and
Development Requirements as per Table 11.



Table 11: Reprioritisation of funding for transfer payments to Departmental agencies

Programme 1: Administration, Sub-programme:
Corporate Services, Item: Transfer payments to
departmental agencies (PSETA)

3.3.4 Reclassification of funding for the
implementation of the new framework and
procurement models for the National Solar
Water Heater Project

Since the advent of the NSWHP in 2009, the
Department outsourced the implementation function
of the programme to Eskom through entering into a
MoA that specified a framework of funding conditions.
As a result of competing priorities at Eskom, the pace
of delivering the programme was negatively affected
as impacted by competing priorities within Eskom.

The need to comply with the SWH designation
requirements prompted the Department to launch a
RFRI process which was concluded in June 2014. This
meant that Eskom, despite the operational challenges,
could only initiate the procurement process three
months into the 2014/15 financial year. On account
of the aforementioned challenges, a re-engineering of

130 Programme 1: Administration, Sub- 130

programme: Corporate Services,
Iltem: Goods and Services (Training &
Development)

the programme became inevitable. This culminated
in the termination of the DoE-Eskom MoA in
November 2014, and in consultation with National
Treasury, was followed by the preparation of the
request to Cabinet for approval of the Revised
Contracting Model.

Following Cabinet's approval of the Revised
Contracting Model, a submission was forwarded to the
National Treasury to reclassify the NSWHP’s funding
enabling the implementation of the programme in
Department. Approval was subsequently granted in
accordance with Section 43 (4) of the Public Finance
Management Act, 1999 and Treasury Regulation
6.3.1 to reclassify funding totalling to R3 98.32 million
originally exclusively appropriated as transfer
payments to Eskom for the SWH Programme as new
transfer payments to private enterprises and goods
and services to enable the implementation of the
newly approved framework by the Department as as
per Table 12.
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Table 12: Reprioritisation of funding for transfer payments to public corporations

Programme 6: Clean Energy, Sub- 398 315 Programme 6: Clean Energy, Sub-
programme: Energy Environment & programme: Energy Environment &
Efficiency, Item: Transfer Payments to Public Efficiency, Item: Transfer Payments to Private
Corporation (Eskom Solar Heater Project) Enterprises (SWH Manufacturers)

Programme 6: Clean Energy, Sub-
programme: Energy Environment &

Efficiency, Item: Goods and Services

(Outsourced Services: &)

Programme 6: Clean Energy, Sub-
programme: Energy Environment &

Efficiency, Item: Transfer Payments to Private
Enterprises (SWH Training Service Providers)

Programme 6: Clean Energy, Sub-
programme: Energy Environment &

Efficiency, Item: Transfer Payments to
Private Enterprises (SWH Installation Service

Providers)

Programme 6: Clean Energy, Sub-
programme: Energy Environment &
Efficiency, Item: Goods & Services

(Professional Services: Project Management)

Programme 6: Clean Energy, Sub-
programme: Energy Environment &
Efficiency, Item: Goods & Services

(Professional Services: Feasibility Checks)

Programme 6: Clean Energy, Sub-
programme: Energy Environment &
Efficiency, ltem: Goods & Services

(Professional Services: Communication)

3.3.5 Transfer payments to international
organisations for the payment of international
membership fees and contributions

The International Energy Forum

South Africa is a member of the International Energy Forum (IEF) which aims to foster
greater mutual understanding and awareness of common energy interests among its
members. The 74 member countries of the Forum are signatories to the IEF Charter,
which outlines the framework of the global energy dialogue through this inter-governmental
arrangement.

Covering all six continents and accounting for around 90% of global supply and demand
for oil and gas, the IEF is unique in that it comprises not only of consuming and producing
countries of the International Energy Agency (IEA) and Organisation of the Petroleum
Exporting Countries (OPEC), but also transit states and major players outside of their
memberships, including Argentina, China, India, Mexico, Oman, Russia and South Africa.
Sitting alongside other important developed and developing economies on the 31 strong
IEF executive board, these key nations are active supporters of the global energy dialogue
through the IEF.
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The IEF is the neutral facilitator of informal, open,
informed and continuing global energy dialogue.
Recognising their interdependence in the field of
energy, the member countries of the IEF cooperate
under the neutral framework of the Forum to foster
greater mutual understanding and awareness of
common energy interests in order to ensure global
energy security. The IEF’s biennial Ministerial
Meetings are the world’s largest gathering of Energy
Ministers. The magnitude and diversity of this
engagement is a testament to the position of the IEF
as a neutral facilitator and honest broker of solutions
in the common interest.

South Africa is a
member of the
International Energy
Forum which aims

to foster greater
mutual understanding
and awareness of
common energy
interests.

International Renewable Energy Agency

South Africa is a member state of the International
Renewable Energy Agency (IRENA). IRENA seeks
to make an impact in the world of renewable energy
by maintaining a clear and independent position,
providing a range of reliable and well-understood
services that complement those already offered by the
renewable energy community and gather existing, but
scattered, activities around a central hub.

The international renewable energy community is
large, resourceful, and rapidly evolving. IRENA does
not duplicate what others are doing, but seeks out,
establishes and develops new synergies, facilitates
dialogue, and information and best practice sharing.
Cooperation at the global, regional and national levels,
knowledge sharing, enabling policies and enhanced
capacity, as well as the encouragement of investment
flows and strengthened technology and innovation,

are essential elements in the IRENA’s efforts. IRENA
is positioning itself as a platform for all-inclusive
cooperation where stakeholders can make a positive
contribution to the common goals. This cooperation
and partnerships are essential underpinning of
IRENA’s work.

Contribution to the African Regional Cooperation
Agreement for Research Development and Training
related to Nuclear Science and Technology (Fund)
Southern African countries that are members of the
IAEA requested assistance from the IAEA to assist in
establishing a regional arrangement for cooperation
in the field of nuclear science and technology in
Africa that is similar to existing regional cooperation
agreements in Asia and Latin America. In April
1990, the African Regional Cooperation Agreement
for Research Development and Training related to
Nuclear Science and Technology (AFRA) came into
existence.

AFRA countries have full ownership of the design,
implementation and monitoring of cooperative projects,
which submits projects to the IAEA for assistance
through the AFRA Field Management Committee
(AFRA-FMC). The AFRA — FMC is a regional entity
that has been empowered by AFRA member states to
conceptualise, plan, coordinate, monitor and evaluate
activities and actively participates in fundraising and
developing partnerships in the private and public
sectors within and outside Africa.

South Africa become an AFRA member state in
1990. The Department administers all issues within
the scope of nuclear technology and the AFRA
programmes. This function also includes national
participation in the IAEA Technical Cooperation
Programme (TCP), IAEA and AFRA programmes.
This is achieved through the endorsement of
applications received from stake holders and relevant
institutions to participate in IAEA, TCP and AFRA.

The International Atomic Energy Agency

Per Section 33(1) of the Nuclear Energy Act, 1999 (Act
No. 46 of 1999), the Minister of Energy acts as the
national authority of the Republic for the purpose of
the implementation and application of the Safeguards
Agreement and any additional protocols in order to
detect and identify nuclear material intended to be
used for peaceful nuclear activities. In order to fulfil
these responsibilities, Section 33(2) of the Nuclear
Energy Act requires the Minister to liaise with the
International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA) on an
ongoing basis regarding, amongst others, negotiations
on subsidiary arrangements under the Safeguards
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Agreement, furnishing and updating of information
regarding the design of nuclear installations and
sites and the provision of facilities and support to the
inspectors of the IAEA. Section 33(5) further requires
that the Minister of Energy pay all fees that are from
time to time due to the IAEA on behalf of the Republic.

South Africa has been a member of the IAEA for
decades and has been both a recipient and provider
of services emanating from the agency. As a member
state of the IAEA, permanent member of the Board of
Directors and actively participating in nuclear energy,
safety, technology, security and disarmament, South
Africa has contributed to efforts of ensuring that
nuclear energy is used for peaceful purposes like
power generation as well as medical, industrial and
agricultural initiatives. This is even more important
now that the country is looking at an expanded nuclear
programme, including participation in what is regarded
as ‘sensitive’ activities (uranium enrichment).

The IAEA annual fee is due in January of each year.
Each member state is required to pay membership
fees as determined every year by the Board of
Directors and endorsed by the General Conference

Table 13: Reprioritisation of funding for membership fees

Programme 6: Clean Energy, Sub- 5680
programme: Energy Efficiency, Item:

Transfers & Subsidies (Private enterprises

— NSWHP)

of the IAEA. South Africa’s 2015 assessment of
its contribution was assessed at US$141 068 and
€994 842. The full amount for the 2015 financial
assessment was subsequently paid in February 2015.

Although a financial provision of funds totalling
R16.155 million was made in the 2014/15 ENE
under the item transfer payments to international
organisations, the increase as a result of the change
in foreign currency exchange rates, was not provided
for in the 2014/15 budget. This consequently resulted
in a deficit of R4.329 million.

Approvals granted by the National Treasury for
implementation of new transfer payments for
international membership fees

The National Treasury granted approval in accordance
with Section 43 (4) of the Public Finance Management
Act, 1999 and Treasury Regulation 6.3.1(b) to shift
funds between economic classifications within
programmes to introduce new transfer payments to
international organisations totalling R5.680 million for
the payment of annual membership fees during the
2015/16 financial year as per Table 13.

Programme 1: Administration, Sub- 368
programme: Governance & Compliance,
Item: Transfer & subsidies (IEF)

Programme 5: Nuclear Energy, Sub- 3984
programme: Nuclear Safety & Technology,
Item: Transfer & subsidies (AFRA)

Programme 6: Clean Energy, Sub- 1328
programme: Energy Efficiency, Item:
Transfers & Subsidies (IRENA)

The National Treasury further granted approval in accordance with Section 43 (4) of
the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 and Treasury Regulation 6.3.1(b) to shift
funds between main divisions of the vote to increase transfer payments to the IAEA by
R4.329 million for the payment of annual membership fees during the 2014/15 financial

year as per Table 14.
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Table 14: Reprioritisation of funding for membership fees

Programme 6: Clean Energy, Sub- 4 329

programme: Energy Efficiency, Item:
Transfers & Subsidies (Private enterprises
— NSWHP)

3.3.6 2015/16 Compensation of employees

Programme 5: Nuclear Energy, Sub- 4 329
programme: Nuclear Safety & Technology,
Item: Transfer & subsidies (IAEA)

Following the finalisation of the 2015 MTEF and subsequent publication of the 2015
ENE, the following final allocations were made through the 2015 Appropriation Act for

compensation of employees:

Table 15: 2016 MTEF compensation of employee budget allocations

Administration

Energy Policy & Planning

Petroleum & Petroleum Products Regulation
Programme & Project Management

Nuclear Energy

Clean Energy

During the 2014 MTEF process, the Department
was allocated an additional budget of R66 million
over the three year MTEF period for additional
human resources commencing with R20 million in
2014/15, R22 million in 2015/16 and R24 million in
2016/17. Significant progress was made with the
filling of vacancies and new posts associated with
the additional funding allocated to capacitate the
branches with specialised skills during the second
quarter of the 2014/15 financial year. Unfortunately,
the recruitment process for these positions could not
be finalised by the end of the 2014/15 financial year,
i.e. by 31 March 2015.

Due to the fact that the recruitment process was at
an advanced stage, it had to be continued into the
2015/16 financial year. At the end of March 2015,
the Department had 587 filled positions, consisting
of 526 permanently filled positions and 61 temporary
positions filled additional to the establishment.

At the end of the first period of the 2015/16 financial
year, i.e. April 2015, 606 positions were filled consisting
of 534 permanently filled positions and 72 temporary
positions filled additional to the establishment. The
increase in permanently filled positions by 8 positions
reflected the progress made in the recruitment process
which commenced during the previous financial year.

131 214 140 782 149 390
31735 33 894 35928
50 926 54 389 57 653
38 864 41 507 43 998
18 479 19735 20919
18 261 19 501 20672

During the 2015 MTEF process, expenditure
reductions were implemented across all programmes
within the Department and included amongst others
a reduction in compensation of employees totalling
R22.1 million in 2015/16, R23.63 million in 2016/17
and R26 million in 2017/18. This effectively cancelled
the additional allocations to Department during
the 2014 MTEF for additional human resources of
R20 million, R22 million and R24 million in 2014/15
2015/16 and 2016/17 respectively.

In responding to the reduced budget allocation,
the Finance Committee during a meeting on
29 January 2015, recommended that all branches
absorb the shortfall, approximated at R28 million,
equally. Branches were then requested to identify
positions to be frozen from 2015/16 onwards until a
review is enabled by additional allocations from the
National Treasury. The consolidation of responses
received only yielded 14% of the shortfall. The
National Treasury subsequently granted approval
in accordance with Section 43 (4) of the Public
Finance Management Act, 1999 and Treasury
Regulation 6.3.1(b) to shift funds between economic
classification categories within programmes to
increase compensation of employees during the
2015/16 financial year as per Table 16.
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Table 16: Reprioritisation of funding for compensation of employees’ shortfalls

Programme 6: Clean Energy, Sub- 6 740
programme: Energy Efficiency, Item:

Transfers & Subsidies (Private enterprises

— NSWHP)

3.3.7 Final virement approval — 2015/16

At year-end, all deficits reflected on individual
programmes and sub-programmes are cleared as part
of the annual financial year-end process and standard
practice. These adjustments are authorised by means
of a final virement approval to cater for the excess
expenditure. To ensure that final budget allocations
are aligned with actual expenditure, funds must be
shifted from savings within the respective programmes
and sub-programmes to cover excess expenditure
incurred by individual sub-programmes. Although all
programmes reflected a total underspending at year-
end, several sub-programmes within main divisions of
the vote reflected an overspending at year end.

Several programmes reflected a deficit on the

item compensation of employees following the

implementation of the virement approval granted

by National Treasury to increase compensation of

employees by R6.74 million and proposed adjustments

to align budgets with actual expenditure included the

clearing of the following deficits:

- Programme 1: Administration — R890 000

- Programme 3: Petroleum and Petroleum
Products Regulation — R1.59 million

- Programme 4: Electrification and Energy
Programme and Project Management
R2.95 million

An amount of R3.5 million was redirected from the
underspending of R9.94 million within the item goods
and services to fund deficits under the following
programmes:

- Programme 1: Administration, Item: Transfer
Payments to Households (Leave gratuities,
post-retirement benefits, bursaries paid to
households) — R3.25 million
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Programme 1: Administration: ltem: 6 740
Compensation of Employees

- Programme 5: Nuclear Energy, Item: Transfer
Payments to Households (bursaries paid to
households) — R25 000

- Atotal R5 459.59 written-off as losses against the
Department vote. (Programme 1: Administration,
Iltem: Theft and Losses (R1 000)

- Programme 4: Electrification and Energy
Programme and Project Management, Item:
Theft and Losses (R5 000)

- Programme 1: Administration, Item: Capital
Assets — R225 000

Following the implementation of the above mentioned

virement approval on the goods and services item,

adjustments within the same goods and services

classification became necessary in order to align

budgets with actual expenditure due to the following

results:

- Programme 1: Administration — deficit of R13.83
million

- Programme 4: Electrification and Energy
Programme and Project Management — deficit of
R7.28 million

- Programme 3: Petroleum and Petroleum
Products Regulation — surplus of R5.96 million

- Programme 5: Nuclear Energy — surplus of
R4.96 million

- Programme 6: Clean Energy — surplus of
R13.54 million

Alltheaboveadjustments culminatedinthe adjustments
as reflected in the column “Propose Final virement”
which were approved by National Treasury and the
Accounting Officer.



Table 17: Appropriation statement as at 31 March 2016

Programme 1: 246 598 13 108

Administration

Programme 2: 44 096 -3 000
Energy Policy &

Planning

Programme 3: 73 378 -
Petroleum &
Petroleum Products

Regulation

Programme 4: 5813 822 -
Electrification &
Energy Programme &

Project Management

Programme 5: 653 898 7313

Nuclear Energy

Programme 6: 435 827 -17 421

Clean Energy

After the capturing of virements approved by both

the National Treasury and the Accounting Officer as

mentioned above, claims were received from other

Government departments for services rendered to the

Department during the 2015/16 financial year. The

received claims were as follows:

- Government Communication and Information
System (GCIS): R2.148 million for the South
African  International Renewable Energy
Conference (SAIREC) communication services
charged to Programme 6: Clean Energy

- GCIS: R489 000 for the campaign to cover the
Nuclear New Build Programme (NNBP) and
nuclear education on radio stations charged to
Programme 5: Nuclear Energy

18 192 31300 277 898 12.69
-250 -3 250 40 846 -7.37

-4 370 -4 370 69 008 -5.96
10 228 10 228 5824 050 0.18
-6 355 958 654 856 0.15
-17 445 -34 866 400 961 -8.00

The processing of these costs increased the
Department’'s total expenditure for the 2015/16
financial year to R7.140 billion and a budget balance
of R127.263 billion or 1.75%. The Accounting Officer
subsequently granted a second final virement approval
for the 2015/16 financial year in terms of Section
43(1) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999
(ActNo.10f1999), to utilise savings under programmes
towards the defrayment of excess expenditure under
other programmes and sub-programmes within
the vote and to align budget allocations with actual
expenditure for the 2015/16 financial year as per
Table 18.
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Table 18: Final appropriation statements as at 31 March 2016

Programme 1: 246 598 31300

Administration

Programme 2: 44 096 -3 250
Energy Policy &
Planning

Programme 3: 73 378 -4 370
Petroleum &

Petroleum Products

Regulation

Programme 4: 5813 822 10 228
Electrification &
Energy Programme &

Project Management

Programme 5: 653 898 958

Nuclear Energy

Programme 6: 435 827 -34 866

Clean Energy

3.4 Roll-over Funds
3.4.1 Roll-over request

In terms of Treasury Regulation 6.4.1, funds
appropriated but not spent in a particular financial
year, may be rolled over to a subsequent year subject
to approval by the National Treasury. Treasury
Regulation 6.4.1 also stipulates that a maximum of 5%
of a department’'s payments for goods and services
may be rolled over to the following financial year.

The Department’s final budget allocation for the
2014/15 financial year under the item goods
and services or non-personnel expenditure was
R244.08 million which allowed for a maximum of
R12.2 million which could be requested as a roll-
over to the 2015/16 financial year. However, the
Department requested a total of R8.80 million or
3.60% of non-personnel expenditure allocated under
the budget item goods and services.

The Department also made an application to roll
transfer payments totalling R1.2 billion over to
the 2015/16 financial year. The request relates to
unutilised funds appropriated as transfers under the
INEP Non-Grid Project (R35.5 million) and EEDSM
Eskom (R1.1 billion) in the 2014/2015 financial year.
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- 31300 277 898 12.69
-260 -3 510 40 586 -7.96
- -4 370 69 008 -5.96
- 10 228 5824 050 0.18
260 1218 655 116 0.19
- -34 866 400 961 -8.00

3.4.2 Roll-over outcome

The Department’s roll-over request was submitted to
the Minister of Finance for approval and an amount
of R35.525 million was subsequently approved to
allow for the completion of connections, related to the
implementation of the Non-Grid Electrification Project
under the INEP, which commenced in the 2014/15
financial year.

The mentioned approval meant that only 3% of
the Department’s total request of R1.2 billion was
approved and that expenditure relating to the
procurement of goods and services for which a roll-
over was not approved should be funded from the
2015/16 budget allocation through reprioritisation.

Gy

Mr Thabane Zulu
Director-General
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4.

STATEMENT OF
RESPONSIBILITY AND
CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY
FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | confirm the
following:

Allinformation and amounts disclosed throughout
the Annual Report are consistent.

The Annual Report is complete, accurate and is
free from any omissions.

The Annual Report has been prepared in
accordance with the Guidelines On the Annual
Report as issued by National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have
been prepared in accordance with the modified
cash standard and the relevant frameworks and
guidelines issued by the National Treasury.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the
preparation of the Annual Financial Statements
and for the judgements made in this information.
The Accounting Officer is responsible for
establishing, and implementing a system of
internal control that has been designed to
provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity
and reliability of the performance information,
the human resources information and the annual
financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express
an independent opinion on the Annual Financial
Statements.

In my opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects
the operations, the performance information, the
human resources information and the financial
affairs of the Department for the financial year
ended 31 March 2016.

Mr Thabane Zulu
Director-General
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In my opinion, the
Annual Report
fairly reflects the
operations, the
performance
information, the
human resources
information and the
financial affairs of the
Department for the
financial year ended
31 March 2016.



The overarching purpose of the Department is to ensure that diverse energy resources are available in sustainable
quantities and at affordable prices for the growth of the South African economy. In line with the NDP, the Department
contributes to the fight against poverty, unemployment, and inequity while taking into account environmental

concerns and obligations.

5.1 Mandate

Ensure secure and sustainable provision of energy for socio-economic development.

5.2 Vision 2025

Our vision is to improve our energy mix by having 30% clean energy by 2025 within a transformed and sustainable
Energy Sector with universal access to modern energy carriers for all.

5.3 Mission

To regulate and transform the Energy Sector for the provision of secure, sustainable and affordable energy.

5.4 Values

Table 19: Department of Energy’s values

Batho Pele
(Sotho for “People first”)

Represents a Department of Energy that is service orientated, strives for excellence in service
delivery & commits to continuous service delivery improvement for the achievement of a

better life for all & which seeks to include all citizens through services & programmes

Ethics Represents our moral principles as reflected by the Code of Conduct for Public Servants, i.e.
how we understand, know about & mean when we resolve what is right & what is wrong

Honesty Represents a facet of moral character & denotes positive, virtuous attributes such as integrity,
truthfulness, & straightforwardness along with the absence of lying, cheating, or theft
Integrity Represents consistency of actions, values, methods, measures, principles, expectations, &

outcomes & is regarded as the honesty & truthfulness or accuracy of one’s actions

Accountability

Represents the acknowledgment & assumption of responsibility for our actions, decisions,

policies, administration & governance

Professionalism

Represents workers who enjoy considerable work autonomy & are commonly engaged in

creative & intellectually challenging work that requires impressive competence in a particular

activity

Ubuntu Represents our interconnectedness & our approach that is open, available & affirming of

others

My public servant — my future = Represents public servants at the centre of delivering quality services to the country’s citizens

(we belong, we care, we
serve)

6.1 Constitutional Mandate

There have been no significant changes to the
Department’s constitutional mandate.

6.2 Primary Mandate
On 10 May 2009, the President announced the

appointment of amongst others, the Minister of
Energy in terms of Chapter 5 (The President and

in line with the dictates of the Constitution of the Republic

National Executive), Section 91(2) and 93(1) of the
Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996
(the Constitution). The portfolios of these ministers
necessitated a reorganisation of departments,
including the renaming of departments and the
establishment of new departments, to support,
amongst others, the Minister of Energy in executing
their respective mandates.

Therefore, the President in terms of Section 7(5)(a) of
the Public Service Act, 1994 (Act No. 103 of 1994) as
amended, by Proclamation No. 48, 2009, amended
the national departments listed in Schedule 1 to that
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Act, to accord, amongst others, with the new portfolio
of Energy, thereby establishing, amongst others,
the new Department of Energy. The Department of
Energy was, by extension, established in terms of
Chapter 10 (Public Administration), Section 197 (1), of
the Constitution, to “loyally execute the lawful policies
of the government of the day”. The President in terms
of Chapter 10 (Public Administration), Section 97 of
the Constitution, transferred the administration and
powers and functions entrusted by specified legislation
to, amongst others, the Minister of Energy by
Proclamation No. 44, 2009. The Department’s implied
mandate in terms of the Constitution is therefore
to govern the Energy Portfolio using reasonable
legislative and other measures. This mandate is limited
by Part B of Schedule 4 of the Constitution, 1996, which
specifies “electricity and gas reticulation” as functional
areas of concurrent legislative competence. Chapter
7 (Local Government), Section 156(1) specifies that
a “municipality has executive authority in respect of,
and has the right to administer the local government
matters listed in Part B of Schedule 4 and Part B of
Schedule 5.

Section 155(7) of Chapter 7 (Local Government),
however, specifies that “ national government
has the legislative and executive authority to see to
the effective performance by municipalities of their
functions in respect of matters listed in Schedules 4
and 5, by regulating the exercise by municipalities of
their executive authority referred to in Section 156(1)”.
The Department’'s mission, vision and mandate
statements as well as its Strategic Outcomes-
Orientated Goals (SOOGS) directly relate to this
mandate.

6.3 Secondary mandate

The Department has a secondary role to play in the
following areas:

6.3.1 National Energy Act, 2008 (Act No. 34
of 2008)

The National Energy Act, 2008 (Act No. 34 of 2008) is
the enabling legislation that empowers the Minister of
Energy to ensure that diverse energy resources are
available in sustainable quantities and at affordable
prices in the South African economy to support
economic growth and poverty alleviation, while also
taking into account environmental considerations.
In addition, the Act provides for energy planning;
the increased generation and consumption of
renewable energy; contingency energy supply; the
holding of strategic energy feedstock and carriers;
adequate investment in appropriate upkeep and
access to energy infrastructure; measures for the
furnishing of certain data and information regarding
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energy demand, supply and generation; and the
establishment of an institution responsible for the
promotion of efficient generation and consumption of
energy, energy research and all matters connected
therewith.

6.3.2 Electricity Regulation Act, 2006 (Act No. 4
of 2006), as amended

The Electricity Regulation Act, 2006 (Act No. 4 of
2006) establishes a national regulatory framework
for the electricity supply industry and makes the
National Energy Regulator of South Africa (NERSA)
the custodian and enforcer of the national electricity
regulatory framework. The Act provides for licences
and registration as the manner in which generation,
transmission, distribution, trading and the import and
export of electricity, are regulated. The Minister of
Energy, in terms of Section 34 (1), is empowered to
make determinations for the establishment of IPPs for
the purpose of greater competition in the Electricity
Generation Sector so as to increase the supply of
electricity.

In addition, pre-certification from the Office of the Chief
State Law Advisor was obtained during the period
under review to introduce the Electricity Regulation
Amendment Bill.

6.3.3 Petroleum Products Act, 1977 (Act No. 120
of 1977), as amended

The Petroleum Products Act, 1977 (Act No. 120 of
1977), as amended, provides for measures in the
saving of petroleum products and economy in the cost
of distribution thereof; the maintenance and control of
the price thereof; the furnishing of certain information
regarding petroleum products, for the rendering of
service of a particular kind or standard in connection
with petroleum products; the licensing of persons
involved in the manufacturing, wholesaling and
retailing of prescribed petroleum products; promoting
the transformation of the South African petroleum
and liquid fuels industry; and the promulgation of
regulations relating to licences and matters incidental
thereto.

In addition, the consultation process with regard to the
Petroleum Products Bill is underway.



6.3.4 Central Energy Fund Act, 1977 (Act No. 38
of 1977), as amended

The Central Energy Fund Act, 1977 (Act No. 38 of
1977), as amended, provides for the payment of
certain moneys into the Central Energy Fund (CEF)
and for the utilisation and investment thereof; the
imposition of a levy on fuel and the utilisation and
investment thereof; the control of the affairs of the
Central Energy Fund (Proprietary) Limited by a Board
of Directors; the keeping of records of all transactions
entered into for the account of the CEF or the
Equalisation Fund and of certain other transactions;
the investigation, examination and auditing of the
books, accounts and statements kept and prepared
in connection with the said transactions; and for the
submission to Parliament of a report relating to the
said investigation, examination and auditing. It also
provides for matters connected with the Act.

6.3.5 Nuclear Energy Act, 1999 (Act No. 46
of 1999)

The Nuclear Energy Act, 1999 (Act No. 46 of 1999)
provides for the establishment of the Necsa, a public
company wholly owned by the State. It defines its
functions, powers and its financial and operational
accountability; its governance and management by
a Board of Directors; the composition of the Board
and appointment of a chief executive officer; its
responsibilities for the implementation and application
of the Safeguards Agreement and additional protocols
entered into by the Republic and the IAEA in support
of the Nuclear Non-Proliferation Treaty acceded
to by the Republic; regulates the acquisition and
possession of nuclear fuel, certain nuclear and related
material and equipment, as well as the importation
and exportation thereof, together with certain other
acts and activities relating to that fuel, material and
equipment in order to comply with the international
obligations of the Republic; and prescribes measures
regarding the disposal of radioactive waste and the
storage of irradiated nuclear fuel.

6.3.6 National Nuclear Regulator Act, 1999 (Act
No. 47 of 1999)

The National Nuclear Regulator Act, 1999 (Act No.
47 of 1999) provides for the establishment of the
National Nuclear Regulator (NNR) in order to regulate
nuclear activities. It also provides for its objectives
and functions; the manner in which it is to be
managed and staffed; safety standards and regulatory
practices; and the protection of persons, property and
the environment against nuclear damage and matters
connected therewith.

6.3.7 National Radioactive Waste Disposal
Institute Act, 2008 (Act No. 53 of 2008)

The National Radioactive Waste Disposal Institute
Act, 2008 (Act No. 53 of 2008) provides for the
establishment of the National Radioactive Waste
Disposal Institute (NRWDI) in order to manage
radioactive waste disposal on a national basis. It
provides for its functions; the manner in which it is
to be managed; and regulation of its staff including
matters connected therewith.

6.3.8 Petroleum Pipelines Act, 2003 (Act No. 60
of 2003)

The Petroleum Pipelines Act, 2003 (Act No. 60 of 2003)
provides for the establishment of a national regulatory
framework for petroleum pipelines; a Petroleum
Pipelines Regulatory Authority as the custodian and
enforcer of the National Regulatory Framework; and
matters connected therewith.

6.3.9 Petroleum Pipelines Levies Act, 2004 (Act
No. 28 of 2004)

The Petroleum Pipelines Levies Act, 2004 (Act No.
28 of 2004) provides for imposition of levies by the
Petroleum Pipelines Regulatory Authority and matters
connected therewith.

6.3.10 Gas Act, 2001 (Act No. 48 of 2001)

The Gas Act, 2001 (Act No. 48 of 2001) provides for
the orderly development of the piped-gas industry;
establishes a national regulatory framework; and
provides for a National Gas Regulator as the custodian
and enforcer of the National Regulatory Framework
and matters connected therewith.

6.3.11 The Gas Regulator Levies Act, 2002 (Act
No. 75 of 2002)

The Gas Regulator Levies Act, 2002 (Act No. 75 of
2002) provides for the imposition of levies by the
National Gas Regulator and matters connected
therewith.

6.3.12 National Energy Regulator Act, 2004 (Act
No. 40 of 2004)

The National Energy Regulator Act, 2004 (Act No. 40
of 2004) provides for the establishment of a single
regulator to regulate the electricity, piped-gas and
petroleum pipeline industries and matters connected
therewith.
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6.3.13 Abolition of the National Energy Council
Act, 1991 (Act 95 of 1991)

The Abolition of the National Energy Council Act, 1991
(Act No. 95 of 1991) provided for the abolition of the
National Energy Council; and the transfer of powers,
assets, liabilities, rights, duties, obligations and staff of
the Council to the Minister and for matters incidental
thereto.

6.4 Acts Not Transferred to the Minister
of Energy

The following Acts were not transferred to the Minister
of Energy by Proclamation 44 of 2009 (presumably
by oversight) but are administered by the Department
and/or entrust certain powers and functions to
the Minister of Energy, the Department and/or the
State-Owned Entities/Companies (SOE/Cs) of the
Department:

6.4.1 Electricity Act, 1987 (Act No. 41 of 1987),
as amended

The Electricity Act, 1987 (Act No. 41 of 1987), as
amended, was repealed by the Electricity Regulation
Act, 2006, with the exception of Section 5B that
provides for the funds of the Energy Regulator for the
purposes of regulation of the electricity industry.

6.4.2 Liquid Fuel and Oil Act Repeal Act, 1993
(Act No. 20 of 1993)

The Liquid Fuel and Oil Act Repeal Act, 1993 (Act
No. 20 of 1993) repealed the Liquid Fuel and Oil Act,
1947 (Act No. 49 of 1947) and the Liquid Fuel and Oil
Amendment Act, 1960 (Act No. 17 of 1960).

6.4.3 Coal Act Repeal Act, 1991 (Act No. 124
of 1991)

The Coal Act Repeal Act, 1991 (Act No. 124 of
1991) provided for the repeal of the Coal Act, 1983
(Act No. 30 of 1983).
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6.5 Acts Considered as Obsolete Which
Need to be Repealed

The following Acts are considered obsolete and need

to be repealed:

- The Electricity Amendment Acts, 1989
(Act No. 58 of 1989) and 1994 (Act No. 46 of
1994)

- The Nuclear Energy Act, 1993 (Act No.131 of
1993)

- The Coal Resources Act Repeal Act, 1992 (Act
No. 6 of 1992)

6.6 Other Legislation Impacting on the
Department

In addition to the aforementioned Acts, the Department
is mandated by, amongst others, the following
legislation:

6.6.1 National Environmental Management Act,
1999 (Act No. 107 of 1999)

The National Environmental Management Act, 1999
(Act No. 107 of 1999) has a direct impact on legislative
and other measures to reduce carbon emissions,
energy efficiency and mitigation of the impact of
the generation/refinement and use of energy on the
environment.

6.6.2 Mineral and Petroleum Resources
Development Act, 2002 (Act No. 28 of 2002)

The Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development
Act, 2002 (Act No. 28 of 2002) makes provision for
access to and sustainable development of mineral
and petroleum resources and matters connected
therewith.
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2. Part B

1. AUDITOR-GENERAL'S REPORT:
PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The Auditor-General of South Africa currently
performs certain audit procedures on the performance
information to provide reasonable assurance in the
form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on
the performance against predetermined objectives is
included in the report to management, with material
findings being reported under the Predetermined
Objectives heading in the Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements section of the auditor’s
report.

Refer to the Report of the Auditor-General, published
in Part E: Annual Financial Statements.

2. OVERVIEW OF
DEPARTMENTAL
PERFORMANCE

21 Service Delivery Environment
2.1.1 Electricity and electrification

The Department’s Integrated National Electrification
Programme (INEP) continues to be one of the
Department’s flagship programmes in the delivery of
services to the citizens of South Africa. The programme
was allocated R5.6 billion during the 2015/16 financial
year. The INEP and its implementing agencies
(Eskom, municipalities and non-grid service providers)
have made remarkable progress in increasing access
to electricity in South Africa and connected over
6.7 million households between 1994 and March
2016. Access to electricity is at 88% since 1994.

Renewable energy

Having completed the feasibility study for the solar park
concept, the Minister of Energy made a determination
under Section 34 of the Electricity Regulation Act, 2006
(Act No. 4 of 2006), as amended for 1 500 MW of solar
power generation in the Northern Cape. The solar
power generation technologies are to be implemented

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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in a designated corridor in the Northern Cape and
the concept involves technical, environmental and
financial assessments that assist in defining the most
viable model for building the solar park.

The Renewable Energy Independent Power Producer

Procurement Programme (REIPPPP) has been

a flagship programme of the Department. New

generation capacity determinations made by the

Minister of Energy under Section 34 of the Electricity

Regulation Act, 2006 include:

- 13 225 MW of renewable energy (comprising of
solar photovoltaic [PV]: 4 725 MW, wind: 6 360
MW, CSP: 1 200 MW, small hydro: 195 MW,
landfill gas: 25 MW, biomass: 210 MW, biogas:
110 MW and the Small-Scale Renewable Energy
Programme: 400 MW)

- 2 609 MW of hydroelectric power imports

The Small-Scale Renewable Energy Programme

procured renewable energy from small-scale

Independent Power Producers (IPP), with projects

that are between 1 and 5 MW in size. Since the

inception of the REIPPP, the Department has been

successful in:

- Increasing the contribution of clean energy from
0% in 2010 to over 4.5% within five years

- Creating 24 965 job-years of employment
opportunities for South African citizens, where
a job-year is defined as the equivalent of a full
time employment opportunity for one person
for one year. To date, a total of R53 million has
been contributed to enterprise development
by operating IPPs. The programme has also
broadened Broad-Based Black Economic
Empowerment (B-BBEE), as Black South
Africans own, on average, 30% of these projects

The SAIREC (South Africa International Renewable
Energy Conference) was successfully hosted in
October 2015 in Cape Town. About 6 000 visitors,
including Government ministers, academics, investors
and the general public attended the conference.
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3.2 Batho Pele Arrangements with Beneficiaries (Consultation, Access etc.)

Table 22: Batho Pele Arrangements

Regional offices exist to support beneficiaries
with information, resolution of queries & general
electrification assistance; access to the head
office is also possible at all times

Department website
Regional representation at Department

workshops/road shows & provision of mobile
services

Contact with the Department is currently made
via the website, email, telephonically or physical
consultation

Email

3.3 Service Delivery Information Tool

Table 23: Service delivery information tools

Pamphlets & workshops on the licensing process
(including local languages)

Regional representation, more collaboration with
stakeholders, helpdesk

Website & seminars

3.4 Complaints Mechanism

Table 24: Complaints mechanism

Email

Telephonic

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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All the queries are being addressed, either by Department, Eskom &/or
municipalities & they report on performance on a monthly basis

Department website on a daily basis with information on new & revised
policies, legislation, programmes & media statements

Branches to respond on Department workshops & mobile services in line
with APPs

Website management has been enhanced to optimise timeous
information updates

Goals achieved & reports of contacts made with the Department are
available from the website, & emailed enquiries to the Energy Knowledge
Resource Centre is available at info@energy.gov.za

No telephonic enquiries reports are available due to the lack of
appropriate electronic tracking systems

Physical consultation through helpdesk services

18 regional workshops were conducted

Ongoing website updates of policies, legislation & programmes
maintained

Emails received via info@energy.gov.za managed by the Energy
Knowledge Resource Centre

Telephonic complaints received via switchboard & Energy Knowledge
Resource Centre

In terms of the current process, complaints are received via these 2
channels & referred to the appropriate branches for responses

Upon receipt of an emailed or telephonic complaint, the Energy
Knowledge Resource Centre sends an email of acknowledgement to the
client concerned. Branches are required to copy the Energy Knowledge
Resource Centre on all direct responses

The Energy Knowledge Resource Centre reports on the status of all such
complaints in the weekly reports & at the monthly MANCO meetings



The Department has filled the position of the Director-
General in October 2015. Of the two Deputy Director-
General posts which were vacant, one has been
filled through secondment whereas the other one
has been advertised and will be filled soon. As at the
end of the year under review, the Department had a
staff complement of 610 employees, with 541 full-time
employees and 69 contract employees. During the
year under review, the Department operated with a
staff complement of 583, this is the figure as the end
of the year. The Department has commenced with the
process of reviewing the functionality of its operational
structure in order to accurately respond to its mandate
and the challenges facing the Energy Sector. Specific
changes were effected during the year under review,
which amongst others, include the relocation of the
Communications and Knowledge Management Chief
Directorate from the Corporate Services Branch to
the Office of the Director-General. The Department
is striving to ensure that the organisational structure
responds to its mandate.

41 Training and Development

The challenge of technical skills required in the
Energy Sector has continued to be of concern to
the Department. In response to this challenge,
the Department has developed a Workplace Skills
Development Plan (WSP), based on the training
needs of individual employees and their managers.
As part of the implementation of the WSP, a number
of training and development interventions have been
identified for implementation. The Department has
also offered 32 new bursaries to serving employees of
the Department. The Department has also contributed
to the implemented of youth development intervention
programmes, such as the provision of bursaries
to external applicants. Eleven external applicants
within the Youth Programme were offered bursaries
sponsored by the Chemical Industries Education and
Training Authority (CHIETA) including four integrated
learners, 32 interns and 15 people on learnership
programmes.

In preparation for the roll-out of the Nuclear New Build
Programme, the Nuclear Skills Development and
Training Programme is also under way with various
countries including China, the Russian Federation
and South Korea.

4.2 Regional Offices

In its quest to improve and bring service delivery
closer to the people, the Department has managed to
secure permanent office space for its regional offices
in Mpumalanga, KwaZulu-Natal, North West, Eastern

Cape and Limpopo provinces. The procurement of
permanent office space in the Western Cape, Free
State and Gauteng is underway and in an advanced
stage. The process of procuring permanent office
space in the Northern Cape and Free State provinces
will be advertised and it is anticipated that it will be
finalised before the end of the financial year.

While there were several legislative initiatives during
the period under review, none were promulgated into
law during the period under review.

5.1 Bills
5.1.1 Electricity Regulation Amendment Bill

This bill aims to amend the Electricity Regulation Act,

2006, including:

- Providing for the licensing of electricity dispatch

- Allowing for the pre-approval of tariffs and license
conditions

- Allowing the Minister to expropriate land or
right in, over or in respect of land on behalf of a
licensee

- Allowing the National Energy Regulator of South
Africa (NERSA) to act as an arbitrator in order to
resolve disputes between licensees

- Setting out the procedure to be followed when
developing the Integrated Resource Plan (IRP)

- Providing a framework for the procurement of
new generation capacity

- Extending the Minister’s power to delegate

- Providing for matters connected therewith

5.1.2 National Energy Regulator Amendment Bill

This bill aims to amend the National Energy Regulator

Act, 2004 (Act No. 40 of 2004) including:

- The deletion of certain obsolete definitions

- Extension of the objects of the act

- Amendments to the provisions relating to the
functions of the Energy Regulator

- Amendments to the composition of the Energy
Regulator

- Amendments to the disqualification and
requirements for membership of the Energy
Regulator

- Provision for the Minister to remove a member of
the Energy Regulator

- The establishment of an energy review board to
review the decisions of the Energy Regulator

- Provision for the review panel and procedure

- Provision for transitional provisions

- Provision for the Minister to make regulations
and to provide for matters connected therewith

PART B
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5.1.3 National Nuclear Regulator Amendment Act

This bill aims to amend the National Nuclear Regulator

Act, 1999 (Act No. 47 of 1999) including:
The proposed amendments are inter alia to
strengthen legislation since the country is
embarking on the Nuclear New Build Programme

- To clarify the scope of areas regulated by the
Energy Regulator

- To set out the powers of the Energy Regulator

- To empower the Energy Regulator in enforcing
the act

- Substitute and insert certain definitions

- Establish legislative measures to enable the
regulator to deal with nuclear security

- Harmonise the nuclear safety regulatory
framework with regard to radioactive sources

- Include the provisions of the Nuclear Liability
Conventions

- Make provisions for an integrated dose register

- Ensure alignment with international practices

5.1.4 Nuclear Energy Act Amendment Bill

This bill aims to amend the Nuclear Energy Act, 1999
(Act No. 46 of 1999). It will enhance the governance

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
Department of Energy

of the nuclear energy industry with regard to safety,
security and technology matters. The bill supports the
2008 Nuclear Energy Policy and the IRP 2010-30,
amongst relevant policies.

5.1.5 National Radioactive Waste Management
Fund Bill

This bill aims to provide for:

- The establishment of a national radioactive
waste management fund

- The funding of the functions and activities of the
National Radioactive Waste Disposal Institute

- The manner in which the Fund is to be governed,
managed, administered and controlled

- Matters incidental thereto

5.1.6 Strategic Fuel Fund Bill

This bill aims to provide for the establishment of the
national petroleum reserve organisation to manage
the strategic stock of petroleum and gas. Legislation
was abandoned due to the need to align with outcomes
of Presidential Review Commission on State-Owned
Companies (SOC).
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7. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
BY PROGRAMME

71 Programme 1: Administration

7.1.1 Purpose
To provide strategic support and management
services to the Ministry and the Department.

7.1.2 Sub-programmes

Sub-programme 1.1: Ministry

This sub-programme provides executive support
to the Minister and Deputy Minister and provides a
parliamentary service to the Minister, Deputy Minister,
the Department and Energy Sector. No strategic
objectives, performance indicators or targets were set
for this sub-programme.

Sub-programme 1.2: Departmental Management
(Chief Directorate: Office of the Director-General
and Offices of Deputy Directors-General)

This sub-programme provides executive support to
the Director-General and Deputy Directors-General.
No strategic objectives, performance indicators or
targets were set for this sub-programme.

Sub-programme 1.3: Governance and Compliance
Branch

This sub-programme provides strategic direction and
guidance on strategic planning, risk management,
reporting, monitoring and evaluation, State-Owned
Enterprise (SOE) oversight as well as international
coordination.

Sub-programme 1.4: Finance Administration Branch
This sub-programme provides financial management,
accounting, and Supply Chain Management (SCM)
services to the Department.

Sub-programme 1.5: Audit Services (Directorate:
Audit Services)

This sub-programme provides an audit and support
service to the Department. No strategic objectives,
performance indicators or targets were set for this
sub-programme.

Sub-programme 1.6: Corporate Services Branch
This sub-programme provides corporate support to the
Department, and ensures good corporate governance
and compliance by the Department.

7.1.3 Strategic objectives, performance
indicators, planned targets and actual
achievements

Financial Management Services Branch

The Financial Management Services Branch had two

targets:

- To achieve an unqualified audit report by the
Auditor-General of South Africa for 2015/16 - the
Financial Accounting and Reporting directorate
is currently preparing the Annual Financial
Statement the first draft was due for submission
to National Treasury and AGSA on the 31 May
2016 and the outcome of the AGSA audit was
made available on 31 July 2016

- To ensure that 100% of approved invoices are
paid within 30 days of receipt — the Financial
Management Services achieved the target and
the report on 30-day payments compliance,
and exceptions were also submitted to
National Treasury for 12 periods in the current
financial year. For the period under review, the
Financial Management Services Branch had 26
Institutional Operational Plan (IOP) targets, of
which 19 were achieved, 1 partially achieved,
4 not achieved and 2 are still in progress. The
results of these targets were made available on
31 July 2016

Corporate Services Branch

One of the branch’s targets was to reduce the
vacancy rate to 10%. The target was not met since
the vacancy rate as at 31 March 2016 was on 11.2%,
resulting in a variance of -1.21%; this was due to new
posts being added to the establishment. As a result,
more effort will be concentrated in maintaining the
vacancy rate below 10%. Another target was 100%
implementation of training programmes. This target
was exceeded since, over and above the trainings
reflected in the WSP, a total of 63 training programmes
was implemented during the year under review. All
four Departmental Bargaining Chamber (DBC) and
Task Team meetings were held as per the plan and
a total of 10 policy presentations were conducted for
the year.

Finalisation of the support and the regions structures
was, however, not met because there was a change
in leadership and it was necessary to get the strategic
direction before the project could be concluded.
The target has been carried over to the 2016/2017
performance year and plans are afoot to deliver on
the target.
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Governance and Compliance Branch

The Department scored an average of 2.5 on the
Management Performance Assessment Tool (MPAT)
— a variance of 1 against a target of 3.5. Although
the target was not achieved, there were great areas
of improvement, such as promotion of access to
information, integration of performance monitoring
and strategic management, service delivery charter,
standards and service delivery improvement plans.
The following has maintained a perfect score
for the past three years: strategic management,
organisational design and implementation, delegations
in terms of the Public Service Act, 1994 (Act No.
103 of 1994), and management of cash flow and
expenditure versus budget. However, there are areas
that also need improvement such as fraud prevention,
risk management, management of diversity,
implementation of a Senior Management Service
(SMS) Performance Management and Development
System (PMDS) for the head of department. The
Department has already embarked on the process of
developing an improvement plan to address areas of
underperformance.

State-owned entities

The SOE Oversight Unit worked with the relevant
line function branches to ensure that the SOE/C’s
corporate plans, strategic plans and APPs were
aligned with the objectives of the Department
and broader Government priorities. The SOE/C’s
performance was monitored through performance
reports submitted on a quarterly basis and these
quarterly performance reports were reviewed and
submitted to the Minister, with recommendations for
improvements to performance where necessary.

During the last financial year, the SOE/C’s which
report to the Minister of Energy experienced
difficulties across the board, with National Treasury
indicating that it intends to decrease their budgeted
baseline government grants for the 2015/16 and
2016/17 financial years. This was proposed by
National Treasury in line with the President's 2014
State of the Nation Address (SoNA) which indicated
that various austerity measures may be put in place
throughout government and its entities to address
various government financial shortfalls. It is against
this background that the Central Energy Fund (CEF)
Group continues to streamline the finalisation of
the restructuring of its various entities, including
PetroSA and the Strategic Fuel Fund's (SFF)
business processes, systems and human resource
requirements in a manner that shall further assist the
group to achieve its mandate.

During March 2015, the then NERSA CEO tendered
her resignation, thus initiating a comprehensive
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recruitment process, which is currently still underway,
which shall culminate in the appointment of a suitably
qualified successor to lead the regulator through this
challenging period in the country’s Energy Sector.

The Nuclear Regulator continues to capacitate itself
in various key positions that will give it the necessary
human resource capacity to successfully oversee the
country’s imminent Nuclear New Build Programme.
In this regard, during March 2015, Nuclear Energy
Corporation of South Africa (Necsa) celebrated the
50th anniversary of its SAFARI-1 Nuclear Research
Reactor. Commissioned in 1965, it still remains the
country’s only research reactor. This is a significant
milestone in the nuclear sector.

The SOE Oversight
Unit worked with the
relevant line function
branches to ensure
that the SOE/C’s
corporate plans,
strategic plans and
APPs were aligned
with the Department’s
objectives.

International relations

The Department conducted several international
multilateral and bilateral engagements covering clean
energy, energy planning, hydrocarbons, electricity
and nuclear. These engagements were in line with the
strategic objectives of the Department with a special
focus on capacity building, enhancing security of
energy supply, and creating access to funding,
technology and information. The Department,
through its bilateral engagement with the international
community to diversify South Africa’s energy mix,
received both financial and technical assistance
from a number of countries, including Denmark,
United Kingdom, Germany (funded the 2015 South
African International Renewable Energy Conference
and various clean energy projects), USA, France
and Switzerland. The assistance related mainly
to renewable energy and energy efficiency. The
Norwegians offered technical assistance on
hydrocarbons (carbon capture and storage) and
China has offered financial assistance on diverse
energy mix.



South  Africa sent students, officials and
representatives of SOCs for training and skills
development to countries such as China (50
engineering students were sent to China in 2015 to
study nuclear technology) and the USA (shale gas
study tour conducted in the USA in March 2015 and
the Shale Gas Regulation was held in the USA in
July 2015). Scholarships were received from France
and the Russian Federation to study energy-related
subjects including nuclear. The Department also
conducted vendor parades to seven leading nuclear
vendor countries, namely the Russian Federation,
France, South Korea, Japan, USA, China and
Canada. The outcomes of the vendor parades
enabled the Department to gain insight into issues
relating to capacity building, localisation and industry
development in preparation for the Nuclear Expansion
Programme. The scope of cooperation was expanded
through bilateral nuclear agreements signed with
China, Russia and France in 2015.

South Africa’s world class project, Renewable
Energy Independent Power Producer Procurement
Programme (REIPPPP) has vyielded investment of
R194 billion, wind and solar PV have attracted main
interest from the developers. To date, over 6 GW
procured and 102 projects are in various stages of
post preferred bidders and some investment has
come from foreign investors due to the enabling
environment. Countries that participated in REIPPPP
included France, China, Spain, Japan, Saudi Arabia
(ACWA Power) and USA. South Africa is actively
involved with Sweden to negotiate a memorandum
of understanding on energy. Saudi Arabia is currently
South Africa’s major supplier of oil. In 2015, from
January to December, South Africa imported
approximately 142.6 million barrels of crude oil, 37%
was from Nigeria, followed by 25% from Saudi Arabia,
17% from Angola, 7% from United Arab Emirates
and other 14% from various producers. Since April
2015 there have been various engagements with
Iran in the Energy Sector. The Department needs to
put more effort and emphasis toward the conclusion
of the outstanding cooperation agreements in the
Energy Sector, especially as a means of paving a
way for PetroSA and the strategic fuel fund to derive
commercial benefit from the cordial relations between
the two countries.

The Department also provided support, especially
to African countries. It hosted the delegation from
the board of the Electricity Regulatory Authority of
Uganda for capacity building and information sharing.
With regard to the Democratic Republic of Congo
(DRC), the Department played a leading role in the
negotiation of the Grand Inga Hydropower Project
between the South African Government and the DRC.
In terms of the signed treaty, South Africa became
a principal partner and buyer of the hydropower
generated from the Grand Inga Hydropower Project
in the DRC. The project is in line with the target of 6%
of imported electricity generated from hydropower,
as envisaged in the IRP 2010-30. Through the
established bilateral relations, PetroSA has been
able to successfully acquire producing assets in
the Republic of Ghana. Active bilateral negotiations
are ongoing with Mozambique, Zambia, Botswana,
Equatorial Guinea and Zimbabwe. South Africa, to
access technology and skills development, pays
annual membership fees to various multilateral
organisations such as the African Petroleum Producer
Association (APPA), International Partnership in
Energy Efficiency (IPEEC), International Renewable
Energy Agency (IRENA), International Energy Forum
(IEF) and International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA).
Other important multilateral engagements conducted
during the course of the year included the Southern
African Development Community (SADC) Energy
Ministerial, African Union (AU), the European Union
(EU), International Energy Agency, the International
Gas Union (IGU), the Clean Energy Ministerial (CEM),
BRICS (Brazil, Russia, India, China and South Africa),
the Group of Twenty (G20), the United Nations
Sustainable Energy for All (SE4ALL) and the Post-2015
development agenda. The Department participates in
the IAEA Annual General Meeting and attended the
IAEA 2015. As part of advancing the developmental
energy agenda and regional integration in SADC
and the African continent, the Department hosted the
SADC Energy Ministers in July 2015.
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7.2 Programme 2: Energy Policy and
Planning

7.2.1 Purpose

Ensure evidence-based planning, policy setting and
investment decisions in the Energy Sector to improve
energy security through supply- and demand-side
options, and increase competition through regulation.

7.2.2 Sub-programmes

Sub-programme 2.1: Policy Analysis and Research
(Chief Directorate: Policy Analysis and Research)
This sub-programme develops key indicators and
monitors the impact of Energy Sector policies,
planning and interventions; analyses all energy
policies and their impact on access to energy and
on the security of energy supply; conducts research
and analyses policies in relation to other countries;
and carries out research and analyses national and
international trends or developments that impact on
the demand and supply of energy.

Sub-programme 2.2: Energy Planning

(Chief Directorate: Energy Planning)

This sub-programme develops and maintains various
energy modelling tools to estimate future energy
demand and explore alternative energy supply
options; identifies energy supply constraints and
addresses them through the Integrated Energy Plan;
and manages the collection and maintenance of
energy data and the dissemination of quality energy
statistics and information.

Sub-programme 2.3: Hydrocarbon Policy

(Chief Directorate: Hydrocarbon Policy)

This sub-programme ensures a secure energy
supply; well managed demand; enhanced access
to hydrocarbons; a transformed Energy Sector; and
ensures that energy regulation and competition is
improved through the development, promulgation and
maintenance of a statutory framework for petroleum,
petroleum products, petroleum infrastructure, coal
and gas.

Sub-programme 2.4: Electricity, Energy Efficiency
and Environmental Policy

(Chief Directorate: Electricity, Energy Efficiency and
Environmental Policy).

This sub-programme ensures secure energy supply;
well managed demand and a transformed Energy
Sector; and energy regulation and competition that is
improved through the development, promulgation and
maintenance of a statutory framework for electricity
over the medium term.
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7.2.3 Strategic objectives, performance
indicators, planned targets and actual
achievements

Integrated Energy Plan

The IEP represents our energy policy and strategy
statement that has been under development since
2012, when Cabinet approved the commencement
of the public consultation process. The consultation
sought to achieve agreement on the purpose of the
IEP, stakeholder consensus on the minimum content
of the IEP, the requisite quantitative baselines and
assumptions, assessment of the gaps between the
expected content and existing content and data,
the scenarios and pathways to be tested and the
associated timelines, integration of various sector
plans for electricity, gas, liquid fuels and after the
Public Participation process, the adoption of the IEP.

The IEP will provide
answers to various
questions our country
has been grappling
with regarding our
energy future.

The IEP development process has advanced and it
has now been tabled before the Economic Sectors
and Infrastructure Development Cluster, a platform
prescribed as the last step before submission in
Cabinet. The IEP will provide answers to various
questions our country has been grappling with
regarding our energy future, including alignment with
our objectives for the Energy Sector. The objectives
for the Energy Sector include energy security,
reducing energy costs, increasing access to modern
energy carriers, reducing GHG emissions, reducing
water consumption, increasing localisation, improving
energy efficiency, and diversification of our energy
sources through an energy mix. Some of the questions
answered through the IEP include:

- What are our primary energy requirements in the
period up to 2050, in respect of coal, oil, gas and
other energy minerals; but also to what extent do
we rely on our sun, wind and regional hydropower
resources in the same period? The IEP will assist
us to make the appropriate decisions regarding
securing these energy sources in the required
quantities.



- What are the energy conversion technologies
plus the logistical infrastructure requirements,
including power generation plants, refineries,
pipelines, transmission wires and storage
facilities for oil and gas?

- What are the enablers for this infrastructure,
particularly legislative and institutional
arrangements that will open up these sectors?

- Insofar as the recommendation of the National
Development Plan (NDP) to conclude a decision
on new refinery capacity, the IEP will provide
insights regarding the implications of the refinery
as against not proceeding with its development.
The decision on new refining capacity will be
finalised in 2016 as recommended by the NDP.

- The IEP provides an agenda of energy
technology topics; these topics include
technologies for storage, biofuels development,
fuel cells utilisation exploiting our platinum
resource base, PV and Concentrating Solar
Power (CSP).

- What is the recommended pathway for meeting
the energy demand through electricity, gas and
liquid fuels and what are the anticipated price
implications?

Update on the Integrated Resource Plan and the
Gas Infrastructure Plan

Arising out of the process for developing the IEP will
be the infrastructure plans in respect of the electricity,
gas and liquid fuels sectors in more detail than the
pathway recommended by the IEP. Starting with the
electricity sector, the base case for the updated IRP
has been developed. The IRP update is premised on
the pathway defined through the IEP process, thus
ensuring the integration of this sector plan.

Similarly, the Gas Infrastructure Plan is premised on
the pathway defined through the IEP, in regard to the
gas pipelines, storage and other infrastructure that is
necessary for meeting the energy demand through

gas supply.

Historically, the planning process was in silos where
the electricity supply dominated any other demand for
energy due to the argument about cheap coal-based
electricity. Going forward, it is becoming more and
more apparent that the future energy demand will be
competed for by electricity, gas and liquid fuels and
that depending on the relative cost competitiveness
of each of these carriers, the appropriate carrier will
prevail over the others for that end-use.

Municipal distribution asset management

Municipal electricity distribution infrastructure requires
urgent refurbishment if it is expected to provide reliable
service. The estimated backlog of R80 billion needs

a funding model that entails revamped institutional,
regulatory and structural adjustments to the status
quo. In this regard the Approach to Distribution Asset
Management (ADAM) Programme was initiated,
targeting the metropolitan and suburban areas of the
country for piloting. The development of norms and
standards relating to, amongst others, maintenance
and tariff design is necessary for adoption as a
regulatory mechanism for municipalities to normalise
their electricity distribution businesses. These norms
and standards are to be informed by the pilot ADAM
Programme that was initiated in the year under review.

Policy research and analysis

All targets that have been set pursuant to policy
research and analysis are reported as “not achieved”
in the year under review because they have been
incorporated elsewhere in the activities of the
Department. The GUMP, the IRP and the National
Energy Efficiency Strategy and Action Plan (NEES)
have been developed instead to address the
research topics relating to gas, electricity and energy
efficiency, respectively. This is logical given the
extent of research that goes into the development of
these plans and strategies. The same applies to the
collection and collation of energy statistics to support
the development of the IEP, which is reported as “no
target set”. In this regard, the Department has instead
promulgated regulations regarding the mandatory
provision of energy data and the development of
energy management plans.

Hydropower resource

The Department has continued to lead discussions
with our neighbouring countries on hydroelectric
power development, notably with the DRC, Zambia,
Zimbabwe and Botswana to advance the provisions
of the Treaty on the Grand Inga Hydropower Project.
South Africa has entered into a treaty with the
Democratic Republic of the Congo to offtake 2 500 MW
in the first phase of the project. The transmission
solution to evacuate power to South Africa has been
agreed at the technical level between all the affected
utilities, being Eskom, Société Nationale d’Electricité
(SNEL), Botswana Power Corporation, Zimbabwe
Electricity Supply Authority (ZESA) and Zambia
Electricity Supply Company (ZESCO). The next steps
involve securing political ratification of the technical
solution. Once this has been resolved, the Grand
Inga Hydropower Project will proceed through to the
commercial negotiation of the electricity tariff and the
risk sharing between the power concession company
and the South African off-taker.
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7.3 Programme 3: Petroleum and Petroleum
Products Regulation

7.3.1 Purpose

The purpose of the Petroleum and Petroleum Products
Regulation Programme is to regulate petroleum and
petroleum products to ensure optimum and orderly
functioning of the petroleum industry to achieve
government’s developmental goals.

7.3.2 Sub-programmes

Petroleum Compliance, Monitoring and Enforcement
This sub-programme monitors compliance with the
petroleum legislation, the Liquid Fuels Charter, and
technical, legal and commercial licensing conditions.
This includes compliance with import and export
conditions, as well as enforcement of the submission
of data by industry. This sub-programme also
processes arbitration requests, promotes access to
information requests on behalf of the Controller of
Petroleum Products.

Petroleum Licensing and Fuel Supply

This sub-programme manages petroleum licensing
processes, regulates the permits for the export and
import of petroleum products, monitors fuel stock
levels and coordinates corrective actions to avoid fuel
shortages. This entails conducting license analyses
and ensuring the supply of hydrocarbons, and
compliance with permits and the charter.

Fuel Price Regulation

This sub-programme regulates the pricing of petroleum
products in accordance with legislation. This entails
the determining, reviewing, updating and maintaining
fuel levies and margins and the process of paying fuel
levies. Fuel price administration includes developing,
evaluating and monitoring price models; updating
elements of the Basic Fuel Price (BFP); and ensuring
secure audit services for the auditing of fuel prices to
ensure internationally competitive pricing of petroleum
products to enable investment in the sector.

Regional Petroleum Regulation Offices

This sub-programme provides advice on integrated
energy services, develops appropriate interventions
to enhance and promote universal access to energy,
and ensures economic and technical compliance with
relevant legislation. In addition, all information by
license holders is captured and analysed.
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7.3.3 Strategic objectives, performance
indicators, planned and actual achievements

The Department continues to make the process of
applying for petroleum licences easier and more
accessible by sharing information and educating
applicants and potential applicants on the licensing
process through regional awareness campaigns.
The benefits of this approach were seen in the large
number of applications that were lodged during
the financial year with all the required information
provided. Furthermore, the Department had regular
interactions with the majority of oil companies, which
facilitated the speedy resolution of License application
challenges.

However, the Department still experiences cases
where inadequate information is provided in
applications. This causes unnecessary delays, since
additional information has to be requested from the
applicants and their response is awaited.

The Department continued to conduct retail site
inspections and fuel tests. These are conducted to
monitor and enforce compliance with the conditions of
licenses and fuel specifications, respectively. Anumber
of notices were issued to those who were found to be
in contravention. In some instances, licence holders
were ordered to correct the contravention on the spot,
for example, where an incorrect fuel price was being
charged to the public.

Compliance

For the period under review, 1 500 planned retail site
compliance inspections were undertaken. The Branch
managed to conduct 1 956 compliance inspections,
which exceeded the target by 456 compliance
inspections. Enforcement notices were issued in 90%
of cases where non-compliance was identified during
routine compliance inspections. Out of the 1 956 retail
site compliance inspections conducted, 194 cases
of non-compliance were identified and notices were
issued where appropriate.

As an alternative dispute resolution mechanism to
promote the right to access to courts, the Petroleum
Products Act, 1977 (Act No. 120 of 1997) provides
for arbitration in terms of Section 12B. The Branch
had planned to finalise all arbitration requests as
provided for in the Petroleum Products Act, 1977 and
achieved target. The initial set target of 21 working
days has no basis, hence the Department has
reviewed the target to 90 days from date of receipt of
all parties’ representations. The reviewed target was
benchmarked against other legislations administered



by the Department, and further considering the
following; legal complexities, voluminous nature of
requests, delayed submission of representations and
limited human resources.

Interms of Section 12C (1)(e) ofthe Petroleum Products
Act, as amended, the Minister of Energy is mandated
to make regulations regarding the specifications and
standards of petroleum products. The Department is
required to monitor and enforce compliance with these
regulations by all manufacturers, wholesalers and
retailers. Sampling and testing of petroleum products
is therefore a critical part of meeting quality standards.

Table 32: Fuel samples collected and tested per province

Eastern Cape 93
Free State 101
Gauteng 157
KwaZulu-Natal 96
Limpopo 95
Mpumalanga 125
North West 113
Northern Cape 69
Western Cape 75

Enforcement notices were issued in 95% of cases
where non-compliance is identified during routine fuel
samples testing. Out of 1 847 samples tested, 175
samples failed the petroleum products specifications
and standards, and notices were issued to the
identified non-compliances. The Liquid Fuels Charter
requires the Department to consult, monitor, evaluate
and report on economic transformation initiatives.
Stakeholder consultations were conducted with oil
majors and industry associations to establish progress
made post the Liquid Fuels Charter Audit Report. The
Department continued to strengthen partnerships
with the National Empowerment Fund (NEF) in order
to enhance Black participation in the retail space in
light of challenges to access funding from financial
institutions.

Licensing

The Department received 842 petroleum products
licence applications during the period under review. A
total of 19.4% compliance within a 60-day turnaround
time to finalise New to Industry (NTI) applications
against a target of 90% compliance was achieved.
It should be noted that the legislated timeframe is
90 days. The 60-day timeframe was a stretch target

As at 31 March 2016 a total of 1 847, instead of a
target of 1 892, fuel samples were collected from retail
sites and tested. However, the number excludes an
additional 500 samples collected and tested in March
2015 as per signed SLA and the cash flow projections
over a period of 24 months, ending in February 2017.
It is thus appropriate to acknowledge that the target
has been exceeded by 455, which was not accounted
for in the previous financial year (2014/15) project.

90 183
100 201
170 327

98 194

93 188
125 250
114 227

62 131

71 146

and is proving difficult to achieve due to insufficient
information from applicants. Furthermore, the
Department partially achieved 54% compliance
within the 90-day turnaround time for final decisions
on all other licence applications during the period
under review against a target of 95% compliance.
The Department also achieved 75% compliance with
the 50% target for Historically Disadvantaged South
African (HDSA) participation in all licence applications.
The Department has continued its effort to improve
the collection and recovery of outstanding petroleum
licensing revenue. The Department has also made the
payment of outstanding licence fees a condition of any
new license where there are changes in ownership.
Furthermore, the Department conducted 17 public
awareness campaigns across the country. During
these campaigns, the Department shared information
on the petroleum licence application process,
opportunities in the sector, obligations of licence
holders, and information on fuel pricing. These
awareness campaigns have proved very useful
in encouraging licence holders to comply with the
conditions of their licences as well as those who
intend to apply for licences.
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Fuel supply

During the period under review, the Department continued to coordinate and monitor fuel
supply in the country to ensure the security of petroleum products supply. The Department
coordinates the refining schedules and processes, recommends applications for import
and export to the International Trade Administration Commission of South Africa (ITAC),
and chairs the supply managers meetings to coordinate logistics. The Department also
participates in various industry forums that facilitate the efficient distribution of petroleum
products in the country. The petroleum products supply situation in the country remains
very tight, especially with regard to Liquefied Petroleum Products (LPG). The age of the
refining and supply logistics infrastructure contributes to the current supply challenges,
which are compounded by an increase in demand for petroleum products. Table 33
compares crude oil imports for 2015.

Table 33: Crude oil imports for 2015

Nigeria 53 350 761 374
Saudi Arabia 35798 793 23.7
Angola 24 747 960 17.0
United Arab Emirates 9284 172 6.7
Qatar 6 354 861 41
Kuwait 4 439 765 2.6
Iraq 3003 005 2.0
Equatorial Guinea 2 638 294 1.9
Colombia 2129 815 1.4
Oman 971 241 0.62

Source: South African Revenue Services

A significant amount of crude oil was sourced from African countries; however, Middle
Eastern countries are still an important source of crude oil to South Africa. About 54% of
South African crude oil requirements were met by African countries, mainly from Nigeria
and Angola. Imports from these countries were 37% and 17%, respectively. This can be
translated to about 78 million barrels that were sourced from within the continent.

The crude oil imported by the major oil companies from January to December 2015
amounted to R119 million. The crude oil imported by the major oil companies was 84% of
the total crude oil imported. It can be concluded that the remaining 16% of the crude oil
imports were sourced by independent wholesalers and other crude oil distributors.

Refined products imports
Table 34 below represents the petroleum products imported for 2015.

Table 34: Petroleum products imports for 2015

Diesel 6443 371 229 38.2
Petrol 1 869 643 863 10.9
Kerosene* 275033 110 1.5
LPG 128 375 626 0.45

* Jet fuel & illuminating paraffin
Source: South African Revenue Services
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A total of 8.7 billion litres of refined products were
imported from January to December 2015; 6.4 billion
litres were of diesel which is 74% of the total products
imported.

Fuel pricing

The Department regulates the pricing of petroleum
products in accordance with the legislative framework.
This entails the determination, review, update and
maintenance of fuel levies and margins and the
process of paying fuel levies. Fuel price administration
includes developing, evaluating and monitoring pricing
models, updating elements of the BFP; and ensuring
that the fuel prices are audited before implementation.
The Department determines industry margins
using the Regulatory Accounting System (RAS)
methodology and the replacement costs principle
to ensure that investors in the petroleum sector can
receive appropriate returns on their investments.

In order to ensure transparency and strengthen the
fuel pricing process and provide regulatory certainty to
stakeholders, the Department undertook the following
studies:

- Review of Magisterial District Zones (MDZ)
to determine the primary transport costs of
delivering fuel in the country

- Valuation of the secondary storage and
benchmark service station asset base to
ascertain the actual capital costs of building
these facilities.

- Survey to determine the operational expenses of
a Benchmark Service Station (BSS)

The main purpose of these studies was to determine
and update the actual costs for: transporting fuel in the
country, building storage and services stations, and
operating a service station. These costs are included
in the pump price of petrol. The Department has
received final reports from consultants and concluded
the stakeholders’ engagements to solicit inputs and
comments from all the affected and concerned parties.
The outcomes of these projects will be implemented
once the Department has concluded its internal
approval processes.

The Department continued to adjust the fuel prices
every last Friday of the month. The crude oil prices
stayed below the US$40 per barrel during the period
under review. This was mainly due to the oversupply
of crude oil in the market and was exacerbated by the
fact that members of the Organisation of Petroleum
Exporting Country (OPEC) refused to reduce their
production quotas. The motorists paid at least R2.00
less per litre of petrol compared to the previous year.

Fuel price
administration
includes developing,
evaluating and
monitoring pricing
models, updating
elements of the
BFP; and ensuring
that the fuel prices
are audited before
implementation.

In December of each year, the Minister of Energy
adjusts the industry margins in terms of the fuel
pricing regulatory framework. Last December,
margins at retail, wholesale, storage and distribution
were adjusted overall by 5.8%. The Minister of
Energy, Hon. Tina Joemat-Pettersson (MP), approved
the annual adjustment of the fuel margins with effect
from 3 December 2015. The retail margin of petrol
was increased by 6.0 c/f which equated to a 3.8%
increase. Both the secondary storage and secondary
distribution margin for petrol, diesel and illuminating
paraffin were increased by 1.1 c/ respectively. The
wholesale margin remained unchanged.
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7.4 Programme 4: Electrification and
Energy Programme and Project
Management

7.4.1 Purpose

To manage, coordinate and monitor programmes and
projects focused on access to energy.

7.4.2 Sub-programmes

Sub-programme 4.1: Integrated National
Electrification Programme

This sub-programme oversees and manages the
finance and implementation processes for the
Electrification Programme, manages the annual
planning processes including electrification
infrastructure plans, and manages and coordinates
technical audits for the programme.

Sub-programme 4.2: Energy Regional Offices

This sub-programme provides advice on integrated
energy services, develops appropriate interventions
to enhance and promote universal access to energy,
manages and coordinates regional electrification
planning, and ensures economic and technical
compliance with relevant legislation.

Sub-programme 4.3: Programme and Projects
Management Office

This sub-programme provides specialised assistance
to programme and project managers, and management
in general, to apply management principles, coordinate
project information and report on projects.

Sub-programme 4.4: Energy Infrastructure/ Industry
Transformation

This sub-programme oversees programmes and
projects focused on the development, improvement
and transformation of the electricity generation,
transmission and distribution sector, and IPPs.

Sub-programme 4.5: Community Upliftment
Programmes and Projects

This sub-programme fulfils Government’s priorities for
broad transformation in the work of the Department
and the Energy Sector, and supports departmental
special programmes and projects.

7.4.3 Strategic objectives, performance
indicators, planned and actual achievement

Integrated National Electrification Programme

INEP and its implementing agencies — Eskom,
municipalities and non-grid service providers — have
made remarkable progress in increasing access to
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electricity in South Africa and have connected over
6.7 million households between 1994 to March 2016.
Access to electricity is at 88% since 1994. R5.6 billion
has been appropriated by 2015/16 financial year
on the Electrification Programme, to delivering
260 000 connections utilising both grid and non-grid
technologies. At the end of March 2016, INEP achieved
231 012 (grid) and 25 076 (non-grid) connections.
This results in a total of 256 088 new connections as
part of the 2015/16 financial year allocations.

The Non-Grid Electrification Programme has
progressed well in the last financial year and has over
achieved its target by achieving 25 076 connections.
Since the inception of Non-Grid Electrification
Programme, INEP achieved more than 123 379
installations of non-grid systems mainly in the Eastern
Cape, KwaZulu-Natal, Northern Cape and Limpopo.
Non-grid systems consisting of solar cells converting
sun energy into electrical energy are now also being
considered for implementation in urban areas of the
country with a view of increasing the basic electricity
services in the informal settlements. The EU is also
assisting the Department to develop a sustainable
delivery model and sustainable non-grid entities
around the country. INEP has also developed the first
draft of the Electrification Master Plan (EMP) to ensure
better cooperation between the different implementing
entities, as well as different technologies, and grid and
non-grid roll-out in un-serviced areas, to ensure that
universal access is reached by 2025/26.

Renewable Energy Independent Power Producer
Procurement Programme

In line with the national commitment to transition to
a low carbon economy, and the IRP, it is expected
that 17 800 MW of the 2030 target will be generated
from renewable energy sources, with 5 000 MW
to be operational by 2019 and a further 2 000 MW
(combined 7000 MW) operational by 2020.

In order to adhere to these targets and the power
invested in the Department, the following new capacity
determinations have been made:

- 13 225 MW of renewable energy (comprising
of solar PV: 4725 MW, wind: 6 360 MW, CSP:
1200 MW, small hydro: 195 MW, landfill gas:
25 MW, biomass: 210 MW, biogas: 110 MW and
the small-scale renewable energy programme:
400 MW)

- 2 500 MW designated from coal-fired plants
(excluding cross-border projects)

- 1 800 MW of cogeneration

- 3 126 MW of gas-fired power plants

- 2 609 MW of imported hydro



Over the past four years, REIPPPP has successfully
connected 43 REIPP to the grid, which has added an
additional 2 350 MW capacity to the national grid. The
total projects costs invested in the Windows currently
been announced is R192.6 billion. A minimum
ownership by local communities in an IPP of 2.5%
is required as a procurement condition. In this way,
a substantial portion of the investments has been
structured and secured as local community equity. An
individual community’s dividends earned will depend
on the terms of each transaction corresponding with
the relevant equity share. To date, all shareholding
for local communities has been structured through
the establishment of community trusts. For projects in
Bid Window (BW) BW1 to BW4 and 1S2, qualifying
communities will receive R29.2 billion net income
over the life of the projects, which is 20 years. The
R30.7 billion spent on B-BBEE during construction
for BW1 and BW2 already exceeded the R26.6 billion
that had originally been anticipated by IPPs.

Even though BW3 projects have only just started
construction, employment opportunities are 111%
of the planned numbers during the construction
phase (i.e.19 523 job years), with 23 projects still in
construction and employing people. The number of
employment opportunities should, therefore, continue
to grow beyond original expectations. These IPPs that
have been completed had planned to deliver 8 451 job
years during the construction phase, but only achieved
14 334 new jobs. This is 70% more than planned.

It is also of importance to note that even though
renewable energy production does not align directly
with the demand peaks of the national system, the
current renewable energy operational portfolio is
contributing an increasing percentage buffer between
the available supply and projected demand on the
electricity system. A 16% contribution has already
been made of the total energy produced during
the morning and evening system peak periods in a
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24-hour profile. As the energy mix diversifies with the
inclusion of CSP with storage, biomass and landfill
gas, the share of energy available during peak periods
should increase.

The Department has procured private peaker stations
to the capacity of about 1 000 MW that can be used
when there are larger demands than what the Eskom
generators can produce. The plant in the Eastern
Cape was completed in September 2015 and can
produce 330 MW, while the plant in KwaZulu-Natal,
when completed by the end of 2016, will be able to
produce 630 MW. Total projects costs were R8 billion,
while 210 permanent jobs and 6 190 temporary jobs
were created at both plants.

Community upliftment

Over the past four
years, REIPPPP

has successfully
connected 43 REIPP
to the grid, which has
added an additional

2 350 MW capacity to
the national grid.

In the past year, the Department has completed five
energy awareness campaigns, focused on the youth,
in five provinces: Piet Retief in Mpumalanga, Cullinan
in Gauteng, Petersburg in the Free State, Jozini in
KwaZulu-Natal and Khayelistha in the Western Cape.
The campaigns focused on interacting with learners
with regard to careers in the energy environment.
During these campaigns, a total of 6 550 learners
were reached.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

@ Department of Energy

In addition, the Department in partnership with
Women in Oil and Energy South Africa (WOESA)
have also conducted five business opportunities in
the Energy Sector Workshop for Women. These were
held in Northern Cape, Limpopo, North West, Eastern
Cape and Free State provinces and more than 1 000
women were empowered at this workshop during the
previous financial year. The main purposes of the
workshops were the following:

- To provide information on the business
opportunities in the Energy Sector across the
value chain

- To encourage professionals to invest in the
sector through such organisations as WOESA

- To take active interest in the sector and provide
information on opportunities to women and young
people who want to own, control and develop
their businesses in the Energy Sector

Integrated Energy Centres

The Department, in collaboration with oil companies,
have since 2002 been establishing the IECs in
poverty nodal areas around the country as part of the
Department’s mandate to promote access to energy
services, such as petroleum products in rural areas
where the volumes of sales are too low for a normal
commercial operation to be established.

The objectives of the IEC Programme are:

- Provide access to safe and affordable energy
resources to poor households
Provide information regarding the safe, efficient
and environmentally-sustainable use of energy
sources and available energy options such as
renewable and non-grid energy

- A strong social responsibility aimed at poverty
alleviation, job creation and capacity building

- Stimulate rural economy

There are seven operating IECs, and the construction
of two new IECs in Bushbuckridge and Qamatha will
be completed in the second quarter of 2016/2017.
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7.5 Programme 5: Nuclear Energy
7.5.1 Purpose

Manage the South African nuclear energy sector
and control nuclear material in terms of international
obligations, nuclear legislation and policies to ensure
the safe and peaceful use of nuclear energy.

7.5.2 Sub-Programmes

Sub-programme 5.1: Nuclear Safety and Technology
(Chief Directorate, Nuclear Safety and Technology

This sub-programme manages and implements all
matters related to nuclear safety and technology as
required by legislation and international agreements;
implements the Nuclear Energy Policy, which was
approved in 2008 as a national nuclear programme
in line with the IRP requirements; and administers
all matters related to nuclear safety, liability and
emergency management with the aim of improving the
governance of the nuclear energy sector, specifically
in relation to nuclear safety and nuclear technology.

Sub-programme 5.2: Nuclear Non-proliferation and
Radiation Security (Chief Directorate: Nuclear Non-
proliferation and Radiation Security)

This sub-programme manages and implements
all matters related to nuclear non-proliferation and
radiation security as required by legislation and
international agreements.

Sub-programme 5.3: Nuclear Policy

This sub-programme develops and reviews policies as
required by international agreements and governance
of the nuclear sector in South Africa; undertakes
research and development; and reviews and monitors
nuclear safety, nuclear technology, nuclear non-
proliferation and nuclear radiation security policies,
and provides advice accordingly.

7.5.3 Strategic objectives, performance
indicators, planned and actual
achievements

In December 2015, Cabinet approved the start of
the procurement process, and that the Department
must issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) to test
the market appetite to ascertain the price of modern
nuclear power plants. The RFP was completed in
January 2016 and was currently under independent
review before issuing in the new financial year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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To take the procurement process forward, funding of
R200 million was secured in the MTEF for 2016/17
for the appointment of the Transaction Advisors
with international nuclear programme experience
to provide advice on nuclear procurement. The
Transactional Advisors will consist of various experts
including supply chain experts, financial management
experts, contract management experts, and Nuclear
New Build Programme development and structuring
specialists.

In December

2015, Cabinet
approved the start

of the procurement
process, and that
the Department must
issue a Request for
Proposals (RFP)

to test the market
appetite to ascertain
the price of modern
nuclear power plants.

The supply chain process to appoint the Transactional
Advisors is underway for the new financial year
2016/17. Efforts to establish the Programme
Management Office (PMO) to execute the programme
are well underway, with a senior procurement
specialist and nuclear specialist appointed in
November 2015. Further implementation initiatives
anticipate securing additional capacity through
interdepartmental and government nuclear sector
experts on a short- to long-term basis. The Section
34 Determination for 9 600 MW nuclear programme
to pave way for the procurement of the Nuclear New
Build Programme was gazetted. The concluded
inter-governmental agreements with various nuclear
vendor countries were tabled in Parliament. The
Department has established a Steering Committee
to address transitional arrangements from the South
African Nuclear Energy Corporation SOC Limited
(Necsa) to the National Radioactive Waste Disposal
Institute (NRWDI) as per Section 30 of National
Radioactive Waste Disposal Institute Act, 2008 (Act
No. 53 of 2008).



Following the IAEA's emergency preparedness
review mission, the Department has developed a
plan of action to address the recommendations of the
mission and commenced with an amendment of the
2005 National Nuclear Disaster Management Plan.
The amended plan will later be shared with relevant
stakeholders prior to its approval in the 2016/17
financial year.

Eight public awareness campaigns and community
outreach events were held to demystify nuclear
energy, which was double the target of four, and
was driven mainly by demand for such from various
stakeholders.

The Nuclear Non-Proliferation and Radiation Security
Sub-programme manages and implements all matters
related to nuclear non-proliferation and radiation
security as required by legislation and international
agreements. The Department issues authorisations
or denials, conducts inspections in terms of Sections
34, 35, 37 38 and 39 of the Nuclear Energy Act,

1999 (Act 46 of 1999). The international obligations
include: Non-Proliferation Treaty, Pelindaba Treaty,
Safeguards Agreement, and Convention on the
Physical Protection of Nuclear Material.

During the 2015/16 financial year, a total number of
102 authorisations were received, 62 applications
met the turnaround time of six to eight weeks and
the overall achievement was 61%. A total of 40
Nuclear Compliance Inspections were conducted,
eight nuclear safeguards compliance audits were
conducted and four companies were visited to
ensure compliance in terms of the implementation
of nuclear security measures. The annual targets
for inspections and audits were over achieved
(inspections: 40 conducted with planned target of
eight; audits: eight conducted with a planned target
of four). The objective of increasing inspections and
audits was due to optimisation of the resources to
strengthen control measures and ensure compliance
by authorisation holders.
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7.6 Programme 6: Clean Energy
7.6.1 Purpose

Manage and facilitate the development and
implementation of clean and renewable energy
initiatives, as well as energy efficiency and demand
side management initiatives.

7.6.2 Sub-Programmes

Sub-programme 6.1: Energy Efficiency

This sub-programme advances Energy Efficiency
(EE) in South Africa by planning and coordinating
initiatives and interventions focused on developing
and improving the EE market and ensures integration
and coordination of EE initiatives and interventions
with relevant associated institutions.

Sub-programme 6.2: Renewable Energy

This sub-programme ensures the integration of
renewable energy into South Africa’s mainstream
energy supply by planning and coordinating initiatives;
interventions focused on the development and
improvement of the renewable energy market; and
the integration and coordination of renewable energy
initiatives and interventions with relevant associated
institutions.

Sub-programme 6.3: Climate Change and
Designated National Authority

This sub-programme ensures that climate change
and environment response measures, in terms of
mitigation and adaptation, are implemented within the
Energy Sector.

7.6.3 Strategic objectives, performance
indicators, planned targets and actual
achievements

Energy Efficiency Mandatory Labelling of Appliances
The Department has made great strides in diversifying
our energy mix by introducing clean energy
technologies into our energy mix. On the supply side,
significant progress has been made in introducing
utility scale renewable energy technologies through
the IPP programme; the success of the renewable
energy programme in introducing clean energy has
been complemented by more work to improve energy
efficiency in the residential sector. With the inception
of regulations regarding the labelling of appliances,
South African energy consumers will henceforth be
provided with information about the energy usage of
their appliances. By labelling our appliances to indicate
their energy usage, users can make the correct
choices insofar as the relative energy consumption of
fridges, washing machines, ovens and other kitchen
appliances. Over the life of any appliance, its energy
consumption is the most critical cost parameter upon
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which its cost effectiveness should be measured. It
is for this reason that information about the energy
usage of our appliances should therefore be
displayed prominently to educate the public about the
choices they make. The Department has accordingly
accelerated the introduction of mandatory labelling of
the energy rating of 12 appliances as a starting point.

The Energy Efficiency
and Demand Side
Management
(EEDSM) Programme
continues to make
energy efficiency
improvements in
various municipalities.

Municipal Energy Efficiency and Demand Side
Management Programme

The Energy Efficiency and Demand Side Management
(EEDSM) Programme continues to make energy
efficiency improvements in various municipalities,
through efficient technology deployment in lighting,
heating, ventilation and cooling systems, street-
lighting and the use of smart technologies for
managing energy. In the year under consideration,
the programme achieved 23 GWh of savings at 17
municipalities, adding to the accumulated savings
to date of 499 GWh under the municipal EEDSM
programme.

Solar Water Heaters

The objectives of this programme include reducing
electricity demand, job creation and skills development
through localisation. The revised implementation
model has been developed in order to align the
programme with the set objectives and to accelerate
the pace of implementation. Bids were invited and
contracts concluded with suppliers in respect of the
manufacture of baseline systems that meet the local
content requirements, social facilitation, and technical
assessments relating to the targeted installation
areas. A budget of R65.8 million was spent to procure
8 950 baseline solar water systems to be delivered
by 30 April 2016 in the first batch of locally-produced
systems.



8UON

8UON

GLoz Aine

u| pajuelb jopow
uoneusws|dwi
MaU 8y} Jo}
jenosddy

8UON

swuweiboud
NSa33 sy}

ul pajedioied
salediolunw 9z
|leJanQ ‘|enosdde
leuyy o} Joud
Jeup ul [|3s a1om
sanedipiunw
J3Y}0 woly
spodal aujjeseq
leuonippe ¢|

sowuwelboid
NS@33 urjusisyul
sI sbuines ayy
Bunuodau ul el siy)

8UON

SUON

000 ov

8UON

suodau aulaseq
J12y} Hwans jou pip
sajeddlunw Q|

uonedlIIaA

pue juswalinseaw
Ja)e Jaje| Jeak

e pauodal aq
Ajuo ueo sbuineg

paAalyoy
payelp Absjens
sefoig |euoneN -

paAsIYOY

S)UN 000 §
noge |jejsul
0] pamoje
sem woysy -
:PaABIYDY JON

panslydy

spodal suljeseq

pspiwgns

sapedpunw
oL Auo -
:panaiyoe Ajjeied

auop sem UpAL
G'0 9AaIyoe
0] sjo9foud jo
sjuswdojanap
9 buluueld -
:panalyoe Ajeled

yoday @oualiajuo)

SUON O3dIvVS

ABajeng seboig

BUON [euoneN yeiq

$10]08S [eI0JaWWO0D
Q [enuapisal ul
pajjejsul spun

SUON HMS Lyl Sv

yoday
uoneyuawsa|dwy
auoN ABisug sjgemeusy

sanijediounw
0¢ leuonippe
ue Joj sauljeseq
uondwnsuod

auoN ABisus padojanaq

wnuue Jad

sBuines ABiaus jo
UML G'0 dAs1Yyde 0}
sy09foud Buidojonap

QUON » Buluue|d

SUON

SUON

SUON

8UON

SUON

syoefoud

NSQ33 woy
pallIaA ¥ pasijeal
sBuines Abisus Jo
UML JO JaquinN

sJojealpul sauewiofied Abisug ues|) g swweiboid Gy a|qel

pajsoy O3HIVS

AbBajeng seboig
|euoneN yeiq

Jeah Jad

$J0}08S [BI0JaWWOD
9 |eljUSpISal Ul
pajlejsul spun
HAMS 10 JequinN

yoday
uonejuswa|dw|
ABiau3 sjgemausy
10 Juswdojanaq

Ajjenuue
padojanap uaaq
aAey sauljeseq
uondwnsuoo
ABiaus yoiym Joy
sapedpiunw
leuohiippe

Jo JaquinN

syoefoud

NSQ33 wou
pasijeas sbuines
ABJaus jo inoy Jad

UML Jo JaquinN

VIN

VIN

M3IABI Japun Jeak
Buunp pajesul
QJ9M s)un HAAS
061 L€ "o1ep 0}
paj|eisul usaq aney
SHun HAW\S 656 CLv

pajejdwod
ue|d uonoe R
ABojens 33N

sapeddiunw
G¢ 1e pajeniul
sy09foid aujjaseg

swuweuboud
INSQ33 [ediunw
8y} Woly panalyoe
u2aq aney sbuines
JOUMLGO

1o6.e} oN

106.e] ON

$10}09S |BI0JaWIWOD
Q9 [enuapIsal Ul
pajjejsul syun
HMS 000 S8¥
(1ouiqed

Aq panoidde

1) Juswnoop

ABejyens 33N
0 uoneB|nwo.d

sanedoiunw
0¢ [euolippe
Jo} sauleseq
uondwnsuod
ABisua padojanaq

syoeloid NSAT3
WwoJ) pallIan g
pasijeas sbuines
ABJ1aud JO UML G'L

PART B

Performance Information



sbuipjing

ul suieb Aousioiye ABiaus palisap ay} aasiyoe |Im sy} — swwelboid pub pews
papunj Jouop ay} yum swwelboud siyy bunesbayul Aq pansiyoe usaq sey juswubiy

ss920.d Juswainooid 0} anp sAejap aininy sjeulw|d o0} pouad Jeak-¢ e JIaA0

paoe|d aq Aejiwis |im syjuswaalbe uoneljelsul ay] }ebpng paaoidde ayy yym aul| ui
swaisAs 000 001 01 dn BuLBAOD ‘sieaA ¢ 1xau ay} Jano polad ay) 4o} pajuswa|dwi
uda( sey swalsAs auljdseq Jo ainjoejnuew ayy Joy Absjesis Juswainooid ay |

(swwelbouid pub pews
8y} Jopun Buipnjoul) usyeuapun a4 |[IM sauljeseq uondwnsuod ABlsus |ediolunw 1o

pajuiodde aq 0} siapinoid 82IAIBS BIO|N

"slopinold 801A18S AR B} UO Juspuadap si SBUIABS PBABILDE JO UOIIBOIIIBA 8Y |

Jeak

leroueul /1/910¢
ay} ul "038 ‘doy joou
Nd ‘spub pews
‘sjooyos/sbuipjing
JO uonepljosuod
‘9’| ‘odo9s pasinal
2y} uo Buisnooy

aq ||m yosfoid By

panoidde

194 10U J0)08S
Buipiing o11gnd 4o}
ABajess abuey)
ajewl|D g ABisug

padojansp

usaq sey J0}09es
Buipiing o1gnd Joy
ABajens abuey)n
ajewD g Abisug

:panaiyoe Ajjeed

8UON

(swweiboud ia)ow pews)
sawuwelboid Atejuswaldwod Jayjo yum uswubile jo
3OB| 8Y} 0} NP PaduUSWWOI jou sey swwelboid sy

ssa20.d Juswainooud ay) ul Aejap ay} B sIno 18bpng
0} anp palnoold usaqg aAey swalshs 066 8 AluO

saljedioiunw jsow Ul sauljeseq uondwnsuoo Abisus
0 Yoe| 8y} 0} anp sajjijedioiunw Ma} B 0} pajiwl| Sie
awuwelboid NS@TT ayy Jepun sbBuines payian ay |
spua-JeaA |ejoueuly [euoneu

% |edidunw Jo Juswubijesiw anp pouad bBuodal
ay} bej os|e g payuan usaq jou aney sbuineg

9 swweibo.id 10j souewliojiad Jspun JO seale auwi0219A0 0} ABajel)S 94 ajqe]

panoidde u0)08s
Buipiing o11gnd Joy
ABajeng abueyn
ajew|D 9 AbBiaug QUON

(penuiuoo) siojeaipul souewlofied ABisug ues|n g swweibold Gt ojqe]

sbuip|ing Jo} ABajes)s abueyd ajew|o ¥ Abiau]

pa|[e)sul siejeay Jajem Ie|os Jo JaquinN

safiedioiunw Og [euonippe
ue Jo} sauljeseq uondwnsuoo ABisus padojars(

wnuue Jad sbuines ABiaus Jo
UML G0 @naiyoe o) syoaloisd Buidojansp g Buluueld

ABajens

abueyp ayewn|
ABiau3 panoiddy

V/IN 18b.e) ON

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

Department of Energy



189 L1Z L €L 0229 ¥6L LSV L 205 STL LiL Tyl L 619 292 L
L181GL | 162 0€8 710286 | 8.1 611 €8/ 182 196 00% ABiau3 ues|n
bbb 8Ly G¥8 62S 9¥8 18 620 SS9 9Ll 659 ABisuz sesjonN
juswabeuepy
¥5¢ 98 €16 08l ¥ 128 112 ¥ GOS € G8% 028 G 050 ¥28 § 108014 pue swwelbold ABisuz » uoneIyLIO8|]
299 €1 8YS v9 oLz 8l 0S 8G6 89 800 69 uope|nbay s)onpoid wnsjoned ¥ wnajoled
¥0€ LI 6v. L €50 € l6v Z G60 8¢ 985 0¥ Buluue|d % Aoljod ABieu3
gev e 891.62 109 092 LEL 191112 868 112 uopensiuwpy

000 000 000 000 000 000

ainjpuadxy
Japun/(1a3nQ)

ainypuadxy

ainjipuadx3 jenjoy | uoneudoiddy jeulq ainypuadx3y jenjoy | uoneudoiddy jeulq

1apun/(JaAQ) juswyiedaq ayj 1o} |ejol

Slivioe 9L/S10C

9102 YyoJey LE je se souew.iojiad [ejoueuy juswiiedsd 64 9jqel

L181SL |
8ve ¢
69¢ | 6lv /91 88/ 89| 016 ¥9 €6 ¥ €28 69
00l 8¥L L 1G9 8G9 162908 L 6v¢ ¥S ¢l0lle lee Gee

000.d 000. 000.d 000. 000. 000.d

ainjipuadx3y ainjipuadx3y
Japun/(1aAQ)

LS¢ 0€8
18l v

.0 286 |
6¢G 9

8.1 611
6l

€8.18¢
86. G

196 00V
1186

Aoyiny [euoneN pejeubiseq g ebueys syew|)

ABisug sjgemausy

Aouaioy3 Abioug

ainjipuadx3 jenjoy | uonerdoiddy jeurq ainjipuadx3 jenjoy | uonerdoiddy jeuiq KBiauz ues|n

Japun/(1aAQ)

SLivioc 9L/S10C

9L0Z Yoieyy LE je se souew.opiad eroueuly 9 swwelbold 8¢ 8|qel

sjebpnq ypm souewoped BuuI °9°/

Ajjenuue Ajlenuue padojansp Ajjenuue padojanap

padojansp usaqg aAeYy sauljeseq uolidwnsuod saljedioiunw g |euonippe ue uaaq aAey sauljeseq uondwnsuod ABisua usaq aney saulaseq uondwnsuod Abisus
ABiaus yolym Joy sapijedioiunw [euopippe 0z = Joj sauljeseq uondwnsuod ABisua padojeraqg yolym Joj sapijediolunw [eUOIPPE JO JaquinN yolym Joy sapijedioiunw [euonippe Jo JaquinN
syosfoid NS@3T [edidiunw wouy wnuue Jad sbBuines AB1aus Jo UM L syo9foid NS wouy paylsA syo9foud NSO wouy pasijeal

paulIaA g pasijeal sbuines ABiaus payuend | G0 aaalyoe o} syosfoid Buidojansp @ Bujuueld 9 pasi|eal sbuines ABiaua Jo YL JO JaquinN sBuines ABiaus jo unoy Jad yppL Jo JaquinN

9L/51L02
jobie] pauue|d pasiAay 9OUBWLIOLID] PASIADY

J103ea1pu|
91/510zZ }obJe] pauue|d J10}e2Ipu| 9oUBWIONAd

9 swiweiboid Jof syeb.ie) pauueld o} sebueyd /¥ 8jqel

PART B E

Performance Information



The transfer of payments to municipalities has been
made in accordance with the approved annual
Division of Revenue Act of South Africa (DoRA)
transfer requirements (Refer to Note 9 to the Annual
Financial Statements).

8.1 Transfers and Subsidies

The Department disbursed payments amounting
to R6.63 billion to public entities, municipalities
and implementing agents during the year under
review which resulted in a budget under-spending
of R123 million or 1.82% at year-end. This is mainly
attributable to the non-disbursement of payments in
the following projects:

- INEP — Non-grid Electrification Programme:
R10.41 million or 6.25% below budget. This is in
relation to the installation of solar home systems
and the budget balance is attributable to a late

Table 50: Major transfer payments

SANEDI 64 861
International Membership Fees 29 621
EEDSM — NSWHP 112 522
EEDSM — Municipalities 177 899
NESCA 580 358
NNR 21487
INEP — Eskom 3613243
INEP — Municipalities 1980 340
INEP — Non-Grid 166 592
Households 3659
SETAs 792

uptake of systems in one of the concession
areas as well as late submission of claims by
service providers. A request has been submitted
to the National Treasury to roll this balance of
R10.41 million over to the 2016/17 financial
year to enable service providers to complete
work in their designated areas and also to allow
proper evaluation of work performed prior to final
payments.

- EEDM Programme — SWHP: R112.52 million or

100% below budget. The 2015/16 year was the
first year of this programme being implemented
by the Department after the termination of the
MoA with Eskom in the previous financial year.
Due to the technical complexity of the evaluation
process, the procurement process took longer
than anticipated. The procurement process was,
however, concluded by year-end with preferred
bidders being appointed. A roll-over motivation
for the unspent amount has been submitted
for consideration and approval by the National

Treasury.
64 861 - 100.00
29 563 58 99.80
- 112 522 0.00
177 899 - 100.00
580 358 - 100.00
21 487 - 100.00
3613 243 - 100.00
1980 340 - 100.00
156 179 10413 93.75
3 656 5 99.92
792 - 100.00

Transfers and subsidies are included under Annexures 1A to 1G to the Annual Financial Statements.
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Table 52: Transfer payments to all organisations other than public entities

Non-grid
service
providers

Households

SETAs

IAEA fees

IAEA voluntary
contribution

GIF

AFRA fund

IRENA

IEF

Non-grid electricity
connections

Leave gratuities and
retirement benefits,
bursaries paid to non-
employees (learner
programme)

Annual contributions to
SETAs in accordance
with DPSA’s Circular
HRD 1 of 2013

2016 International
membership fees

Monetary contribution to
the IAEA for the ReNuAL
project

2014 International
membership fees

2015 International
membership fees

2016 International
membership fees

2016 International
membership fees

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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166 592

3659

792

20484

3000

457

3984

1328

368

156 179

3 656

792

20 484

3000

457

3943

1313

365

A total amount of R10.41 million could not
be disbursed mainly due to a late uptake of
systems in one of the concession areas as
well as late submission of claims by service
providers

Exchange rate for foreign currency less than
anticipated

Exchange rate for foreign currency less than
anticipated

Exchange rate for foreign currency less than
anticipated



9.1 Conditional Grants and Earmarked
Funds Paid

Table 53: Conditional Grant 1: Integrated National Electrification Programme (equitable share)

Purpose of the grant

Expected outputs of the grant

Actual outputs achieved

Amount per amended DoRA (R’000)

Amount transferred (R'000)

Reasons if amount as per DoRA not transferred
Amount spent by the Department (R'000)
Reasons for the funds unspent by the entity

Monitoring mechanism by the Department

Electricity connections

N/A

N/A

1980 340

1980 340

N/A

N/A

N/A

Technical audits and monthly reports

Table 54: Conditional Grant 2: Integrated National Electrification Programme (Eskom)

Purpose of the grant

Expected outputs of the grant

Actual outputs achieved

Amount per amended DoRA (R’000)

Amount transferred (R'000)

Reasons if amount as per DoRA not transferred
Amount spent by the Department/municipality (R'000)
Reasons for the funds unspent by the entity

Monitoring mechanism by the Department

Electricity connections
N/A

N/A

3613243

3613243

N/A

N/A

N/A

Eskom

Table 55: Conditional Grant 3: Energy Efficiency and Demand Side Management Programme (equitable share)

Purpose of the grant

Expected outputs of the grant

Actual outputs achieved

Amount per amended DoRA (R’000)

Amount transferred (R'000)

Reasons if amount as per DoRA not transferred
Amount spent by the Department/municipality (R'000)
Reasons for the funds unspent by the entity

Monitoring mechanism by the Department

Implementation of energy efficiency technologies
N/A

N/A

177 899

177 899

N/A

Municipal financial year end is in June

The Department developed a monitoring and evaluation
tool indicating the pay-back period to achieve kWh
savings; energy savings (kWh) achieved by each
municipality & R(million)/kWh. The Department annually
undertakes an independent technical audit, M&V of
energy savings achieved by implementing municipalities
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Table 56: Conditional Grant 4: Energy Efficiency and Demand Side Management Programme (NSWHP)

Purpose of the grant

Expected outputs of the grant
Actual outputs achieved

Amount per amended DoRA (R’000)
Amount transferred (R'000)

Reasons if amount as per DoRA not transferred

Amount spent by the Department/municipality (R’000)
Reasons for the funds unspent by the entity

Monitoring mechanism by the Department

9.2 Conditional Grants and Earmarked
Funds Received

In 2015/16, the Department participated in several
training and development projects and learnership
programmes. These programmes included the
following:

- The Service Training Programme funded by the
Energy and Water Sector Education and Training
Authority (EWSETA) for electrical engineers
which is aimed at ensuring that opportunities are
created and promoted for unemployed students
who have N6 or N4 qualifications to gain practical
experience in the workplace in order to obtain
their qualifications

- Several projects and programmes funded
by the Chemical Industries Sector Education
and Training Authority (CHIETA) including a
project management learnership programme,
Public Administration, Internal Audit, Petroleum
Engineering Programme and skills programme

The Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act No. 97 of
1998) established Sectorial Education and Training
Authorities (SETAs) across various sectors, to
coordinate training and learnership programmes in
terms of the National Skills Development Strategy.
SETAs have been established in terms of the Skills
Development Act to:

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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Implementation of the NSWHP

112 522
0

Following the termination of the Department-Eskom MoA for the
implementation of the programme, Cabinet's approval of the
Revised Contracting Model was obtained during the year under
review, paving the way for the amendment of the Appropriation
listing the Department as the implementer and not Eskom. The
start of the procurement process and the evaluation of tenders
which took longer than anticipated negatively affected the project
resulting in the budget underspending of R112.52 million.

N/A
N./A
N/A

- Develop sector skills plans

- Implement sector skills plans

- Promote and register learnership

- Collect and disburse skills development levies in
the sector

Government departments are required to prepare,
submit (to their relevant SETAs) and implement WSPs
as part of the Skills Strategy, indicating government’s
commitment, as the largest employer, towards skills
development and training in South Africa. For this
purpose, the Department developed and submitted its
WSP for the 2015/16 financial year.

During the 2015/16 financial year an amount of
R1.59 million was received by the Department from
affiliated Energy—related SETAs. As per National
Treasury’s requirements, this amount was surrendered
to the National Revenue Fund. The Department is
participating in several learner programmes that are
funded by SETA's and are used to implement learner
and training programmes. Although the funding was
surrendered to the National Revenue Fund during the
2015/16 financial year, funding surrendered for the
learner programmes, which are funded by SETAs, are
appropriated annually as earmarked allocations for
learner and training programmes.



10.1 Donor Funds Received

Table 57: Donor Fund 1: Energy Efficiency Monitoring and Implementation Project (Swiss Donor Fund)

Full amount of the funding
Period of the commitment

Purpose of the funding

Expected outputs

Actual outputs achieved

Amount received in current period (R'000)
Amount spent by the Department (R'000)
Reasons for the funds unspent

Monitoring mechanism by the donor

R13.9 million
August 2010 to June 2016

Contribute towards the Energy Efficiency Monitoring & Implementation
Project. The project’s objective is to build capacity in energy efficiency
monitoring & implementation both at national & municipal levels in South
Africa

- Release the 2nd Energy Efficiency Target Monitoring Report

- Establish an online Energy Efficiency Monitoring System

- Support the development of data collection methodologies, for industry,
mining, transport, commercial & government buildings

- Establish an energy efficiency information management system
that will be used to share energy efficiency related matters with all
interested & affected stakeholders

The 2nd Energy Efficiency Target Monitoring Report was completed
based on the end use energy data received from industries through the
established an online Energy Efficiency Monitoring System. In addition,
the project supported the development of data collection methodologies
for industry, mining, transport, commercial & Government buildings, & the
establishment of an Energy Efficiency Information Management System to
disseminate information

2 865
2 865
N/A

A Project Steering Committee was established to monitor progress. In
addition, monthly, quarterly & bi-annual progress reports are compiled as
part of the project monitoring & evaluation process

The Energy Efficiency Monitoring and Implementation Project had intended to come to an
end in December 2014. The project was, however, extended to June 2016. The inclusion
of the transport sector in addition to those sectors that are already part of the development
(industrial, mining, commercial project, public buildings and residential sector) necessitated
the extension of this project. The project aims to establish a mechanism by which data for
the transport sector can be collected in order to monitor the effect of policy, structural and
activity changes on the transport sector. The final transfer payment of R2.86 million was
made to SANEDI during the 2015/16 financial year.
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Table 58: Donor Fund 2: Implementation of “Smart Metering” in South Africa

Full amount of the funding
Period of the commitment
Purpose of the funding
Expected outputs

Actual outputs achieved

Amount received in current period (R'000)
Amount spent by the department (R'000)

Reasons for the funds unspent

Monitoring mechanism by the donor

R179.5 million

April 2013 to March 2016

Implementation of smart metering in the South African electricity industry
Draft smart grid national policy document

Currently still piloting projects to test certain policy priorities. 9 pilot
projects are still underway

151 592
151 592

Significant time was spent aligning the Smart Metering Programme
proposal from SANEDI to the objectives of the Department leading to the
business plan only being signed on in September 2014

Delays were also experienced with the signing of all Collaboration
Agreements between SANEDI and the participating municipalities as this
entailed both legal departments and local councils working through the
technicalities of the agreement as co-funding was also built in them

Due to lack of skills capacity in some municipalities, SANEDI had to close
that gap by designing implementation guidelines to create uniformity and
guide project’s implementation

The individual projects at municipality level are not part of any KPA of the
project managers, therefore, the project never received the required level
of attention

The procurement of goods and services at municipalities is a great
complexity. Time, specifications and supply chain management processes
have their life cycle that are designed to function in a particular order; our
projects required fast tracking processes but had to keep within the limits
of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003)

PFT chaired by Department

Programme management team (SANEDI)

Quarterly Report by participating municipalities

Financial structure of programme to pay in percentages of completion
Site visits

The Smart Metering Implementation Programme’s funding is governed by the

Reconstruction and Development Programme (RDP) Fund Act, 1994 (Act No. 7 of 1994), as
amended. Section 5 of this Act requires that, in the absence of any provision to the contrary
in a technical assistance agreement, all funding not spent by the end of a financial year
must be paid back into the RDP Fund. The General Budget Support Technical Assistance
Agreement with the EU does not make provision for the roll-over of funding. A total of
R151.59 million was transferred to the SANEDI during the 2015/16 financial year of which
an amount of R68.46 million remained unspent by 31 March 2016. The mentioned funds,
plus interest earned of R5.49 million were subsequently surrendered to the RDP Fund
during May 2016.

The initial programme timeline of two years became unrealistic, as the complexity of aligning
principal objects, close legal/council buy-in and maturity of participating municipalities was
never factored in. A period extension will be requested from the National Treasury to allow
the finalisation and achievement of the project’s output/objective.
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Table 59: Donor Fund 3: Renewable Energy Development Programme

Full amount of the funding
Period of the commitment

Purpose of the funding

Expected outputs

Actual outputs achieved

Amount received in current period (R'000)
Amount spent by the department (R’000)

Reasons for the funds unspent

Monitoring mechanism by the donor

R31.08 million
April 2013 to December 2016

Technical assistance to the Department, further development of the WASA
and technical assistance to Eskom for renewable energy integration in
electricity supply

Increased deployment of low carbon technologies in the Energy Sector:

1. (a) Energy Efficiency subcomponent - NEES; Energy Efficiency
Campaign (Standards & Labelling); Energy Efficient Schools Pilot
Project
(b) Renewable Energy sub-component — MoA between Department,
SANEDI & SARETEC; Renewable Energy Data Statistics system;
Grid codes for REIPP; SWH for carbon offset

2. Wind Atlas for South Africa extended to rest of Eastern Cape and
parts of Free State and KwaZulu-Natal

3. Report on Eskom’s System Adequacy and Reserves study

In progress:

1. (a) Draft NEES completed & circulated on 01 April 2016; Minister of
Energy launched Energy Efficiency Campaign during Africa Utility
Week in May 2016; procurement for the energy efficient schools pilot
project is underway
(b) A consultant to help SARETEC refine its activities has been
appointed; technical advisor on energy data and statistics began work
in February 2016 and has finalised the inception report, and is building
the infrastructure for the system; a technical advisor on grid codes has
begun work; procurement process for SWH project has commenced.

2. Wind measurement masts have been installed in Rhodes Eastern
Cape, Jozini, Eston KwaZulu-Natal and Memel Free State and are
now live/online.

3.  Workshops conducted on stochastic methods, i.e. the SISYFOS
model. A report is being prepared.

31080
31080

Delays in approval of implementation agreements and procurement
requests

Component Managers, Management Committee and Advisory Board

The Renewable Energy Development Programme’s funding is governed by the RDP
Fund Act, as amended. Section 5 of this act requires that all funding not spent by the
end of a financial year, must be paid back into the RDP Fund. A total of R31.08 million
was transferred to the SANEDI during the 2015/16 financial year of which an amount of
R22.36 million remained unspent by 31 March 2016. The mentioned funds plus an interest
earned of R1.14 million were subsequently surrendered to the RDP Fund during May 2016.
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10.2 Utilisation of Donor Funds

10.2.1 Energy Efficiency Monitoring and
Implementation Project

The Government of South Africa and the Government
of Switzerland recognise climate change as a
fundamental risk to future development and livelihood.
Based on the Long-Term Mitigation Scenarios for South
Africa, the options for climate change reductions have
been assessed and it is acknowledged that energy
efficiency is one of the most cost-effective options.
South Africa launched its Energy Efficiency Strategy in
2005 but full implementation is constrained by lack of
capacity at national, municipal and sector practitioner
levels. An agreement was signed between the South
African Government and the Swiss Confederation,
represented by the Swiss Federal Department of
Foreign Affairs and acting through the Swiss Agency
for Development and Cooperation. During the 2013/14
financial year, the Department did not receive donor
funding from the Swiss Confederation. The project
continued during the 2014/15 financial year as the
Energy Efficiency Monitoring and Implementation
Project was extended to June 2016 due to the
inclusion of the transport sector to those sectors
that are already part of the development (industrial,
mining, commercial, public buildings, residential
sector). The project aims to establish a mechanism
by which data for the transport sector can be collected
in order to monitor the effect of policy, structural and
activity changes on the sector.

10.2.2 Implementation of Smart Metering in
South Africa

During the 2012/13 financial year, a total of
R179.5 million, for disbursement over a three-
year period, was made available through the EU
Commission financing agreement and the National
Development Policy Support Programme for the
implementation of smart metering in the South African
electricity industry. The project was anticipated to
comprise of two phases:

- The establishment of a vision and standards for
smart grid technology for South Africa

The implementation of smart grid technologies

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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The programme was effectively implemented in

the 2014/15 financial year. The programme scope

included policy objectives of the smart grid pilot

project. These policy objectives are broadly defined

within the following areas:

- Supporting the small-scale IPP Programme
through a net-metering pilot

- Support improved implementation of current
policies, such as free basic electricity

- Support electricity distributors (municipalities/
Eskom) to fully implement tariff structures,
including inclining block tariff and time of use
tariff which would ultimately lead to improved
financial viability

The programme is largely implemented through
Collaboration Agreements with various municipalities.

10.2.3 Renewable Energy Development
Programme

The bilateral agreement for the programme was
signed by the Minister of Energy of South Africa and
the Danish Ambassador on behalf of the Danish
Minister of Climate Energy and Buildings during
the Danish Prime Minister’s visit in April 2013. The
management of the programme resides jointly with
the South Africa’s Department and the Danish Ministry
for Climate, Energy and Buildings, supported by the
Embassy of Denmark.

The development objective of the programme is to
decouple economic growth in the Republic of South
Africa from the growth in overall Greenhouse Gas
(GHG) emissions. The intermediate objective is to
increase the deployment of low carbon technology in
the Energy Sector.

The programme is divided into three components:

- Technical Assistance to the Department

- Further development of the WASA

- Technical Assistance to Eskom, the South
African electricity supplier, for renewable energy
integration into electricity supply






2. Part C

1. INTRODUCTION

The Department of Energy (Department) has put
governance structures in place to ensure good
governance, and effective, efficient and economical
utilisation of the state resources in the following areas:
- Risk management

- Anti-fraud and corruption

- Minimising conflict of interest

- Code of conduct

- Health, safety and environmental issues

- Internal control

- Internal audit

- State-Owned Entities (SOE) oversight

2. RISK MANAGEMENT
2.1 Nature of Risk Management

Risk management is an integral part of the
Department’s strategic management. It is the process
whereby the risk exposures attached to the activities
of the Department are addressed, both methodically
and intuitively, by way of risk identification, risk
assessment and the development of mitigation
strategies to enhance the control environment.

ARisk Management Committee has been established.
The committee’s membership comprises of branch
heads and is chaired by a non-executive external
chairperson. The Risk Management Committee
convenes on a quarterly basis to review and evaluate
the risk management maturity, the status of risk
management activities, the risk register including
fraud and corruption, significant risks and emerging
risks facing the Department.

Risk management reports are presented to
the Executive Management Committee, Risk
Management Committee and the Audit Committee
for oversight, monitoring and evaluation of the
risk management system. Risk assessments
are conducted on an annual basis to identify risk
exposures against the goals and objectives of the
Department as set out in the Annual Performance
Plan (APP), Institutional Operational Plan and to
develop mitigation strategies to improve the control
environment.

10 ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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Risk Management Committee meetings for the
2015/16 fiscal year were held on 7 July 2015,
22 October 2015, 26 January 2016 and 7 April 2016
to consider and evaluate among others, a register of
key risks, the risk profile of various branches, material
changes to the risk profile, risk maturity level of the
Department and the implementation of the Anti-Fraud
and Corruption Strategy.

2.2 Risk Management Strategies

The Department has developed the Risk
Management Strategy, Risk Management Standard
Operating Procedures, Risk Assessment Handbook,
Risk Identification and Assessment Methodologies
Manual, Risk Management Committee Charter,
Risk Management Framework, Risk Management
Strategic Plan, Risk Management Policy, Fraud
Prevention Plan, Fraud Implementation Plan and
Fraud Prevention Strategy, each to serve as a
guideline in educating and training managers and
other officials of the Department about their roles and
responsibilities in risk management as well as how to
integrate the principle risk management into their day-
to-day activities.

2.3 Progress on Risk Mitigation

A Global Risk Register reflecting relevant risk owners
and mitigation strategies (to address residual risk
exposures, and to review and update risk registers
on a continuous basis) is in place. Progress reports
to monitor and evaluate the implementation of risk
mitigation strategies are presented to the Audit
Committee, Risk Management Committee and
Management Committee on a regular basis. The
Departmental Risk Management System has been
audited by the Internal Audit as well as Auditor-
General of South Africa to provide an independent
and objective assurance on the effectiveness of the
risk management function. Internal Audit and Auditor-
General findings are implemented by way of putting
mitigation strategies in the control environment,
testing their effectiveness by various management
structures on a quarterly basis.



3. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
3.1 Fraud Prevention Plan

The Department has developed a Fraud Prevention
Plan, which sets out actions to prevent fraud and
corruption. The Fraud Prevention Plan is intended to
set down the stance of the Department to fraud and
corruption, and to reinforce existing systems, policies
and procedures aimed at deterring, preventing,
detecting, reacting to, and reducing the impact
of fraud and corruption. The Risk Management
Implementation Plan is in place to give effect to the
implementation of the Risk Management Policy, Risk
Management Strategy and Anti-Fraud and Corruption
Strategy.

3.2 Reporting on Fraud and Corruption

Employees and members of the public are
encouraged to report allegations of maladministration,
irregularities and fraudulent practices for investigation
and resolution. Managers are responsible for the
detection, prevention and investigation of fraud and
corruption and must report incidents and allegations
of fraud and corruption to the Accounting Officer.
Cases of alleged irregular or fraudulent practices
received from the Presidential Hotline, members of
the public and media are investigated, responded to
and resolved within the prescribed time. Management,
other officials of the Department and members of the
public are encouraged to report all suspected irregular
and fraudulent practices to the National Public Service
Anti-Corruption Hotline Number (0800 701 701).
Anti-fraud and corruption posters have been posted
in visible areas within the Department to encourage
staff and members of the public to report fraud and
corruption.

Presentations to educate and train new and
existing employees are conducted during induction
and orientation programmes. Risk management
workshops are conducted within various branches
of the Department to inculcate and embed a culture
of risk management in their day-to-day activities.
The following is being conducted during the risk
assessment workshops: training, education and
awareness, and focusing on risk management, anti-
fraud and corruption.

3.3 Fraud and Corruption Cases

The Fraud Prevention Plan, covering all basic
mechanisms of preventing fraud and corruption,
is in place. The plan takes into account the risks of
fraud and corruption, as reported by the members
of the public, the National Presidential Hotline and
employees of the Department. Mechanisms to
report suspected and or alleged fraud and corruption
practices are in place, i.e. whistle blowing, vetting of
officials and service providers, internal audit function,
Audit Committee and disclosure of conflict of interest
by Senior Management Service (SMS) members.
Reported cases are investigated and resolved by
way of disciplinary action, criminal action, civil action,
improving controls, prevention measures and referring
high profile cases to external law enforcement
agencies. Cases of fraud and corruption are captured
in the Fraud and Corruption Case Register, which is
regularly updated and respectively reported to the
Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee,
Office of the Public Service Commission and the
Department of Public Service and Administration
(DPSA).

Risk management
workshops are
conducted within
various branches of
the Department to
inculcate and embed
a culture of risk
management in their
day-to-day activities.
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In order to minimise the conflict of interest, the

following mechanisms are in place:

- Senior managers are required to disclose their
financial interest annually as required by the
financial disclosure framework

- Sanctions and or disciplinary action are taken
with regard to non-compliance

- A conflict of interest disclosure form is signed by
all attendees in various management structures

A Departmental code of conduct, together with
other policies and prescripts, is in place to serve
as a guideline to employees as to what is expected
of them from an ethical point of view — both in their
individual conduct, and in their relationship with
others. Education, training and awareness in relation
to the code of conduct are conducted during the
induction and orientation programmes. The Office
of the Public Service Commission is also assisting
with the provisioning of education and distribution of
pamphlets of the code of conduct to the employees of
the Department.

The Department is committed to providing a safe and
secure working environment for all by implementing
provisions of the Occupational Health & Safety Act,
1993 (Act No. 85 of 1993). The Occupational Health
and Safety Committee has been appointed in order
to ensure the development and implementation of the
Occupational Health and Safety Policy and procedures
as well as to ensure that adequate resources and
signage are in place in all the buildings occupied by
officials.

Occupational health and safety marshals, fire fighters
and first aiders have been adequately trained in
order to attend to emergency situations in the
Department buildings. The Department is in a process
of training staff on how to evacuate the premises
during emergency situations in accordance with the
provisions of the approved Departmental Contingency
Plan. The latter training will be rolled out to the regional
offices until officials comply with the turnaround time
for evacuating the building during an evacuation drill.

The schedule of the briefing sessions held with the Portfolio Committee on Energy is as follows:

Table 60: Schedule of briefing sessions

14 Apr 2015 2nd & 3rd quarter 2014/15 Performance Reports
Briefing to the Portfolio Committee on Energy

14 Apr 2015 Update on the Matatiele Task Team & its Activities
Briefing to the Portfolio Committee on Energy

15 Apr 2015 Financial Performance as at 31 December 2014
Standing Committee on Appropriations

4 Aug 2015 4th quarter 2014/15 & 1st quarter 2015/16 Performance Reports
Briefing to the Portfolio Committee on Energy

12 Aug 2015 Briefing on progress made on the implementation of the 30% procurement policy for SMMEs &
cooperatives

18 Aug 2015 The strategic stocks policy

During the 2010/11 financial year, R14.8 million was disbursed from the incorrect vote.
A request for condonation has been submitted to National Treasury for consideration.
The Department received a letter of condonation from National Treasury on
9 November 2012, however, it was not clear from the approval letter received whether
the condonation was granted with funding or without funding. The Department requested
clarity in this regard from National Treasury to enable the Department to derecognise
the unauthorised expenditure and was informed that the matter must be presented to
the Standing Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA) for consideration. The matter was
subsequently presented to SCOPA on 12 November 2014 and the Department is awaiting
the committee’s resolution. No unauthorised expenditure was incurred in the 2015/16

financial year.
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None.

The Internal Control and Reporting Unit ensures
that internal controls are in place in order to provide
reasonable assurance that the Department has
accounted for all the financial transactions in terms
of accuracy, validity and completeness, and in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations
to ensure reliable financial reporting. In the year
under review, 12 compliance certificates and three
mandatory interim Annual Financial Statements were
submitted to National Treasury.

10.1 Capital Investment

Asset verifications were performed in the 2015/16
financial year at head office and all regional offices
in line with the Assets Verification Plan. The Asset
Register complies with the minimum requirements
for an asset register, including all assets procured
during the 2015/16 financial year. As part of the
Asset Management Programme, unusable, damaged
and redundant, moveable and tangible assets with
a book value of R601 000 were disposed. This was
recommended by the Asset Disposal Committee.
The Department procured assets to the value of
R5.5 million whilst assets with a value at R38 000
were transferred from the DPSA to the Department.

The Audit Committee plays an important role in
ensuring that an entity functions according to good
governance, accounting and audit standards. It also
monitors the adoption of appropriate risk management
arrangements.

11.1 Internal Audit

The Accounting Officer has, in terms of Section 38 of
the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.
1 of 1999), put in place a system of Internal Audit
under the control and direction of the Audit Committee
that complies with and operates in accordance with
regulations and instructions prescribed in terms of
Sections 76 and 77 of the Public Finance Management
Act, 1999.

The primary objective of Internal Audit is to provide
an independent, objective assurance and consulting
services designed to add value and improve the
Department’s operations. It helps the Department
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic,
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of risk management, control and
governance processes. Arisk-based annual audit plan
for 2015/16 was compiled and approved by the Audit
Committee. A total of 24 audits were conducted in the
2015/16 financial year and these included regularity
audits, compliance audits, IT and ad-hoc audits.

Internal Audit continuously follows-up on the audit
findings raised to establish the extent to which
management resolves the findings raised by both
Internal Audit and the Auditor-General. Internal Audit
has evaluated and contributed to the improvement of
risk management, control and governance systems of
the Department through the performance of adequate
assurance and consulting activities in key areas
identified in the risk assessment and by conducting
audits in areas mandated by the Public Finance
Management Act, 1999 and National Treasury
regulations.

11.2 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides an oversight function
on governance, control and risk management
processes by reviewing Annual Financial Statements,
reports from the Internal and External Auditors, status
of internal control and risk management.

The Audit Committee, amongst others, reviews the

following:

- Effectiveness of the internal control system
including information technology security controls

- Effectiveness of the Internal Audit function

- Risk areas of the Department’s operations to be
covered in the scope of internal audits

- Effectiveness of the monitoring systems
pertaining to fraud-related risks and the results
of management’s investigation, and follow-up of
alleged fraud and related matters

- Compliance with legal and regulatory provisions

- Adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management process

- Quality of in-year financial reports

- Completeness, accuracy and reliability of the
performance information reports

- Any accounting and auditing concerns identified
as a result of internal or external audits

PART C
Governance



11.3 Attendance of Audit Committee Meetings by Audit

Committee Members

The Audit Committee consists of the members listed below. These Audit Committee
members are independent of the Department. The committee should meet at least four
times per annum as per its approved terms of reference. During the financial year under
review, six meetings were held. The table that follows discloses relevant information on

the Audit Committee members.

Table 61: Audit Committee members

Special AC meeting draft AFS | 29 May 2015 4
201415

Special AC meeting audited 23 Jul 2015 4
AFS 2014/15

1st ordinary meeting 2015/16 | 1 Sep 2015 Resigned

2nd ordinary meeting 2 Dec 2015

2015/16
3rd ordinary meeting 2015/16 18 Feb 2016 | Resigned
4th ordinary meeting 2015/16 | 27 May 2016 | Resigned

Resigned

We are pleased to present our report for the financial
year ended 31 March 2016.

12.1 Audit Committee Responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with
its responsibilities arising from Section 38 (1) (a) (ii)
of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 and
National Treasury Regulation 3.1. The Audit Committee
also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal
terms of reference as its Audit Committee Charter, has
regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and
has discharged all of its responsibilities as contained
therein.

12.2 The Effectiveness of Internal Control

The system of controls within the Department is
designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets
are safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital
are properly managed in line with the Public Finance
Management Act, 1999 and the protocol on corporate
governance. This is achieved by a risk-based internal
audit plan, Internal Audit assessing the adequacy of
controls mitigating the risks and the Audit Committee
monitoring implementation of corrective actions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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From our review of the reports of the Internal Auditors,
the Audit Report on the Annual Financial Statements
and the Management Report of the Auditor-General
of South Africa, we can conclude that the system of
internal control as applied over financial and non-
financial matters and enterprise risk management at
the Department is satisfactory. The Committee has
noted management’s commitment to address the
lack of control effectiveness, where they exist. The
Committee will be monitoring management’s progress
in resolving these issues on a regular basis.

12.3 Internal Audit

We are satisfied that the internal audit function has
operated effectively, that it has addressed the risks
pertinent to the Department in its audits and has
assisted the Department with value-adding services to
ensure that both financial and operational objectives
are achieved.

The areas of concern identified by the Audit Committee
are:

- SOE oversight

Enterprise risk management maturity

- Achievement of predetermined objectives



12.4 In-Year Management and Monthly/
Quarterly Report

The Accounting Officer has tabled the In-Year
Management and monthly/quarterly reports to the
Minister and to the Committee, as required by the
National Treasury regulations. The Committee is
satisfied with the content and quality of the In-Year
Management reports.

The Audit Committee has undertaken the following,
relating to the evaluation of the Annual Financial
Statements:

- Reviewed and discussed the audited Annual
Financial Statements to be included in the
Annual Report with the Auditor-General of South
Africa and the Accounting Officer

- Reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa’s
Management Report and management’s
response thereto

- Reviewed accounting policies and practices as
reported in the Annual Financial Statements

- Reviewed the Department's processes for
compliance with legal and regulatory provisions

- Reviewed the information on predetermined
objectives as reported in the Annual Report

- Reviewed adjustments resulting from the audit of
the Department

- Reviewed, and where appropriate, recommended
changes to the Annual Financial Statements as
presented by the Department for the year ending
31 March 2016

We have, on a quarterly basis, reviewed the
Department’s Implementation Plan for audit issues
raised in the prior year. The Audit Committee has met
with the Auditor-General of South Africa to ensure that
there are no unresolved issues that emanated from
the regulatory audit. Corrective actions on the detailed
findings raised by the Auditor-General of South Africa
will continue to be monitored by the Audit Committee
on a quarterly basis.

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the
conclusions of the Auditor-General of South Africa
on the Annual Financial Statements and is of the
opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements
be accepted and read together with the report of the
Auditor-General of South Africa.

We congratulate the Department on achieving a clean
audit.

The Audit Committee wishes to acknowledge the
dedication and work performed by the Accounting
Officer, management and officials of the Department.
The Audit Committee wishes to express its
appreciation to management, the Auditor-General
of South Africa and the Internal Audit Unit for the
cooperation and information they have provided to
enable us to discharge our responsibilities.

o

Ameen Amod
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
31 July 2016
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2. Part D

1. INTRODUCTION

The information contained in this part of the Annual
Report has been prescribed by the Minister of Public
Service and Administration for all Departments in the
public service.

2. OVERVIEW OF HUMAN
RESOURCES

The Department of Energy (Department) values its
human capital as one of the most important factors
contributing to the successful implementation of its
strategy. During the period under review, the Human
Resources Unit implemented Phase 3 of the 2013—
2018 Integrated Human Resources Plan. Through the
implementation of the plan, the Department aims to
ensure that the right people with the right mix of skills
are placed in the right positions. It further seeks to
ensure that employees display the right attitudes and
behaviour, and that their skills are developed in line
with Departmental needs.

2.1 The Status of Human Resources
in the Department

- The Human Resources Unit, as established in
2010, now requires a review. It is envisaged that
the review will enable the Human Resources
Unit to be more responsive and positioned to
enable the Department to effectively deliver on
its mandate and strategic objectives.

- With regard to organisational structure, the
process of restructuring is still underway and
due to leadership changes, some of the activities
could not be finalised in the last financial year.
Such activities were carried over to the 2016/17
financial year.

- The developed competency framework for
the Department is being implemented. The
framework will be revised once the review of the
organisational structures has been completed
and will be updated once new positions are
added to the structure.

- The Human Resources Unit developed a
Workplace Skills Plan (WSP) for the Department,
following the skills audit conducted through the
submission of Personal Development Plans. As
part of the implementation of the WSP, a number
of training and development interventions were
identified and 579 officials were trained during
2015/16. The Department also offered 37 new
bursaries to serving employees, with effect from
the beginning of the 2016 academic year. This
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brings the total number of employees studying
part-time at various institutions to 61.

- The Human Resources Unit continued to

maintain and review its systems, processes and
policies in line with the Departmental objectives,
and performed well in maintaining a healthy
staff turnover of 6.2% (excluding interns and
contracts), which is well within the accepted
norm, but the vacancy rate increased to 11.2%.
The employee health and wellness programmes
were implemented for the financial year with in-
house wellness clinics being held more regularly.

The Department
values its human
capital as one of

the most important
factors contributing
to the successful
implementation of its
strategy.

2.2 Human Resource Priorities
for the Year Under Review

- Review of the support, clean energy and regional
office structures in support of the newly-revised
line function structure and streamline the line-
function structure

- Develop and implement a talent management
strategy (which focuses on a framework for
occupations, career pathing, scarce skills and
retention)

- Implement the Human Resource Development
Strategy and Plan

- Enhance the recruitment process

- Achieverepresentation of womenin management
and employ people with disabilities

- Review the Performance Management and
Development System (PMDS) process,
dependent on the Department of Public Service
and Administration (DPSA) review process

- Develop, implement and maintain systems,
delegations, policies and processes

- Maintain a job evaluation plan



Values, ethics and organisational culture:
implement culture survey recommendations
Implement the Employee Health and Wellness
Programme

Workforce Planning and Key Strategies
to Attract and Recruit a Skilled and
Capable Workforce

Align the Department’s organisational structure
with the strategy

Develop and implement a talent management
strategy (which focuses on a framework for
occupations, career pathing, scarce skills and
retention)

Implement the Human Resource Development
Strategy and Plan

Reduce the vacancy rate to below 10%

Values, ethics and organisational culture: revisit
Culture Survey Initiative Plan

Implement the Employee Health and Wellness
Programme

Review the PMDS process which is dependent
on the DPSA review process

Achieve representation of women in management
and employ people with disabilities

Develop, implement and maintain systems,
delegations, policies and processes

Maintain a job evaluation plan

Enhance the recruitment process (investigate in-
house assessments of new appointments)
Ensure effective employee relations management
Marketing of the human resource function

Employee Performance Management

The compliance rate for the submission of
performance agreements has increased to 86%.
The 2014/15 performance reviews for level 1-14
were completed within the required timeframes
and performance rewards were paid within
budget

2.7

PMDS workshops were conducted in all regions
and were well-attended by staff up to Senior
Management Service (SMS) level

The DPSA PMDS review process commenced
in 2014/15 and this affected the review of the
PMDS process for the Department, which will be
concluded following the DPSA process
Employee health and wellness activities were
implemented throughout the year with wellness
clinics happening twice a month

Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) contract
was managed successfully

Achievements

86% compliance rate for performance agreement
submission

87% compliance rate for SMS performance
agreement submission

Female employment stands at 51.4%

Challenges

Female employment at SMS level and the
employment of people with disabilities still remain
well below the desired target

The vacancy rate is above the 10% target and
currently stands at 11.2%

Medium-Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF)
funding still remains a challenge for the full
implementation of the strategies and structures
as envisaged in the Integrated Human Resources
Plan for the Department

Future Plans

The Human Resources Unit will continue with the
implementation of Phase 4 of the Integrated Human
Resources Plan in the next financial year.
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3. HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS
3.1 Expenditure

Table 62: Personnel expenditure by programme for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Personnel
Expenditure
of Total
Expenditure

Professional
and Special
Services
Expenditure

Average
Personnel
Cost per
Employee

Training
Expenditure
R'000

Total Personnel

Programme

Expenditure | Expenditure

Programme 1: Administration 277 767 138 750 4643 4025 50.0 467
Programme 2: Energy Policy 38 095 31519 0 341 82.7 573
& Planning

Programme 3: Petroleum 68 958 52 568 0 10 023 76.2 442
Products Regulation

Programme 4: Electricity & 5820 485 41 797 21 19 0.7 486
Energy Programme &

Project Management

Programme 5: Nuclear 655 029 17 039 0 752 2.6 568
Energy

Programme 6: Clean Energy 281783 14 336 0 10 668 5.1 623
Total as on Financial

Systems (BAS) 7142 117 296 009 4 664 25 828 4.1% 1

Table 63: Personnel costs by salary band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Salary Band Personnel Total No. of Employees Average Personnel
ry Expenditure Personnel Cost ' ploy Cost Per Employee

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 18 352 6 99 185 374
Highly-skilled production 45721 14.9 138 331 312
(Levels 6-8)

Highly-skilled supervision 127 768 41.7 228 560 386
(Levels 9-12)

Senior management 80 715 26.3 77 1048 247
(Levels 13-16)

Contract (Levels 1-2) 2503 0.8 28 89 393
Contract (Levels 3-5) 2 695 0.9 14 192 500
Contract (Levels 6-8) 1623 0.5 6 270 500
Contract (Levels 9-12) 2894 0.9 12 241167
Contract (Levels 13-16) 12 233 4 8 1529 125
Periodical remuneration 576 0.2 6 96 000
Abnormal appointment 963 0.3 79 12190
Total 296 043 96.6 (5] 425 961
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3.2 Employment and Vacancies

The tables in this section summarise the Department’s position with regard to employment
and vacancies. The following tables summarise the number of posts on the establishment,
the number of employees, the vacancy rate, and whether there are any staff that are
additional to the establishment.

This information is presented in terms of three key variables:
- Programme

- Salary band

- Critical occupations (see definition in notes hereafter)

Departments have identified critical occupations that need to be monitored. In terms
of current regulations, it is possible to create a post on the establishment that can be
occupied by more than one employee. Therefore, the vacancy rate reflects the percentage
of posts that are not filled.

Table 66: Employment and vacancies by programme as on 31 March 2016

Number of
Posts on
Approved
Establishment

Number of
Posts Filled

Programme

Vacancy

Rate

Number of
Employees
Additional to the
Establishment

Programme 1: Administration 338 297 121
Prgramme 2: Energy Policy & Planning 63 55 12.7
Programme 3: Petroleum Products 127 119 6.3
Regulation

Programme 4: Electricity & Energy 94 86 8.5
Programme & Project Management

Programme 5: Nuclear Energy 35 30 14.3
Programme 6: Clean Energy 30 23 23.3

Total

(174

610

40

Table 67: Employment and vacancies by salary band as on 31 March 2016

Number of
Employees
Additional to the

Number of
Salary Band ::::2\,:1 PNol:trlsb:i:I::i Vacancy Rate
Establishment
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 104 99 4.8
Highly-skilled production (Levels 6-8) 158 138 12.7
Highly-skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 258 228 11.6
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 99 77 22.2
Contract (Levels 1-2) 28 28 0
Contract (Levels 3-5) 14 14 0
Contract (Levels 6-8) 6 6 0
Contract (Levels 9-12) 12 12 0
Contract (Levels 13-16) 8 8 0
Total 687 610 11.2
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Table 68: Employment and vacancies by critical occupations as on 31 March 2016

Administrative related

Client information clerks (switchboard
reception information clerks)

Communication & information related
Community development workers
Economists

Finance & economics related

Financial & related professionals

Financial clerks & credit controllers

Food services aids & waiters

Head of department/chief executive officer
Historians & political scientists

Human resources & organisat developm &
relate prof

Human resources clerks
Human resources related
Information technology related

Language practitioners, interpreters & other
common

Legal related

Library, mail & related clerks
Logistical support personnel
Material-recording & transport clerks

Messengers, porters & deliverers

Meteorologist
Natural sciences related

Nature conservation & oceanographical rel.
techni

Other administrat & related clerks &
organisers

Other administrative policy & related officers
Other information technology personnel
Other occupations

Risk management & security services

Interns

Secretaries & other keyboard operating clerks
Security officers

Senior managers

Social sciences related

Statisticians & related professionals

Trade/industry advisers & other related
profession

Youth workers

121
17

14

10
24

10

16

75

12

35
13

14
28
51
41
82

10

107
16

64

10

32
10

13
28
49
39
68

10

11.6
5.9

214

33.3
10
12,5
5.3
50

100
3.7

16.7

50
10
14.3

50
14.7
100

16.7

8.6
23.1

7.1

3.9

4.9
171

14.3
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3.3 Filling of Senior Management Service Posts

The tables in this section provide information on employment and vacancies as it relates
to members of the SMS by salary level. It also provides information on advertising and
filling of SMS posts, reasons for not complying with prescribed timeframes and disciplinary
steps taken.

Table 69: SMS post information as on 31 March 2016

Total
Total Total Total 5
S Number of | Numberof | %ofSMS | Number of A’:;;gs 2‘(‘12":?“::
Funded SMS | SMS Posts | Posts Filled | SMS Posts :
: Vacant Filled SMS
Posts Filled Vacant
Posts
Director-General/ Head of 1 1 100 0 0 0
Department
Salary Level 16 2 2 100 0 0 2
Salary Level 15 7 5 71 2 29 2
Salary Level 14 22 17 77 5 23 1
Salary Level 13 67 52 78 8 12 3
Total 99 77 8

Table 70: SMS post information as on 30 September 2015

Total
Total Total Total 5
SMS Level Number of Number of % of SMS Number of A::sst:ls 2:';:2;2:
Funded SMS | SMS Posts | Posts Filled | SMS Posts :
: Vacant Filled SMS
Posts Filled Vacant
Posts
Director-General/ Head of 1 0 0 1 100 0
Department
Salary Level 16 2 2 0 0 0 2
Salary Level 15 7 5 0 2 29 0
Salary Level 14 20 15 81 5 25 2
Salary Level 13 62 57 89 5 8 3
Total 7

Table 71: Advertising and filling of SMS posts for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Advertising Filling of Posts

Number of Number of
: Number of :
SMS Level Vacancies Per Vacancies Per

Level Advertised V:ﬁfe"dc:ﬁsspn‘:;:]‘teh‘;e' Level Not Filled in 6
in 6 Months of Months but Filled in

Becoming Vacant T R REl 12 Months

Director-General/ Head of Department
Salary Level 16
Salary Level 15
Salary Level 14
Salary Level 13
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Table 72: Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS —
Advertised within six months and filled within 12 months after becoming
vacant for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Alignment to the proposed structure (restructuring)

Alignment to the proposed structure (restructuring)

Table 73: Disciplinary steps taken for not complying with the prescribed timeframes for
SMS posts advertised within six months and filled within 12 months for the
period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

None

None

3.4 Job Evaluation

Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-
evaluate any job in his or her organisation. In terms of the regulations, all vacancies on
Salary Level 9 and higher must be evaluated before they are filled. The following table
summarises the number of jobs that were evaluated during the year under review. The
table also provides statistics on the number of posts that were upgraded or downgraded.
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Table 74: Job evaluation by salary band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Contract (Levels 28 0 0 0 0
1-2)

Contract (Levels 14 0 0 0 0
3-5)

Contract (Levels 6 0 0 0 0
6-8)

Contract (Levels 12 0 0 0 0
9-12)

Contract (Band A) 3 0 0 0 0
Contract (Band B) 1 0 0 0 0
Contract (Band C) 2 0 0 0 0
Contract (Band D) 2 0 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 104 9 8.7 0 0
Highly-skilled 158 5 1.9 0 0
production (Levels

6-8)

Highly-skilled 258 1 0.4 0 0
supervision (Levels

9-12)

Senior Management 67 2 3 0 0
Service Band A

Senior Management 22 0 0 0 0
Service Band B

Senior Management 7 0 0 0 0
Service Band C

Senior Management 3 0 0 0 0

Service Band D

The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose positions
were upgraded due to their post being upgraded. The number of employees might differ
from the number of posts upgraded since not all employees are automatically absorbed
into the new posts and some of the posts upgraded could also be vacant.

Table 75: Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being
upgraded for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Female
Male

o = O -
o O o o
o O o o

Employees with a disability
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The following table summarises the number of cases where remuneration bands exceeded
the grade determined by job evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are provided in each
case.

Table 76: Employees with salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation
by occupation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

: Number of J°b. Remuneration Reason for
Occupation Evaluation o
Employees Level Level Deviation

Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job evaluation

% of total employment 0

The following table summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender
and disability.

Table 77: Profile of employees who have salary levels higher than those determined by
job evaluation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
0

T Benencares | Amean | Asian | Goloursa |
| 0 :

Female ‘ 0

0

Male 0 0 0

Employees with a disability 0 0 0 0 0

3.5 Employment Changes

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year.
Turnover rates provide an indication of trends in the employment profile of the Department.
The following tables provide a summary of turnover rates by salary band and critical
occupations (see definition in notes below).

7
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Table 78: Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Salary Band

Number of
Employees at
Beginning of
Period 1 April

2015

Appointments
& Transfers
into the
Department

Terminations
& Transfers

out of the

Department

Turnover Rate

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

Highly-skilled production (Levels 6-8)
Highly-skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)
Senior Management Service Band A
Senior Management Service Band B
Senior Management Service Band C
Senior Management Service Band D
Contract (Levels 1-2)

Contract (Levels 3-5)

Contract (Levels 6-8)

Contract (Levels 9-12)

Contract (Band A)

Contract (Band B)

Contract (Band D)

Total

83
148
227

N O W w o N DN N O

568

1
20

o

33

N N N O =~ N

10
10

- O O O -~ O o O =~ N

»
w

1.2
6.8
44
5.9
12.5
14.3

200

35.3
20

50

Table 79: Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Number of
Employees at
Beginning of
Period 1 April

2015

Appointments | Terminations
& Transfers & Transfers
into the out of the
Department Department

Turnover Rate

Critical Occupation

Administrative related
Biologists, botanists, zoologists & rel professional

Client information clerks (switchboard reception
information clerks)

Communication & information related
Economists

Engineering sciences related

Finance & economics related

Financial & related professionals
Financial clerks & credit controllers

Food services aids & waiters

Head of department/chief executive officer

Human resources & organisat developm & relate
prof

Human resources clerks
Human resources related
Information technology related

Language practitioners, interpreters & other
commun

Legal related

Library, mail & related clerks
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Table 79: Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 (continued)

Number of : o
Employees at Appointments | Terminations
Critical Occupation Beginning of - :I'ransfers SR Turnover Rate
parod hprl | orlothe | outortre
2015
Logistical support personnel 8 0 0 0
Material-recording & transport clerks 14 1 1 71
Messengers, porters & deliverers 0 0 0
Meteorologists 0 0 0
Natural sciences related 84 10 4 4.8
Other administrat & related clerks & organisers 15 2 5 33.3
Other administrative policy & related officers 4 0 0 0
Other information technology personnel 0 0 0
Other occupations 2 0 0 0
Risk management & security services 14 1 2 14.3
Safety health & quality inspectors 4 0 0 0
Interns 4 33 8 200
Secretaries & other keyboard operating clerks 43 3 2 4.7
Security officers 34 4 0 0
Senior managers 63 6 6 9.5
Social sciences related 0 0 0
Statisticians & related professionals 10 0 0 0
Trade/industry advisers & other related profession 2 3 0 0
Youth workers 1 0 0 0
Total 568 920 43 7.6
The table below identifies the major reasons why staff left the Department.
Table 80: Reasons why staff left the Department for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
S = -
Resignation 17 39.5
Expiry of contract 8 18.6
Retirement 1 23
Transfers out 17 39.5
Total number of employees who left as a % of total employment 43 7.6
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Table 81: Promotions by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Administrative related 105 3 29 64 61
Biologists, botanists, zoologists & related 5 0 0 2 40
professional
Client information clerks (switchboard 7 0 0 2 28.6
reception information clerks)
Communication & information related 12 0 0 8 66.7
Economists 1 0 0 0 0
Engineering sciences related 4 0 0 0 0
Finance & economics related 8 0 0 5 62.5
Financial & related professionals 17 5 29.4 11 64.7
Financial clerks & credit controllers 13 0 0 7 53.8
Food services aids & waiters 1 0 0 0 0
Human resources & organisat developm 21 1 4.8 17 81
& relate prof
Human resources clerks 13 2 15.4 5 38.5
Human resources related 10 0 0 5 50
Information technology related 7 0 0 & 42.9
Language practitioners, interpreters & 3 0 0 3 100
other communication
Legal related 4 0 0 2 50
Library, mail & related clerks 24 0 0 4 16.7
Logistical support personnel 8 0 0 4 50
Material-recording & transport clerks 14 0 0 8 57.1
Messengers, porters & deliverers 0 0 0 0
Meteorologists 1 50 1 50
Natural sciences related 84 5 6 39 46.4
Other administrat & related clerks & 15 0 6 40
organisers
Other administrative policy & related 4 2 50 27 675
officers
Other information technology personnel. 0 0 7 175
Other occupations 2 0 0 0 0
Risk management & security services 14 0 0 5 35.7
Interns 0 0 0 0
Safety health & quality inspectors 0 0 0 0
Secretaries & other keyboard operating 43 0 0 34 791
clerks
Security officers 34 1 29 1 29
Senior managers 63 4 6.3 38 60.3
Social sciences related 2 0 0 0
Statisticians & related professionals 10 0 0 7 70
Trade/industry advisers & other related 2 1 50 0
profession
Youth workers 1 0 0 0 0
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Table 82: Promotions by salary band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 83 1 1.2 19 22.9
Highly-skilled production (Levels 6-8) 148 5 3.4 96 64.9
Highly-skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 227 1 4.8 156 68.7
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 76 6 7.9 44 57.9
Contract (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 3-5) 17 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 6-8) 1 20 0 0
Contract (Levels 9-12) 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 13-16) 5 1 20 0 0
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3.7 Signing of Performance Agreements by
Senior Management Service Members

All members of the SMS must conclude and sign performance agreements within specific
timeframes. Information regarding signing performance agreements by SMS members,
the reasons for not complying within the prescribed timeframes and the disciplinary steps
taken, are presented here.

Table 90: Signing of performance agreements by SMS members as on 31 May 2015

Total Number LRl

Total Number Total Number of Performance
of Funded SMS SMS Members

of Signed

Agreements
S e Posts as at 1 as at 1 April PERRI—— as % of Total

: Agreements as
April 2015 2015 at 31 May 2015 Number of SMS
Members

Director-General/Head of Department

Salary Level 16 0
Salary Level 15 57
Salary Level 14 88

Salary Level 13

Table 91: Reasons for not having concluded performance agreements
for all SMS members as on 31 May 2015

Reasons

Due to service termination, promotion & transfers

Table 92: Disciplinary steps taken against SMS for not having
concluded performance agreements as on 31 May 2015

Reasons

None
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3.8 Performance Rewards

To encourage good performance, the Department has granted the following performance
rewards during the year under review. The information is presented in terms of race,
gender, disability, salary bands and critical occupations.

Table 93: Performance rewards by race, gender and disability for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

- e Average
o
- B:::;ik::ei;r?:s Emgz;ar:qent E,ﬁ.;g?::;t RG] BE:::iZ:y
(R)
African 207 563 73.3 3840 37 577
Female 122 286 427 2131 17 467
Male 85 277 30.7 1709 20 110
Asian 1 8 25.0 42 42194
Female 1 25.0 42 42 194
Male 0 0.0 0 0
Coloured 3 11 53.3 43 28 507
Female 2 33.3 30 15189
Male 1 20.0 13 13318
White 8 16 95.2 155 43 921
Female 6 66.7 101 16 763
Male 2 28.6 54 27 158
Employees with disabilities 6 12 50.0 79 13 242

Total

225

610

Table 94: Performance rewards by salary band for personnel below SMS
for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Total Cost
% of Total Average as a % of
Salary Band Number of Number of Within Total Cost Cost per the Total
Beneficiaries | Employees Salary (R'000) Beneficiary Personnel
Bands (R) Expenditure
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 19 89 21.3 154 8 105 0.1
Highly-skilled production 82 145 56.6 1042 12707 0.3
(Levels 6-8)
Highly-skilled supervision 119 234 511 2798 23513 0.5
(Levels 9-12)
Contract (Levels 1-2) 0 28 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 3-5) 0 14 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 6-8) 0 5 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 9-12) 0 6 0 0 0 0
Total 220 521 38.5 3994 18 155 0.9
Periodical remuneration 0 6 0 0 0 0
Abnormal appointment 0 79 0 0 0 0
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Table 95: Performance rewards by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Administrative related 39 117 33.3 852 21 846
Biologists, botanists, zoologists & rel 1 2 50 27 27 000
professional
Client information clerks (switchboard 2 15 13.3 16 8 000
reception information clerks)
Communication & information related 7 11 63.6 187 26714
Economists 0 3 0 0 0
Engineering sciences related 0 1 0 0 0
Finance & economics related 7 8 87.5 187 26714
Financial & related professionals 14 20 70 251 17 929
Financial clerks & credit controllers 6 18 33.3 55 9167
Food services aids & waiters 0 1 0 0 0
Head of department/chief executive officer 0 1 0 0 0
Human resources & organisat developm & 16 25 64 323 20 188
relate prof
Human resources clerks 6 13 46.2 62 10 333
Human resources related 5 100 115 23 000
Information technology related 2 100 58 29 000
Language practitioners, interpreters & other 4 80 60 15 000
commun
Legal related 2 3 66.7 45 22 500
Library, mail & related clerks 5 11 45.5 51 10 200
Logistical support personnel 3 6 50 39 13 000
Material-recording & transport clerks 9 16 56.3 84 9333
Messengers, porters & deliverers 0 3 0 0 0
Meteorologists 0 2 0 0 0
Natural sciences related 19 54 35.2 415 21842
Other administrat & related clerks & 5 10 50 40 8 000
organisers
Other administrative policy & related 19 32 59.4 376 19789
officers
Other information technology personnel 8 9 88.9 163 20 375
Other occupations 0 2 0 0 0
Risk management & security services 5 13 38.5 109 21 800
Interns 0 28 0 0 0
Secretaries & other keyboard operating 32 49 65.3 405 12 656
clerks
Security officers 1 38 2.6 8 8 000
Senior managers 4 67 6 138 34 500
Social sciences related 0 3 0 0
Statisticians & related professionals 8 10 30 74 24 667
Trade/industry advisers & other related 1 6 16.7 21 21 000
profession
Youth workers 0 1 0 0 0
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Table 96: Performance related rewards (cash bonus) by salary band for
SMS for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Beneficiary Profile Total Cost

% of Total Average as a % of
Salary Band Number of | Number of ovzith?na Total Cost Cost per the Total
Beneficiaries | Employees (R'000) Employee Personnel

Salary Band R) Expenditure

3.9 Foreign Workers

The tables below summarise the employment of foreign nationals in the Department in
terms of salary band and major occupation.

Table 97: Foreign workers by salary band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Salary Band
3 100 2 100 -1 100

Senior management
(Levels 13-16)

Contract (Levels 9-12) 1 100 1 100 0 0

Table 98: Foreign workers by major occupation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

 apniaots [ wiMachate | Change |
Major Occupation
4 100 3 100 -1 100

Professionals & managers
Total 4 100 3 100 -1 100
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3.10 Leave Utilisation

The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave
within the public service. The following tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave
and disability leave. In both cases, the estimated cost of the leave is also provided.

Table 99: Sick leave for the period 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015
% of Total

Number of

% Days with Employees Employees Average Estimated
Salary Band Total Days Mc_-)(_ilca_l Using Sick Using Sick Days per C'ost
Certification Leave Leave Employee (R'000)
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 416 78.4 64 134 7 284
Highly-skilled production 864 77.7 129 26.9 7 943
(Levels 6-8)
Highly-skilled supervision 1325 77 186 38.8 7 2 661
(Levels 9-12)
Senior management 281 76.9 55 11.5 5 963
(Levels 13-16)
Contract (Levels 1-2) 58 65.5 22 4.6 3 23
Contract (Levels 3-5) 55 69.1 13 2.7 4 36
Contract (Levels 6-8) 24 83.3 3 0.6 8 26
Contract (Levels 9-12) 15 73.3 3 0.6 5 32
Contract (Levels 13-16) 22 81.8 4 0.8 6 79

Total

3 060

71

5047

Table 100: Disability leave (temporary and permanent) for the period 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Number of % of Total
% Days with | Employees Employees Average Estimated
Salary Band Total Days Medical Using Using Days per Cost (R'000)
Certification Disability Disability Employee
Leave Leave

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 3 100 1 4.3 3 2
Highly-skilled production 1M 100 7 30.4 16 112
(Levels 6-8)
Highly-skilled supervision 143 100 13 56.5 1 286
(Levels 9-12)
Senior management 1 100 1 4.3 1 4
(Levels 13-16)
Contract (Levels 3-5) 17 100 1 4.3 17 1
Total 275 100 23 100 12 415

The table below summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded
with trade unions in the Public Service Coordinating Bargaining Council (PSCBC) in 2000
requires management of annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave being paid
at the time of termination of service.
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Table 101: Annual leave for the period 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Salary Band TORIDRS | Cooyoss who | Average Dey:
Took Leave

Skilled (Levels 3-5)
Highly-skilled production (Levels 6-8) 3297 154 21
Highly-skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 5327 244 22
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 1790 84 21
Contract (Levels 1-2) 412 53 8
Contract (Levels 3-5) 289 19 15
Contract (Levels 6-8) 100 7 14
Contract (Levels 9-12) 121 6 20
Contract (Levels 13-16) 120 12 10

Total 13 164

Table 102: Capped leave for the period 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Average Capped
Leave per
Employee as at
31 December
2015

Number of Average
Employees Number of
Using Capped Days Taken per
Leave Employee

Total Days of
Salary Band Capped Leave
Taken

Highly-skilled production (Levels 6-8)
Highly-skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)

Senior management (Levels 13-16)

The following table summarises payments made to employees as a result of leave that
was not taken.

Table 103: Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Average
Payment per
Employee (R)

Total Amount Number of

feeen (R'000) Employees

Leave payout for 2015/16 due to non-utilisation of leave for the

previous cycle
Capped leave payouts on termination of service for 2015/16 7 000

Current leave payout on termination of service for 2015/16

3.11 HIV/AIDS and Health Promotion Programmes

Table 104: Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/Categories of Employees Identified to be at High Risk of Contracting :
HIV & Related Diseases (If Any) Key Steps Taken to Reduce the Risk

N/A \

PART D

139
Human Resource Management



Table 105: Details of health promotion and HIV/AIDS programmes

1. Has the Department designated a member of
the SMS to implement the provisions contained
in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service
Regulations, 20017 If so, provide her/his name &
position.

2. Does the Department have a dedicated unit or
are there designated staff members to promote
health & wellbeing of employees? If so, indicate
the number of employees who are involved in this
task & the annual budget that is available for this
purpose.

3. Has the Department introduced an Employee
Assistance or Health Promotion Programme for
employees? If so, indicate the key elements/
services of the programme.

4. Has the Department established a committee(s)
as contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter
1 of the Public Service Regulations, 20017 If
so, please provide the names of the members
of the committee & the stakeholder(s) that they
represent.

5. Has the Department reviewed the employment
policies & practices to ensure that these do
not unfairly discriminate against employees
on the basis of their HIV status? If so, list the
employment policies/practices so reviewed.
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X

X

X

X

X

Mr Edzisani Ndou. Director: HRM&D

We have 4 staff in the unit. There is, however, no
specific budget allocated for the services

The programme offers psychosocial & support
services, voluntary counselling & testing, health
education, promotion of human rights & fair labour
practices

EHWP Steering Committee Members:

1. Mpho Ndebele - Community Upliftment (HQ)

2. Mr Daniel Ndou - HRM&D (HQ)

3. Ms Xolile Mtwa - Petroleum Licensing (KZN)

4. Mr Gibson Tshisikawe - Petroleum Licensing
(PLK)

5. Mr Lloyd Ganta - Governance & Compliance (HQ)

6. Ms Nohlanhla Tshabalala - FPMA (HQ)

7. Katse Maphoto - Nuclear Saftey & Technology
(HQ)

8. Thebe Mamakoko - Climate Change &
Environmental Compliance (HQ)

9. Mr Tobatsi Segele - ER:EHWP (HQ)

10. Ms Mikateko Mabunda - EHWP Coordinator (HQ)

Peer Educators/EHWP Committee Members:

Patrick Nojila - Western Cape

Nthabiseng Mahlaku - Northern Cape

Mawande Zibi - Eastern Cape

Cyril Khoza - Mpumalanga

Margaret Ramagoma - Limpopo

Doris Moyake - Free State

Charlene Phakathi — KwaZulu-Natal

Veni Ntshaba - Northwest

. Victoria Mafafo - Legal Services (HQ)

10. Dikeledi Maepa - Auxiliary Support Services (HQ)

11. Thilivhali Mabusha - Transport (HQ)

12. Bernet Makhura - Petroleum Licensing (HQ)

13. Boitumelo Muyengwa - Petroleum Licensing (HQ)

14. Lydia Modiba - HRM & D (HQ)

15. Sibongile Rapopo - Monitoring, Evaluation &
SOE Oversight (HQ)

16. Tshidi Petlele - EM (HQ)

17. Refilwe Petja - EM (HQ)

18. Lerato Mashamaite - Petroleum Licensing (HQ)

19. Mikateko Mabunda - EHWP Coordinator (HQ)

20. Veronica Mohai Pretoria - OHS (HQ)

21. Gaugelo Mphela Pretoria - Employee Relations
(HQ)

22. Matshediso Mahlaku - Petroleum Licensing (HQ)

Integrated Employee Health & Wellness Policy,
Labour Relations Regulations & the DPSA EHWP
Legal Framework

CoN>OR~LON=



Table 105: Details of health promotion and HIV/AIDS programmes (continued)

6. Has the Department introduced measures X Aggrieved employees can report matters at the
to protect HIV-positive employees or those employee relations office for intervention & support
perceived to be HIV-positive from discrimination?
If so, list the key elements of these measures.

7. Does the Department encourage its employees to | X Total participation for 2014/2015 is at 223 & total
undergo voluntary counselling & testing? If so, list tested is at 123, meaning that only 21% (Per 591
the results that you have achieved. total Department staff complement) of Department

staff tested

8. Has the Department developed measures/ X Monitoring & evaluation is done through analysis of
indicators to monitor & evaluate the impact of reports
your health promotion programme? If so, list
these measures/indicators. The EHWP Steering Committee also serves as a

monitoring & evaluation platform.

3.12Labour Relations

Table 106: Collective agreements for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Performance rewards 2014/2015 10-Nov-15
Security vetting policy 08-Mar-16

The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the
Department for the year under review.

Table 107: Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised for the period 1 April 2015 to
31 March 2016

1-month suspension without pay 1 100 1

Table 108: Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Unethical conduct 2 12.50 2

Abuse of state vehicle 2 12.50 2

Irregular expenditure 9 56.25 9

Absenteeism 5 18.75 3
Table 109: Grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Number of grievances resolved 18 82

Number of grievances not resolved 4 18
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Table 110: Disputes lodged with councils for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Number of Disputes Addressed m % of total

Number of disputes upheld 1 50

Number of disputes dismissed 0 0

Number of disputes settled 1 50
2

Table 111: Strike actions for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Strike Actions m
0

Total number of person working days lost

Total cost of working days lost (R'000) 0
Amount recovered as a result of no work no pay (R’000)

Table 112: Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Precautionary Suspensions m

Number of people suspended 1
Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 1
Average number of days suspended 275
Cost of suspensions (R'000) 783

3.13 Skills development

This section highlights the efforts of the Department with regard to skills development.

Table 113: Training needs identified for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Skills
Employment Programmes Other Forms
Occupational Categories as at 1 April | Learnerships & Other of Trainin
2015 Short 9
Courses

Legislators, senior officials Female 26 0 21 1 22
& managers

Male 39 0 18 1 19
Professionals Female 61 1 35 6 42

Male 52 0 30 5 35
Technicians & associate Female 106 0 53 2 55
professionals

Male 98 0 40 8 48
Clerks Female 94 1 35 12 48

Male 37 3 17 4 24
Service & sales workers Female 8 0 4 0 4

Male 40 0 19 1 20
Skilled agriculture & fishery Female 0 0 0 0 0
workers

Male 0 0 0
Craft & related trades Female 0 0 0 0 0
workers

Male 0 0 0 0 0
Plant & machine operators Female
& assemblers

Male 0 0 0 0 0
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Table 113: Training needs identified for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 (continued)

Occupational Categories

Elementary occupations

Interns

Learnerships

Gender subtotals

Male 268 1 124 19 153
Total 568 20 272 74 366

Female
Male
Female
Male
Female
Male
Female

Employment

as at 1 April
2015

O O =~ N W -

308

Learnerships

N N 0o © © O o

o

Skills

Programmes

& Other
Short
Courses

O O O O o o
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Table 114: Training provided for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Occupational Categories

Legislators, senior officials
& managers

Professionals

Technicians & associate
professionals

Clerks

Service & sales workers

Skilled agriculture & fishery
workers

Craft & related trades
workers

Plant & machine operators
& assemblers

Elementary occupations

Interns

Learnerships

Gender subtotals

Male 268 1 147 20 166
Total 568 19 312 63 394

Female

Male
Female
Male

Female

Male
Female
Male
Female
Male
Female

Male
Female

Male

Female

Male
Female
Male
Female
Male
Female
Male
Female

Employment

as at 1 April
2015

26

39
61
52
106

98
94
37

40

o

o O =~ N W -~ O

308

Learnerships

o O O o

o O O O w =~ o

- N 00 O O O O o o

o

Skills

Programmes

& Other
Short
Courses

1

16
46
49
35

39
67
21

22

o

O O ©O O ©o o o

165

Other Forms
of Training

23
1

44

Other Forms
of Training

o N O W N w N N o

o

23
1

43

23
11
8

7
194

12

16
48
51
38

41
82
27

24

0
23
11

8

7

209
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3.14 Injury on Duty

The following tables provide basic information on injury on duty.

Table 115: Injury on duty for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Required basic medical attention only
Temporary total disablement

Permanent disablement
Fatal

o O O o

3.15 Utilisation of Consultants

The following tables relate information on the utilisation of consultants in the Department.

In terms of the Public Service Regulations, 2001, “consultant’ means a natural or juristic

person or a partnership providing, in terms of a specific contract on an ad hoc basis, any

of the following professional services to a department against remuneration received from

any source:

- The rendering of expert advice

- The drafting of proposals for the execution of specific tasks

- The execution of a specific task which is of a technical or intellectual nature, but
excludes an employee of a department

Table 116: Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds
for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Appointment of consultant for label design & development of label 3
guidelines for a period of three months

Appointment of a service provider to conduct a study to address 1
requirements, considerations, & necessary arrangements by

Government in order for South Africa to accede to one of the

IAEA nuclear liability conventions, for a period of 4 weeks

Appointment of a service provider for the proofreading/layout/ 4
design & production of the 2014/15 Annual Report

Appointment of a service provider for the co-sourcing with internal 12
audit for the approved selected internal audits assignment as per

the approved audit plan for 2015/16 financial year (by 3 service

providers)

Appointment of a service provider for the services of 4
proofreading, layout/design & production of the 2016/17 Annual
Performance Plan

Procurement of application system maintenance & support 4
service for a period of 24 months
Procurement of Petroleum Products Licensing System Phase 3 1 1
development, maintenance & support services for a period of 3
years
7 29 1
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25

20

20

60

30

720

080

955

o O o o

182 400.00

469 752.00

113 772.00

1679 460.06

260 328.12

2078 664.00

4123 699.20

8908 075.38



Table 117: Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds,
in terms of historically disadvantaged individuals for the period
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Number of
Consultants
Project Title B-BBEE Status | o B-BBEE
Groups that
Work on the
Project
Appointment of consultant for label design & development of label guidelines for a 4 3
period of 3 months
Appointment of a service provider to conduct a study to address requirements, 3 1
considerations, & necessary arrangements by Government in order for South Africa to
accede to one of the IAEA nuclear liability conventions for a period of 4 weeks
Appointment of a service provider for the proofreading, layout/design & production of 3 4
the 2014/15 Annual Report
Appointment of a service provider for the co-sourcing with internal audit for the Company 1=2 12
approved selected internal audits assignment as per the approved audit plan for Company 2=2
2015/16 financial year (by 3 service providers) Company 3=1
Appointment of a service provider for the services of proofreading, layout/design & 0 4
production of the 2016/17 Annual Performance Plan
Procurement of application system maintenance & support service for a period of 0 4
24 months
Procurement of Petroleum Products Licensing System Phase 3 development, 2 1
maintenance & support services for a period of 3 years

Notes:

The Historically Disadvantaged Individuals (HDI) status of consultants are no longer applicable to any legislation,
since the amendment of the B-BBEE Framework and the B-BBEE Codes of Good Practice. The current practice
is that all service providers submit a BEE Certificate, which indicates on which level they have been audited and
certified/rated. This is called the B-BBEE Status Level of Contributor. The certificate thus contains only the status
level and no HDI status is required or provided. Hence HDI status Information is unknown.

Table 118: Report on consultant appointments using donor funds
for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Total Number
of Consultants
who Worked on
the Project

Total Donor &
Contract Value
(R)

Total Duration:

Project Title Work Days

Total Contract
Value
(R)

Total Duration:
Work Days

Total Individual
Consultants

Total Number of Projects

None ‘ | ‘
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Table 119: Analysis of consultant appointments using donor funds, in terms of historically disadvantaged
individuals for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Number of
Consultants
from HDI groups
Who Work on
the Project

% Ownership by | % Management

Project Title HDI Groups by HDI Groups

None

3.16 Severance Packages

Table 120: Granting of employee initiated severance packages for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Applications Applications Applications Packages
Category 'I;Zceive d Referred to the Supported by Approved by
MPSA MPSA Department
Lower skilled (Salary Level 1-2) 0 0 0 0
Skilled (Salary Level 3-5) 0 0 0 0
Highly-skilled production (Salary Level 6-8) 0 0 0 0
Highly-skilled production (Salary Level 9-12) 0 0 0 0
Senior management (Salary Level 13 & 0 0 0 0
higher)
Total 0 0 0 0
ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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2. Part E

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-
GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON
VOTE NO. 26: DEPARTMENT OF

ENERGY

Report on the Financial Statements

Introduction

1.

| have audited the Annual Financial Statements
of the Department of Energy set out on pages
150 to 249, which comprise the Appropriation
Statements, Statements of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2016, Statement of Financial
Performance, Statement of Changes in Net
Assets, and Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, as well as the Notes comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Accounting Officer’s responsibility for the
financial statements

2.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Modified
Cash Standards (MCS) prescribed by National
Treasury and the requirements of the Public
Financial Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1
of 1999), and for such internal control as the
Accounting Officer determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of Financial Statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

3.

148

My responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on my
audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that | comply with ethical
requirements, and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the Financial Statements are free from material
misstatement.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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An audit involves performing procedures to
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Financial Statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the Auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the Financial
Statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’'s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the Financial Statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.

Opinion

6.

In my opinion, the Financial Statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Department of Energy as at 31 March 2016
and its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended, in accordance with Modified
Cash Standards (MCS) prescribed by National
Treasury and the requirements of the PFMA.

Additional matter

7.

| draw attention to the matter below. My opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited supplementary schedules

8.

The supplementary information set out on pages
250 to 260 does not form part of the Financial
Statements and is presented as additional
information. | have not audited this schedule and,
accordingly, | do not express an opinion thereon.



Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements

9.

In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South
Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the
general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a
responsibility to report findings on the reported
performance information against predetermined
objectives for selected programmes presented in
the Annual Performance Report, compliance with
legislation and internal control. The objective of
my tests was to identify reportable findings as
described under each sub-heading but not to
gather evidence to express assurance on these
matters. Accordingly, | do not express an opinion
or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives

10.

1.

12.

| performed procedures to obtain evidence about
the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information for the following
selected programmes presented in the Annual
Performance Report of the Department for the
year ended 31 March 2016:

- Programme 4: Energy Programmes and

Projects Management on page 74 to 87

- Programme 6: Clean Energy on page 96 to 99

| evaluated the usefulness of the reported
performance information to determine whether
it was presented in accordance with National
Treasury’s annual reporting principles and
whether the reported performance was
consistent with the planned programmes. | further
performed tests to determine whether indicators
and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific,
measurable, time bound and relevant, as
required by National Treasury’s Framework for
Managing Programme Performance Information
(FMPPI).

| assessed the reliability of the reported
performance information to determine whether it
was valid, accurate and complete.

13.

| did not identify any material findings on

the usefulness and reliability of the reported

performance information for the following

programmes:

- Programme 4: Energy Programmes and
Projects Management

- Programme 6: Clean Energy

Additional matter

14.

| draw attention to the matter below.

Achievement of planned targets

15.

Refer to the Annual Performance Report on page
40 to 99 for information on the achievement of
the planned targets for the year.

Compliance with legislation

16.

| performed procedures to obtain evidence that
the Department had complied with applicable
legislation regarding financial matters, financial
management and other related matters. | did not
identify any instances of material non-compliance
with specific matters in key legislation, as set out
in the general notices issued in terms of the PPA.

Internal control

17.

| considered internal control relevant to my
audit of the Financial Statements, information
on predetermined objectives and compliance
with legislation. | did not identify any significant
deficiencies in internal control.

FLO(:”{‘H, Gef‘*’-'/c",_

Pretoria
31 July 2016
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NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2016

1. Detail of Transfers and Subsidies as per the Appropriation Act
(After Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the Note on Transfers and Subsidies,
Disclosure Notes and Annexure 1 (A-G) to the Annual Financial Statements.

2. Detail of Specifically and Exclusively Appropriated Amounts Voted
(After Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in Note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual
Financial Statements.

3. Detail on Payments for Financial Assets

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the Note on Payments for
Financial Assets to the Annual Financial Statements.

4. Explanations of Material Variances from Amounts Voted
(After Virement)

4.1 Per programme

- Variance
Final Actual . .
L X Variance of Final
Programme 1 Appropriation Expenditure Appropriation
R’000 R’000 R’000 %
Administration 277 898 277 767 131 0.05
The expenditure in this programme is on par with the revised appropriation.
Final Actual - Varlt-fnce
o . Variance of Final
Programme 2 Appropriation Expenditure Appropriation
R’000 R’000 R’000 %
Energy Policy and Planning 40 586 38 095 2 491 6.14

The R2.49 million or 6.14% budget under-spending is mainly due to planned projects
which were not finalised by year-end as anticipated. This affected and led to budget under-
spending on the item consultants/business advisory services (R2.11 million) attributable
to challenges experienced in the project to study and collect data on the energy footprint
and energy savings potential in heavy industry. Subsequent to awarding the contract, the
appointed service provider was liquidated and the Department’s process of replacing this
provider with another provider was unsuccessful. A budget saving of R265 000 is located
in various items such as consumables, advertising, catering and communication, and is
attributable to cost saving measures taken throughout the year. Vacancies resulted in an
under-spending of R115 000 in the compensation of employees classification.
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Final Actual alance

Appropriation Expenditure Variance of Final
Programme 3 pprop p Appropriation
R’000 R’000 R’000 %
Petroleum and Petroleum Products Regulation 69 008 68 958 50 0.7
The expenditure in this programme is on par with the revised or final appropriation.
Final Actual . Variance
Appropriation Expenditure Variance of Final
Programme 4 pprop P Appropriation
R’000 R’000 R’000 %
Electrification and Energy Programme and Project
Management 5824 050 5820 485 3 565 0.06

The budget under-spending of R3.56 million or 0.06% is mainly due to the under-
spending in the Integrated National Electrification Programme (INEP) Non-grid Project
(R10.41 million). This project involved the installation of solar home systems. Funds could
not be transferred to service providers due to the late uptake of systems in a certain
concession area and the late receipt of claims from certain service providers. A request
has been submitted to the National Treasury to roll this balance of R10.41 million over to
the 2016/17 financial year to enable service providers to complete work in their designated
areas and also to allow proper evaluation of work performed prior to final payments.

This programme also had a budget shortfall in the current payments area due to budget
over-spending in travel and subsistence (R2.84 million) related to verification activities
linked to completed and unfinished electrification projects and travel for Public-Private
Partnership events, venues and facilities (R2.67 million) and advertising/promotional
items (R222 000) related to PPP events. Twelve events were conducted during the year
under review. The administrative fees (R551 000) and fleet services (R203 000) items
also contributed to the over-spending due to travel agency costs and consumables
linked to the travel undertaken. The balance of the over-spending (R360 000) is found in
various operational items; mainly insurance for subsidised vehicles, leases for photocopy
machines, communication, etc., due to limited resources within this programme.

. Variance
Final Actual . .
Appropriation Expenditure Variance CUIANTEL
Programme 5 pprop p Appropriation
R’000 R’000 R’000 %
Nuclear Energy 655 116 655 029 87 0.01
The expenditure in this programme is on par with the revised or final appropriation.
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Variance as

Final Actual . .
Appropriation Expenditure UEIEED 2O U]
Programme 6 pprop P Appropriation
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Clean Energy 400 961 281783 119 178 29.72

The R119.18 million or 29.72% budget under-spending in the consultants and business
advisory services item (R6.01 million) is mainly attributable to a project which could not be
finalised before year-end as anticipated for an independent technical audit, Measurement
and Verification (M&V) of energy savings achieved from the implementation of the
Municipal Energy Efficiency and Demand Side Programme as well as the late completion
of the procurement process for the implementation of the Solar Water Heater Programme
(R112.52 million).

After the termination of the DoE-Eskom MoA for the implementation of the Solar Water
Heater Programme, Cabinet was consulted in the current financial year for approval of a
revised contracting model. This was followed by the amendment of the Appropriation Act,
2013 during the adjustments period in September, listing the Department of Energy as the
implementer of this programme (replacing Eskom). The start of the procurement process
and the evaluation of tenders which took longer than anticipated, negatively affected the
project in the year under review. The procurement process was, however, completed with
the preferred bidders being appointed.

A request has been submitted to the National Treasury to roll over funding for both the
M&V of energy savings achieved from the Municipal Energy Efficiency and Demand Side
Programme implementation and the Solar Water Heater Programme implementation.

4.2 Per economic classification

Final Actual . Variance
L . Variance of Final
Economic Classification Appropriation  Expenditure Appropriation
R’000 R’000 R’000 %
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 296 219 296 009 210 0.07
Goods and services 215588 213 299 2289 1.06
Transfers and subsidies
Provinces and municipalities 2 158 239 2 158 239 - 0.00
Departmental agencies and accounts 87 140 87 140 - 0.00
Public corporations and private enterprises 4 472715 4 349 780 122 935 2.75
Foreign governments and international
organisations 29 621 29 563 58 0.20
Households 3659 3 656 3 0.08
Payments for capital assets
Buildings and other fixed structures - - - -
Machinery and equipment 4 432 4424 8 0.17
Payments for financial assets 6 5 1 9.01
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Compensation of employees
The expenditure in this economic classification is on par with the revised or final
appropriation.

Goods and services

The under-spending of R2.29 million or 1.06% of the total adjusted budget for goods and
services for the 2015/16 financial year is mainly attributable to the delayed appointment
of service providers, hence the late commencement of projects resulting in incomplete
projects at year-end as reflected by the under-spending in the Consultants and Business
Advisory Cost item.

The affected projects are:

- A study and data collection on the energy footprint and energy savings potential in
heavy industry

- An independent technical audit, M&V of energy savings achieved from the Municipal
Energy Efficiency and Demand Side Programme implementation

Transfers and subsidies

The Department disbursed payments totalling R6.63 billion to public entities, municipalities

and implementing agents during the year under review which resulted in a budget under-

spending of R123 million or 1.82% at year end. The under-spend is mainly due to the
following:

- R10.41 million budget balance from earmarked funds for transfer to INEP Non-
grid Project service providers that could not be transferred due to the late uptake
of systems in a certain concession area and the late receipt of claims from certain
service providers.

- R112.52 million earmarked for the implementation of the Solar Water Heater
Programme. After the Department reengineered the programme, the DoE-Eskom
MoA for the programme’s implementation was terminated. The Department proceeded
with the necessary engagements in order to obtain Cabinet’s approval for the revised
contracting model. The Appropriation Act, 2013 (Act No. 9 of 2013) which listed
Eskom as the implementing agent, was amended through the adjustments budgeting
process listing the Department as the implementing agent replacing Eskom. The
procurement process was delayed and the evaluation of tenders took longer than
anticipated due to the complex technical requirements.

Payment for capital assets
The expenditure in this economic classification is on par with the revised or final
appropriation.

Payments for financial assets

Financial losses incurred by the Department are authorised and carried against the vote
(Departmental budget) by means of a final virement approval to cater for the excess
expenditure. To ensure that final budget allocations are aligned with actual expenditure,
funds totalling R6 000.00 were shifted from savings within the respective programmes to
cover the excess expenditure incurred in respect of theft and losses. On 31 March 2016,
amounts written-off as losses against the Departmental vote totalled R5 459.59 which
included departmental debts written off as financial losses in terms of Treasury Regulation
11 and applicable Departmental policy in various cases where debtors could not be traced
or the recovery of outstanding amounts was not economical.
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4.3 Per conditional grant

. Variance
Final Actual . o
Appropriation Expenditure peiisues CilALE,
Energy pprop P Appropriation
R’000 R’000 R’000 %
Integrated National Electrification Programme 1980 340 1980 340 -
Energy Efficiency and Demand Side Management
Programme 177 899 177 899 -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
for the year ended 31 March 2016

2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
REVENUE
Annual appropriation 1 7 267 619 7437 794
Statutory appropriation - -
Departmental revenue 805 987 5277
NRF receipts - -
Aid assistance 4 291 222 139 371
TOTAL REVENUE 8 364 828 7 582 442
EXPENDITURE
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 5 296 009 264 266
Goods and services 6 213 300 209 341
Interest and rent on land 7 - -
Aid assistance 4 - -
Total current expenditure 509 309 473 607
Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies 9 6 628 379 5742710
Aid assistance 4 185 537 135072
Total transfers and subsidies 6 813 916 5877782
Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets 10 4424 3763
Total expenditure for capital assets 4424 3763
Unauthorised expenditure approved without funding 11 - -
Payments for financial assets 8 5 33
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 7 327 654 6 355 185
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 1037 174 1227 257
2015/16 2014/15
Reconciliation of net surplus for the year Note
R’000 R’000
Voted funds 125 502 1217 681
Annual appropriation 125 502 1217 681
Conditional grants - -
Departmental revenue and NRF receipts 19 805 987 5277
Aid assistance 105 685 4 299
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 1037 174 1227 257
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
for the year ended 31 March 2016

Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
ASSETS
Current assets 126 589 1219911
Unauthorised expenditure 11 14 860 14 860
Cash and cash equivalents 12 110 276 1203 054
Other financial assets 13 - -
Prepayments and advances 14 1023 1686
Receivables 15 430 31
Loans 17 - -
Aid assistance prepayments 4 - -
Aid assistance receivable 4 - -
Non-current assets 2205 2205
Investments 16 2205 2205
Receivables 15 - -
Loans 17 - -
Other financial assets 13 - -
TOTAL ASSETS 128 794 1222 116
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 126 398 1219 811
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 18 125 502 1217 681
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the
Revenue Fund 19 360 1666
Bank overdraft 20 - -
Payables 21 536 464
Aid assistance repayable = -
Aid assistance unutilised - -
Non-current liabilities
Payables 22 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 126 398 1219 811
NET ASSETS 2396 2305
Represented by:
Capitalisation reserve 2205 2205
Recoverable revenue 191 100
Retained funds - -
Revaluation reserve - -
2 396 2 305
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
for the year ended 31 March 2016

2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000

Capitalisation reserves
Opening balance 2 205 2205
Transfers - -
Closing balance 2205 2 205
Recoverable revenue
Opening balance 100 146
Transfers: 91 (46)

Irrecoverable amounts written off - -

Debts revised 39 (5)

Debts recovered (included in Departmental receipts) (261) (481)

Debts raised 313 440
Closing balance 191 100
Retained funds - -
Revaluation reserve - -
Total 2396 2305
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2016

2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts 8 364 717 7 582 442

Annual appropriated funds received 1.1 7 267 619 7 437 794

Statutory appropriated funds received 2 - -

Departmental revenue received 3 805 387 5230

Interest received 3 489 47

Aid assistance received 4 291 222 139 371
Net increase in working capital 616 3904
Surrendered to Revenue Fund (2 024 974) (30 439)
Surrendered to RDP fund/donor (105 685) (4 299)
Current payments (509 309) (473 607)
Interest paid 7 - -
Payments for financial assets (5) (33)
Transfers and subsidies paid (6 813 916) (5877 782)
Net cash flow available from operating activities 23 (1 088 556) 1200 186
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital assets 10 (4 424) (3763)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 111 -
Net cash flows from investing activities (4 313) (3763)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/(decrease) in net assets 91 (46)
Net cash flows from financing activities 91 (46)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1092 778) 1196 377
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1203 054 6 677
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 24 110 276 1203 054
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for the year ended 31 March 2016

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the following
policies, which have been applied consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise
indicated. Management has concluded that the Annual Financial Statements present fairly
the Department’s primary and secondary information.

The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated.
Management has used assessments and estimates in preparing the Annual Financial
Statements. These are based on the best information available at the time of preparation.
Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance
the usefulness of the Annual Financial Statements and to comply with the statutory
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (as
amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the Public
Finance Management Act, 1999 and the annual Division of Revenue Act, 2016 (Act No.
3 of 2016).

1. Basis of Preparation

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified
Cash Standard.

2. Going Concern
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
3. Presentation Currency

Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also
the functional currency of the Department.

4. Rounding

Unless otherwise stated, financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand
Rand (R’000).

5. Foreign Currency Translation

Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African
Rands using the spot exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment/receipt.

6. Comparative Information

6.1 Prior period comparative information

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial
statements. Where necessary, figures included in the prior period financial statements
have been reclassified to ensure that the format in which the information is presented is
consistent with the format of the current year’s financial statements.

6.2 Current year comparison with budget

A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts for each programme
and economic classification is included in the appropriation statement.
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7. Revenue
7.1 Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds comprise of Departmental allocations as well as direct charges against
the revenue fund (i.e. statutory appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the
date the appropriation becomes effective. Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments
budget process are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date the
adjustments become effective.

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to/from the relevant revenue fund at the
reporting date is recognised as a payable/receivable in the Statement of Financial Position.

7.2 Departmental revenue

Departmental revenue is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when
received and is subsequently paid into the relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise.

Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a
payable in the Statement of Financial Position.

7.3 Accrued Departmental revenue

Accruals in respect of Departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the

notes to the Annual Financial Statements when:

- It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the Department; and

- The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.

Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and/penalties) is measured at amounts
receivable from collecting agents.

8. Expenditure

8.1 Compensation of employees

8.1.1 Salaries and wages

Salaries and wages are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date
of payment.

8.1.2 Social contributions

Social contributions made by the Department in respect of current employees are

recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.

Social contributions made by the Department in respect of ex-employees are classified as
transfers to households in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.
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8.2 Other expenditure

Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments
for capital assets) is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of
payment. The expense is classified as a capital expense if the total consideration paid is
more than the capitalisation threshold of R5 000.

8.3 Accrued expenditure payable

Accrued expenditure payable is recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements
when the goods are received or, in the case of services, when they are rendered to the
Department or in the case of transfers and subsidies when they are due and payable.

Accrued expenditure payable is measured at cost.
8.4 Leases

8.4.1 Operating leases
Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current
expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.

The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial
Statements.

8.4.2 Finance leases
Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital
expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.

The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial
Statements and are not apportioned between the capital and interest portions.

Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured

at the lower of:

- Cost, being the fair value of the asset

- The sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to
acquire ownership at the end of the lease term, excluding interest

8.4.2 Finance leases
Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital
expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of payment.

The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial
Statements and are not apportioned between the capital and interest portions.

Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured

at the lower of:

- Cost, being the fair value of the asset; or

- The sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to
acquire ownership at the end of the lease term, excluding interest.
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9. Aid Assistance

9.1 Aid assistance received

Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
when received. In-kind aid assistance is recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial
Statements on the date of receipt and is measured at fair value.

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid
assistance that are required to be refunded to the donor are recognised as a payable in
the Statement of Financial Position.

9.2 Aid assistance paid

Aid assistance paid is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date
of payment. Aid assistance payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as
a receivable in the Statement of Financial Position.

10. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the Statement of Financial Position.

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the Statement of Financial Position
as a current liability.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand, deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

11. Prepayments and Advances

Prepayments and advances are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when
the Department receives or disburses the cash.

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.

12. Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost plus
accrued interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.
Write-offs are made according to the Department’s write-off policy.

13. Investments

Investments are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost.

14. Financial Assets

14.1 Financial assets (not covered elsewhere)

A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial.

At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at cost, less amounts
already settled or written-off, except for recognised loans and receivables, which are
measured at cost plus accrued interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already
settled or written-off.
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14.2 Impairment of financial assets

Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the
reduction in the recorded carrying value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the
future economic benefits expected to be received from that asset, is recorded in the notes
to the Annual Financial Statements.

15. Payables

Loans and payables are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost.
16. Capital Assets

16.1 Immovable capital assets

Immovable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial
Statements at cost. Immovable capital assets acquired through a non-exchange
transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Where the cost of immovable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the immovable
capital assets are measured at R1 unless the fair value of the asset has been reliably
estimated, in which case the fair value is used.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the Office of
Accounting General (OAG)) may be recorded at R1.

Immovable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to
depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the
end of the capital project unless the immovable asset is recorded by another department
in which case the completed project costs are transferred to that department.

16.2 Movable capital assets

Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements
at cost. Movable capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured
at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable
capital assets are measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the
movable assets are measured at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be
recorded at R1.

Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation
or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the
end of the capital project unless the movable asset is recorded by another department/
entity in which case the completed project costs are transferred to that department.
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16.3 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements at
cost. Intangible assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair
value as at the date of acquisition.

Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial
Statements when the Department commences the development phase of the project.

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital
assets are measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible
assets are measured at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be
recorded at R1.

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or
impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the
end of the capital project unless the intangible asset is recorded by another department/
entity in which case the completed project costs are transferred to that department.

17. Provisions and Contingents
17.1 Provisions

Provisions are recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements when there is a
present legal or constructive obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events
in the past and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. The provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds
required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

17.2 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements when
there is a possible obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not within the control of the Department or when there is a present obligation that
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

17.3 Contingent assets

Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements when
a possible asset arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control
of the Department.
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17.4 Commitments

Commitments are recorded at cost in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements when
there is a contractual arrangement or an approval by management in a manner that raises
a valid expectation that the Department will discharge its responsibilities thereby incurring
future expenditure that will result in the outflow of cash.

18. Unauthorised Expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position until such

time as the expenditure is either:

- Approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related
funds are received

- Approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written
off against the appropriation in the Statement of Financial Performance

- Transferred to receivables for recovery

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised
expenditure.

19. Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial
Statements when confirmed. The amount recorded is equal to the total value of the
fruitless and or wasteful expenditure incurred.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the Annual Financial
Statements when it is resolved or transferred to receivables for recovery.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is
expected to be recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-
off as irrecoverable.

20. Irregular Expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements when
confirmed. The amount recorded is equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred
unless it is impracticable to determine, in which case reasons therefor are provided in the
note.

Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant
authority, transferred to receivables for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable.

Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to
be recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as
irrecoverable.
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21. Changes in Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimates and Errors

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied
retrospectively in accordance with Modified Cash Standard (MCS) requirements, except to
the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative
effect of the change in policy. In such instances the Department shall restate the opening
balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective
restatement is practicable.

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS
requirements.

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred
in accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to
determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error. In such cases
the Department shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for
the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

22. Events after the Reporting Date

Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted
for in the Annual Financial Statements. The events after the reporting date that are
classified as non-adjusting events after the reporting date have been disclosed in the
notes to the Annual Financial Statements.

23. Departures from the MCS Requirements

Management has concluded that the Annual Financial Statements present fairly the
Department’s primary and secondary information; that the Department complied with
the Standard except that it has departed from a particular requirement to achieve fair
presentation; and the requirement from which the Department has departed, the nature of
the departure and the reason for departure.

24. Capitalisation Reserve

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a
prior reporting period but which are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position for
the first time in the current reporting period. Amounts are recognised in the capitalisation
reserves when identified in the current period and are transferred to the National/Provincial
Revenue Fund when the underlying asset is disposed and the related funds are received.

25. Recoverable Revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous
financial year becomes recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year. Amounts
are either transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when recovered or are
transferred to the Statement of Financial Performance when written-off.

26. Related Party Transactions

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the
reporting entity and a related party. Related party transactions within the Minister’s portfolio
are recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements when the transaction is not
at arm’s length.

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Department. The number of
individuals and their full compensation is recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial
Statements
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27. Inventories (Effective from 1 April 2017)

At the date of acquisition, inventories are recorded at cost price in the notes to the Annual
Financial Statements

Where inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, the cost of inventory
is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or the
lower of cost and current replacement value.

28. Public-Private Partnerships

Public-Private Partnerships are accounted for based on the nature and or the substance
of the partnership. The transaction is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies.

A summary of the significant terms of the Public-Private Partnership agreement, the parties
to the agreement, and the date of commencement thereof together with the description
and nature of the concession fees received, the unitary fees paid, rights and obligations of
the Department are recorded in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2016

1.  Annual Appropriation
1.1 Annual appropriation

Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act, 2013 (and the Adjustments
Appropriation Act) for national departments (voted funds) and provincial departments.

2015/16 2014/15
Final Actual Funds A L Final Appropriation
Appropriation Received AL Appropriation Received
pprop Not Received* pprop
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Administration 277 898 246 598 31 300 260 601 260 601
Energy Policy and Planning 40 586 44 096 (3510) 53 053 53 053
Petroleum and Petroleum
Products 69 008 73 378 (4 370) 78 210 78 210
Electrification and Energy
Programme 5824 050 5813 822 10 228 4217 327 4217 327
Nuclear Energy 655 116 653 898 1218 846 529 846 529
Clean Energy 400 961 435 827 (34 866) 1982074 1982 074
Total 7 267 619 7 267 619 - 7 437 794 7437794
All the requested funds for 2015/2016 were received in full.
*Funds not requested/not received refers to virements between programmes.
2. Statutory Appropriation
2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000

Members’ remuneration - -
Debt-service costs - -
Provincial equitable share - -
National Revenue Fund payments - -

Skills levy and sector education and training authorities - -

Total - -
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3. Departmental Revenue

2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Sale of goods and services other than capital assets 3.1 3885 3133
Interest, dividends and rent on land 3.2 489 47
Sale of capital assets 3.3 111 -
Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 3.4 800 443 510
Transfer received 3.5 1059 1587
Departmental revenue collected 805 987 5277
3.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
Note 2015/16 2014/15
3 R’000 R’000
Sales of goods and services produced by the department 3885 3132
Sales by market establishment 141 139
Administrative fees 3631 2 896
Other sales 113 97
Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods - 1
Total 3885 3133
3.2 Interest, dividends and rent on land
Note 2015/16 2014/15
3 R’000 R’000
Interest 489 47
Total 489 47
3.3 Sale of capital assets
Note 2015/16 2014/15
3 R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 111 -
Machinery and equipment 36.2 111 -
Total 111 -
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3.4 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities

Note 2015/16 2014/15
3 R’000 R’000
Receivables 192 477
Other receipts including recoverable revenue 800 251 33
Total 800 443 510
The R800.25 million included in transactions in financial assets and liabilities relates to
unspent funds surrendered by Eskom after the termination of the DoE-Eskom MoA. These
funds were surrendered by the Department to the National Revenue Fund.
3.5 Transfers received
Note 2015/16 2014/15
3 R’000 R’000
Other governmental units 1059 1587
Total 1059 1587
4. Aid Assistance
2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Opening balance - -
Revenue Annex 1F 291 222 139 371
Expenditure Annex 1F (185 537) (135 072)
Transferred from Statement of Financial Performance 105 685 4299
Paid during the year* Annex 1F (105 685) (4 299)
Closing Balance - -
*Funds amounting to R105.69 million were surrendered to the RDP Fund during the current year.
5. Compensation of Employees
5.1 Salaries and wages
2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Basic salary 198 704 178 230
Performance award 4 262 4104
Service based 165 288
Compensative/circumstantial 9284 7903
Periodic payments 131 83
Other non-pensionable allowances 48 462 43 549
Total 261 008 234 157
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5.2 Social contributions

2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Employer contributions
Pension 25 201 22 439
Medical 9760 7634
Bargaining council 40 36
Total 35001 30109
Total compensation of employees 296 009 264 266
Average number of employees 610 577
6. Goods and Services
Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Administrative fees 5662 4 450
Advertising 13785 8 652
Minor assets 6.1 1036 367
Bursaries (employees) 610 761
Catering 1961 1033
Communication 7613 7 844
Computer services 6.2 9 839 10 204
Consultants: Business and advisory services 25 828 43 840
Legal services 924 847
Contractors 2 560 1742
Agency and support/outsourced services 3305 270
Entertainment 1 22
Audit cost external 6.3 4233 3578
Fleet services 1 586 1129
Consumables 6.4 5695 5702
Operating leases 34 063 27 147
Property payments 6.5 4083 3 849
Rental and hiring 93 15
Transport provided as part of the departmental activities 238 1
Travel and subsistence 6.6 65 250 56 345
Venues and facilities 15373 19708
Training and development 4 664 5665
Other operating expenditure 6.7 4 898 6170
Total 213 300 209 341
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6.1 Minor assets

Note 2015/16 2014/15
6 R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 1036 367
Heritage assets 48 -
Machinery and equipment 986 367
Transport assets 2 -
Total 1036 367
6.2 Computer services
Note 2015/16 2014/15
6 R’000 R’000
SITA computer services 8123 7 690
External computer service providers 1716 2514
Total 9 839 10 204
6.3 Audit cost: external
Note 2015/16 2014/15
6 R’000 R’000
Regularity audits 4233 3433
Performance audits - -
Computer audits - 145
Total 4233 3578
6.4 Consumables
Note 2015/16 2014/15
6 R’000 R’000
Consumable supplies 1789 1582
Uniform and clothing 89 333
Household supplies 474 321
Building material and supplies 60 268
Communication accessories 1 -
IT consumables 171 510
Other consumables 994 150
Stationery, printing and office supplies 3906 4120
Total 5695 5702
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6.5 Property payments

Note 2015/16 2014/15
6 R’000 R’000
Municipal services 2981 1756
Other 1102 2093
Total 4083 3849
6.6 Travel and subsistence
Note 2015/16 2014/15
6 R’000 R’000
Local 50 074 41 040
Foreign 15176 15 305
Total 65 250 56 345
6.7 Other operating expenditure
Note 2015/16 2014/15
6 R’000 R’000
Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees 783 3732
Resettlement costs 573 373
Other — (includes printing, publication and courier services etc.) 3542 2 065
Total 4 898 6170
7. Interest and Rent on Land
2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Interest paid - -
Rent on land - -
Total - -
8. Payments for Financial Assets
2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Other material losses written off 8.1 5 32
Debts written off 8.2 - 1
Total 5 33
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8.1 Other material losses written off

Note 2015/16 2014/15
8 R’000 R’000
Nature of losses
Salary debt 32
Total 32
8.2 Debts written off
Note 2015/16 2014/15
8 R’000 R’000
Debt written off - 1
Total debt written off - 1
9. Transfers and Subsidies
2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Provinces and municipalities 39 2 158 239 1241 563
Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1B 87 140 197 194
Foreign governments and international organisations Annex 1D 29 563 21275
Public corporations and private enterprises Annex 1C 4 349 780 4278715
Households Annex 1E 3 657 3963
Total 6 628 379 5742710
10. Expenditure for Capital Assets
2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 4424 3763
Machinery and equipment 36.1 4424 | | 3763
Total 4424 3763
10.1 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets — 2015/16
Voted Funds fmd Total
Assistance
R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 4424 4 424
Machinery and equipment 4424 | | - | | 4 424
Total 4424 - 4424
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10.2 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets — 2014/15

Voted Funds f\id Total
Assistance
R’000 R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 3763 3763
Machinery and equipment 3763 | | - | | 3763
Total 3763 - 3763
11. Unauthorised Expenditure
11.1 Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure
2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Opening balance 14 860 14 860
Movement - -
Closing balance 14 860 14 860
11.2 Analysis of unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation per economic
classification
2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Transfers and subsidies 14 860 14 860
Total 14 860 14 860
11.3 Analysis of unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation per type
2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Expenditure incurred not in accordance with the Vote 28 in the 2010/11 14 860
financial year 14 860
Total 14 860 14 860
During the 2010/11 financial year, R14.8 million was disbursed from the incorrect Vote.
A request for condonation has been submitted to National Treasury for consideration.
The Department was duly informed that the matter has to be presented to the Standing
Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA). The Department presented the matter to
SCOPA on 12 November 2014 and is awaiting the committee’s decision. No unauthorised
expenditure was incurred since.
PART E

Annual Financial Statements



12. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Consolidated Paymaster General Account
Cash receipts 110 188 1201 380
Cash on hand 46 46
Cash with commercial banks (Local) 42 1628
Total 110 276 1203 054
13. Other Financial Assets
2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Current
Local - -
Total o -
Foreign - -
Total - -
14. Prepayments and Advances
2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Travel and subsistence 88 7
Advances paid 14.1 935 1679
Total 1023 1686
14.1 Advances paid
Note 2015/16 2014/15
14 R’000 R’000
National departments Annex 6 935 1679
Total 935 1679
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15. Receivables

2015/16 2014/15
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Note R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Claims recoverable 15.1 148 - 148 8 - 8
Recoverable 15.2
expenditure 28 - 28 127 - 127
Staff debt 15.3 227 - 227 161 - 161
Fruitless 15.4
and wasteful
expenditure 27 - 27 15 - 15
Total 430 - 430 31 - 311
15.1 Claims recoverable
Note 2015/16 2014/15
15 R’000 R’000
National departments Annex 4 148
Total 148
15.2 Recoverable expenditure (disallowance accounts)
Note 2015/16 2014/15
15 R’000 R’000
Disallowed damages and losses - 2
Salaries: Tax debt 8 1
Disallowance miscellaneous 14 124
Salaries: Reversal 6 -
Total 28 127
15.3 Staff debt
Note 2015/16 2014/15
15 R’000 R’000
Staff debtors 227 161
Total 227 161
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15.4 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Note 2015/16 2014/15
15 R’000 R’000
Opening balance 15 -
Interest paid on International Membership fees - 15
Interest paid on Pension Fund fees 12 -
Transfers from Note 32 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure - -
Total 27 15
16. Investments
2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Non-current
Shares and other equity
Nuclear Energy Corporation of South Africa Annex 2A 2205 2205
Total 2205 2205
2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Analysis of non-current investments
Opening balance 2205 2205
Movement - -
Closing balance 2205 2205
The Department holds 2 205 000 shares in its entity, the South African Nuclear Corporation
Limited (Necsa). Investments are recorded at cost in terms of the accounting policy. Refer
to Annexure 2A for the Net Assets Value as at 31 March 2016.
17. Loans
The loan amount is R1 only. The loan that was granted to the Portuguese Government
towards the Hydro Electrica de Cahora Bassa Scheme was written down from R347 million
to R1 during the 2003/2004 financial year. The written off amount included capitalised
interest of R308 million, while the capital amount in respect of the loan was R39 million.
18. Voted Funds to be Surrendered to the Revenue Fund
2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Opening balance 1217 681 26 180
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 125 502 1217 681
Paid during the year (1217 681) (26 180)
Closing balance 125 502 1217 681
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19. Departmental Revenue and NRF Receipts to be Surrendered to the

Revenue Fund

2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Opening balance 1 666 648
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 805 987 5277
Paid during the year (807 293) (4 259)
Closing balance 360 1666
20. Bank Overdraft
2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Closing balance - -
21. Payables: current
2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Clearing accounts 211 137 208
Other payables 21.2 399 256
Total 536 464
21.1 Clearing accounts
Note 2015/16 2014/15
21 R’000 R’000
Salaries: Income tax 130 207
Salaries: Pension fund 7 1
Total 137 208
21.2 Other payables
Note 2015/16 2014/15
21 R’000 R’000
Licence fee received 399 256
Total 399 256
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22. Payables: Non-current

2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
1to 2 Years 2 to 3 Years More Than 3 Total Total
Years
Other payables - - - -
Total - - - -
23. Net Cash Flow Available from Operating Activities
2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Net surplus as per Statement of Financial Performance 1037 174 1227 257
Add back non-cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities (2 125 730) (27 071)
(Increase)/decrease in receivables — current (119) 3612
Decrease in prepayments and advances 663 13
Increase in payables — current 72 279
Proceeds from sale of capital assets (111) -
Expenditure on capital assets 4424 3763
Surrenders to Revenue Fund (2 024 974) (30 439)
Surrenders to RDP Fund/Donor (105 685) (4 299)
Net cash flow generated by operating activities (1 088 556) 1200 186
24. Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents for Cash Flow Purposes
2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Consolidated Paymaster General account 110 188 1201 380
Cash on hand 46 46
Cash with commercial banks (local) 42 1628
Total 110 276 1203 054
25. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Liable to nature
Other guarantees Annex 3A 20 000 20 000
Claims against the Department Annex 3B 15 399 16 504
Intergovernmental payables (unconfirmed balances) Annex 5 - -
Total 35399 36 504
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26. Commitments

2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Current expenditure
Approved and contracted 18 967 73312
Approved but not yet contracted - -
18 967 73 312
Capital expenditure
Approved and contracted 144 851 834
Approved but not yet contracted - -
144 851 834
Total commitments 163 818 74 146
27. Accruals and Payables not Recognised
27.1 Accruals
2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
30 Days ;:;S Total Total
Listed by economic classification
Goods and services 8 460 - 8 460 9302
Total 8 460 - 8 460 9 302
2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Listed by programme level
Programme 1: Administration 5083 2492
Programme 2: Energy Policy and Planning 188 434
Programme 3: Petroleum and Petroleum 2 062 417
Programme 4: Project Management 818 4 695
Programme 5: Nuclear Energy 242 946
Programme 6: Clean Energy 67 318
Total 8 460 9 302
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27.2 Payables not recognised

2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
30 Days 30+ Total Total
Days
Listed by economic classification
Goods and services 4718 - 4718 2645
Total 4718 - 4718 2645
Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Listed by programme level
Programme 1: Administration Annex 5 4717 2 645
Programme 2: Energy Policy and Planning - -
Programme 3: Electricity and Energy Annex 5 1 -
Programme 4: Project Management - -
Programme 5: Nuclear Energy - -
Programme 6: Clean Energy - -
Total 4718 2 645
Included in the above are the following:
Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Confirmed balance with departments Annex 5 4717 2645
Confirmed with other Government entities Annex 5 1 -
Total 4718 2645
28. Employee Benefits
2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Leave entitlement* 10 754 6 560
Service bonus (thirteenth cheque) 7 385 6 653
Performance awards** 4 280 4 099
Capped leave commitments 1911 1910
Other 342 366
Total 24 672 19 588

*The leave entitiement does not include leave credits with credit balances.
**The performance awards amount is based on the allowed percentage of 1.5% of the total Compensation of
Employee’s budget.

The leave with credit balances amounts to R378 067 (2014/15: R638 652).
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29. Lease Commitments

29.1 Operating leases expenditure

Buildings and Machinery

2015/16 Other Fixed and Total
Structures Equipment
R’000 R’000 R’000
Not later than 1 year 31094 4141 35235
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 193 660 4114 197 774
Later than 5 years 12 346 - 12 346
Total lease commitments 237 100 8 255 245 355

Buildings and Machinery

2014/15 Other Fixed and Total
Structures Equipment
R’000 R’000 R’000
Not later than 1 year 28 720 2 696 31416
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 180 872 2455 183 327
Later than 5 years 52 594 - 52 594
Total lease commitments 262 186 5151 267 337

Included in Buildings and Other Fixed Structures is a building lease that was entered
into in the 2010/11 financial year by the Department of Public Works on behalf of the
Department of Energy for head office accommodation totalling 12 738 m2. The lease
agreement commenced in July 2012 for a period of 10 years.

30. Accrued Departmental Revenue

2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 30.1 2644 2 544
Total 2644 2544
30.1 Analysis of accrued Departmental revenue
2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Opening balance 2 544 1966
Less: amounts received (2 755) (1902)
Add: amounts recognised 2 855 2480
Closing balance 30 2 644 2544
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31. Irregular Expenditure

31.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Opening balance - 379
Add: irregular expenditure — relating to current year 31.2 678 55
Less: prior year amounts condoned - (379)
Less: current year amounts condoned 31.3 (678) (55)
Closing balance - -
31.2 Details of irregular expenditure: current year
Incident Disciplinary Steps Taken/Criminal Proceedings 2;305(;:)6
Procurement process not followed Disciplinary action will be taken, if necessary,
pending the outcome of the investigation 678
Total 678
31.3 Details of irregular expenditure condoned
Incident Condoned by (Condoning Authority) 2;3()5;36
Procurement process not followed The Accounting Officer of the Department 678
Total 678
32. Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
32.1 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure
2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Opening balance 15 -
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure — relating to current year 12 -
Less: amounts transferred to receivables for recovery 15.4 (27) 15
Closing balance - 15
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32.2 Analysis of awaiting resolution per economic classification

2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Current - 15
Total - 15
32.3 Analysis of current year’s fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Incident Disciplinary Steps Taken/Criminal Proceedings 2;"1054:)6
Interest paid on late payment of Pension Fund fees  Investigation is currently underway 12
Total 12
33. Related Party Transactions
2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Payments made
Interest and rent on land - 2 906
Transfers 666 706 957 060
Total 666 706 959 966
2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Year end balances arising from revenue/payment
Receivables from related parties - 8
Payables to related parties - (2 645)
Total - (2 637)
2015/16 2014/15
Note
R’000 R’000
Guarantees issued — Necsa Annex 3A 20 000 20 000
Total 20 000 20 000
33.1 In kind goods and services received from related parties
2015/16
R’000
Donation in kind received from Independent Power Producers for the
Budget Vote speech 552
Total 552
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33.2 Related party relationships

Entity Relationship

CEF State-Owned Entity of Department of Energy

Necsa State-Owned Entity of Department of Energy

NERSA State-Owned Entity of Department of Energy

NNR State-Owned Entity of Department of Energy

NRWDI State-Owned Entity of Department of Energy

SANEDI State-Owned Entity of Department of Energy
34. Key Management Personnel

No. of 2015/16 2014/15
Individuals R’000 R’000

Political office bearers 2 4195 3978

Officials:

Levels 15 to 16 15 15200 17 286

Level 14 24 23 652 19130

Total 43 047 40 394
35. Provisions

2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000

Provision for disused past strategic nuclear facilities - 3643 364

Total - 3643 364
35.1 Reconciliation of movement in provisions — 2015/16

Environmental Total
Rehabilitation Provisions
Liability
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 3 643 364 3 643 364

Transfer of provision to Necsa (3643 364) (3 643 364)

Closing balance 3 643 364 3 643 364
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35.2 Reconciliation of movement in provisions — 2014/15

Environmental

Rehabilitation Pmi‘?;?Lns
Liability
R’000 R’000
Opening balance 3527 216 3527 216
Change in provision due to change in estimation of inputs 116 148 116 148
Closing balance 3 643 364 3643 364

The Department had a potential liability arising from the decontamination and decommissioning of past strategic
nuclear facilities as per Section 1 (xii) (a) of the Nuclear Energy Act, 1999 (Act No. 46 of 1999).

However, after consultation with all relevant stakeholders, it was decided that a legal opinion should be sought on
the legal liability for the cost of decontamination and decommissioning of the past strategic facilities.

After a lengthy review process, Senior Counsel concluded that Necsa carries the legal liability for the costs of
decontamination and decommissioning of the past strategic nuclear facilities, which are licensed and still in
operation at Nesca. However, the State and/or the Minister of Energy has a funding responsibility in this regard.

The Minister of Energy has written to the Finance Minister on this matter and due process will be followed in the
request for guarantee/funds.

The legal opinion was shared with Nesca, the Auditor-General of South Africa and National Treasury. The
Chairperson of Nesca has also been duly informed of the outcome.

36. Movable Tangible Capital Assets

OESiRg Additions Disposals* eslne
Balance Balance
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Heritage assets 222 - - 222
Heritage assets 222 - - 222
Machinery and equipment 42 208 4473 367 46 314
Transport assets 3035 - - 3035
Computer equipment 22 159 2 694 207 24 646
Furniture and office equipment 12 256 1545 153 13 648
Other machinery and equipment 4758 234 7 4 985
Total moveable tangible capital assets 42 430 4 473 367 46 536
*Disposals include assets sold, donated and written off.
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36.1 Additions

Additions to movable tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2016

(Capital Work Received

Cash Non-cash in Progress Curren.t, Not Total
Current Paid
Costs)
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Machinery and equipment 4 424 38 - 1" 4473
Computer equipment 2 656 38 - - 2 694
Furniture and office
equipment 1545 - - - 1545
Other machinery and
equipment 223 - - 11 234
Total additions to movable
tangible capital assets 4424 38 - 1" 4473
36.2 Disposals
Disposals of movable tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2016
Cash
Sold for Cash r;?:'zi;:' DisTO;ZIaIs Received
P P Actual
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Machinery and equipment - 367 367 111
Transport assets - - - 111
Computer equipment - 207 207 -
Furniture and office equipment - 153 153 -
Other machinery and equipment - 7 7 -
Total disposal of movable tangible capital assets - 367 367 111
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36.3 Movement for 2014/15

Movement in tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2015

Opening Prior Period Additions Disposals Closing
Balance Error Balance
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Heritage Assets 222 - - - 222
Heritage assets 222 - - - 222
Machinery and Equipment 37 690 - 5524 1006 42 208
Transport assets 1630 - 1450 45 3035
Computer equipment 20 590 - 2 395 826 22 159
Furniture and office
equipment 11 267 - 1112 123 12 256
Other machinery and
equipment 4203 - 567 12 4758
Total movable tangible
capital assets 37912 - 5524 1006 42 430
36.4 Minor assets
Heritage Machinery
and Total
Assets .
Equipment
R’000 R’000 R’000
Opening balance 185 6 236 6421
Additions - 1039 1039
Disposals - (234) (234)
Total minor assets 185 7 041 7 226
. Machinery
AL and Total
Assets .
Equipment
R’000 R’000 R’000
Number of R1 minor assets - 91 91
Number of minor assets at cost 83 4 593 4 676
Total number of minor assets 83 4 684 4767
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Movement in minor assets per the asset register for the year ended 31 March 2014/15

. Machinery
Heritage and Total
Assets .
Equipment
R’000 R’000 R’000
Opening balance 185 5998 6 183
Additions - 386 386
Disposals - (148) (148)
Total minor assets 185 6 236 6 421
36.5 Movable assets written off
Movable assets written off for the year ended 31 March 2016
Machinery
and Total
Equipment
R’000 R’000
Assets written off* 195 195
Total movable assets written off 195 195
*Assets written off refers to lost assets only.
Movable assets written off for the year ended 31 March 2015
Machinery
and Total
Equipment
R’000 R’000
Assets written off 244 244
Total movable assets written off 244 244
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37. Intangible Capital Assets

Opening Additions Disposals Closing
Balance Balance
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Software 3585 - - 3585
Total intangible capital assets 3585 - - 3585
37.1 Additions
Additions to intangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2016
(Development Received
Work in Current Year,
Cash Non-Cash Progress — Not Paid Total
Current Costs)
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Software - - - - -
Total additions to intangible
capital assets - - - - -
37.2 Disposals
Disposals of intangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2016
Cash
Sold for Cash "Il;i':-?)zzr DisTO::als Received
P P Actual
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Software - - - -
Total disposals of intangible
capital assets - - - -
37.3 Movement for 2015/16
Opening Additions Disposals el
Balance Balance
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Software 3585 - - 3585
Total intangible capital assets 3585 - - 3585
38. Prior Period Errors
There are no prior period errors.
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